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RETROSPECTIVE RESTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

On 21 June 2024, the Company acquired approximately 90.73% equity
interests in Shanghai Evergreen, and retrospectively restated the financial
data of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023. Please refer
1o (i) the announcements of the Company dated 19 April 2024 and 29 April
2024; and (i) the circular of the Company dated 3 June 2024 for details of
such acquisition. Please also refer to notes 1, 3 and 32 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

1. The Group’s revenue was approximately RMB1,530.2 million,
representing an increase of approximately 0.1% as compared with
approximately RMB1,528.2 million for the year ended 31 December

2023.

2. The Group’s revenue generated from its business segments are as

follows:

@

revenue from City Operation Services was approximately
RMB879.5 million, accounting for approximately 57.5% of
total revenue, representing an increase of approximately
0.8%, as compared with approximately RMB872.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023;

revenue from Lifestyle Services was approximately
RMB213.6 million, accounting for approximately 14.0% of
total revenue, representing a decrease of approximately
3.8%, as compared with approximately RMB222.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023; and

revenue from FATH and Other Comprehensive Services
was approximately RMB437.1 million, accounting for
approximately 28.5% of total revenue, representing
an increase of approximately 0.7%, as compared with
approximately RMB434.1 million for the year ended 31
December 20283.

Financial Highlights
MBERE
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Financial Highlights
MBERE

Gross profit was approximately RMB207.9 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 2.3% as compared with approximately
RMB212.9 milion for the year ended 31 December 2023. Gross
profit margin was approximately 13.6%, representing a decrease of
approximately 0.3 percentage points from approximately 13.9% for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

Loss for the Reporting Period was approximately RMB61.6 million,
and loss attributable to owners of the Company for the Reporting
Period was approximately RMB66.9 million.

The Board recommended the declaration of a Final Dividend of
RMBO0.03 per share (tax inclusive) for the year ended 31 December
2024 (for the year ended 31 December 2023: RMBO0.03 per share
(tax inclusive)).

DOWELL SERVICE GROUP CO. LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW
Summary and review for 2024

In 2024, in light of the complex and challenging external environment and
increasingly fierce market competition, the Group poised for innovation,
adhered to an innovation-driven approach and was strategically focused.
While continuously deepening its traditional advantage areas, the Group
actively expands into the comprehensive non-residential sector, develops
specialised service capabilities, and lays out new business tracks to drive
the upgrading and iteration of service content. The Group is committed
not only to innovating its own services, but also to empowering the
overall development of the property industry, working together with
industry partners to reach new heights. As at 31 December 2024, the
Group managed 625 property projects with an aggregated GFA under
management of approximately 62.0 million sg.m. across 80 cities in the
PRC. Additionally, the Group was contracted to manage 648 property
projects with an aggregated GFA of approximately 69.4 milion sg.m. in 82
cities.

The Group is a comprehensive service provider with national first-class
qualifications, adhering to the brand development strategy of “Big Property
Full Value”. It is committed to promoting refinement, specialisation, and
intelligence of urban development, aspiring to become a respected urban
comprehensive service provider with unique business value. The Group
features in providing diversified business service and is strategically
positioned across four major regions: Southwest China, West China, Central
China, and East China. It encompasses six business areas: residential
comprehensive services, community value-added services, internationally
customised services, healthcare and wellness services, multi-business
services, and urban comprehensive services, forming a comprehensive
service advantage with parallel tracks for residential and non-residential
sectors, empowered by a value-added industrial chain.

Against the backdrop of intensified market competition in property services,
the Group sustained confidence and brought returns to shareholders,
partners, and employees through its robust strategic focus and ongoing
external development efforts. In May 2024, the Group was awarded the title
of “2024 Top 100 Property Management Enterprises in China” by the China
Index Academy, with its overall industry strength ranking improving by one
position as compared to 2023, at 15th.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

AIEJE' w A B2 0 AT

Business model

The Group is a long-established property management service provider
offering comprehensive services for a wide range of property projects in the

PRC. The Group provides diversified services through three main business
lines:
1. City Operations Services; 1.
2. Lifestyle Services, including, among others: 2.
(@ Community Events Planning Services;
(o) Management and Agency Services;
(© utility maintenance services; and
() other lifestyle services; and
3. FATH and Other Comprehensive Services, including, among others: 3.
(@) Foreign and Medical Related Services;
(b) Sales Assistance Services;
(© Preliminary Planning Services;
(d) digital and intelligent technology services;
(e maintenance and rectification services;
) Comprehensive Elderly Care Services; and

other related comprehensive value-added services.

08 DOWELL SERVICE GROUP CO. LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group believes that its City Operations Services business line serves as
the basis for the Group to generate revenue, expand its business scale as
well as increase its customer base for its Lifestyle Services and FATH and
Other Comprehensive Services. The Group continuously enhances its FATH
and Other Comprehensive Services to establish a wide range of service
capabilities in order to establish and cultivate business relationships with its
customers, which enables the Group to have a competitive advantage in
securing engagements for City Operations Services. The comprehensive
range of the Group’s Lifestyle Services business line helps the Group
enhance its relationship with customers and residents in the property
projects that it manages, and thus improve their satisfaction and loyalty. The
Directors believe that these three business lines complement each other and
will continue to enable the Group to gain greater market share and expand
its business presence in the PRC.

City Operations Services
Overview

The Group manages residential and non-residential properties sourced
from Dima Group, Affiiated Companies and Independent Third Parties (as
defined below). During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue from
City Operations Services amounted to approximately RMB879.5 million,
representing an increase of approximately 0.8%, as compared to the
corresponding period of 2023, which is mainly due to the slight increase in
the GFA under management during the Reporting Period.

Sustaining business scale and size of property portfolio

The Group adheres to solidify its market position and expand its property
portfolio and business scale through multiple channels, such as organic
growth and strategic acquisitions and investment. During the Reporting
Period, the GFA under management of projects sourced from Dima Group
reached approximately 17.6 million sg.m., representing an increase by
approximately 4.8% as compared to the same as at 31 December 2023.
The GFA under management of projects sourced from Independent Third
Parties was approximately 31.5 million sg.m., representing a decrease by
approximately 1.4% as compared to the same as at 31 December 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

AIEJE' w A B2 0 AT

By source of property projects:

The table below sets out the Group’s total revenue from City Operations
Services during the two years ended 31 December 2024, and GFA under
management and number of projects based on the sources from which the
Group obtained the relevant property projects as at 31 December 2023 and

2024.

Year ended 31 December 2024

BB KIRE D

TREH|AREEE 20245612 A31 8 IERIEFE
B W) 2 59 T AR 76 4B Wi e N AN 2 [ 722023 4F 122024

F12A1 AL BEYEER KREID

D E A

miENIER A -

As at 31 December 2024

Year ended 31 December 2023 As at 31 December 2023

HENUF12R31 L EE R04E12831B HENNF12R31 L EE R2023%12831B

Numberof ~ GFA under Numberof ~ GFA under

Revenue (%) projects - management’ Revenue (%) pojcts  menagement”

rERE TERs

i %  EA%A 14 Ui (g BAEE i d
(estated)

(AMB009) (000sqgm)  (AMBUNY) (000sqm)
(#7)

AEEFT) (FEER)  (AREFT) (FErH)

Property profscts sourced fom Dima Group” FEmELRNNERE" 397,199 451 103 17579 417766 179 % 16,780

Property projects sourced from Afated Comparies” PNk 50,887 58 2 3909 49563 57 20 3909

Property projects sourced fom Independent Third Partes” — BEBUE=henfEER" 431,401 491 2%0 31,509 404820 464 2 31950

Total Bt 879,487 100.0 383 52,997 872,149 1000 7 52639

Notes: Bat -

1. The above breakdown of revenue generated from the provision of City 1. REMERTREEEM W EBEATER AR
Operations Services is based on the sources from which the Group SEEFREYFEEENRE  MIEREE
obtained the relevant property projects instead of the sources which the BRKENR -0l tREaSEEE
Group derived revenue from. For example, for a property project sourced —EAWEEEMES  ASEAERTRABR
from Dima Group, the Group may derive income from Dima Group, HEHEEE EFREFZESEFHA -
property owners and property owners’ associations at different stages, MATEBERIARTEEMERTERN T
depending on factors such as whether residential properties have been EFIRFEFZESRACKIUERE -
delivered to property owners and whether property owners’ associations
have been established.

2. This includes GFA where the City Operations Services were provided 2. HABEARAEESE0ER S 2N A

by joint ventures and/or associate companies of the Group. As at 31
December 2024, the total GFA under management of property projects
managed by joint ventures and/or associate companies of the Group were
approximately 4.7 million sq.m.

DOWELL SERVICE GROUP CO. LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group manages a diversified portfolio of property projects, consisting
of: (i) residential properties; and (i) non-residential properties, such as office
buildings, shopping malls, schools, government facilities, public services
facilities and industrial parks.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s GFA under management of
residential properties was approximately 39.8 milion sg.m., accounting for
approximately 75.0% of the Group’s City Operations Service’s GFA under
management, which grew by approximately 4.5 percentage points as
compared to the same period in 2023.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s GFA under management of
non-residential properties was approximately 13.2 million sg.m., accounting
for approximately 25.0% of the Group’s City Operations Service's GFA
under management, which decreased by approximately 4.5 percentage
points as compared to the same period in 2023.

The table below sets forth the Group’s total revenue from City Operations
Services during the two years ended 31 December 2024, and GFA under
management and number of projects as at 31 December 2023 and 2024:

Year ended 31 December 2024
BENMENRNBLEE

EEErmE DM

AEFEEEZHFLYWEBBAS  BRENEED
% R(iJEEEDE (PR AET REES - 24 -
RAT a5 e ~ AHRIE R TEE) -
M2024F12A318  AEBEEEMEMTEREE
HEA#%39.88 &8 F A K (W AREBEMEN TR
BHEEEEmBERNL75.0% @ B2023F R HE K
#aBMEE D e

M2024F12A318 * REBFFTEMENTER
EEBAHIB2EEBE K EASEYEMRT
AR 75 75 & B2 SR T FE M) £925.0% + 8820234 [A) H R
DHI4 5(EE 5B e

TRE A EEHE2024F12 4318 LR EFE
F) P2 IR T AR 7S 48 Uk 25 K A 20234F 22024412 A
STHMEEREMBENBEHE ¢

As at 31 December 2024
R2024E12831B

Year ended 31 December 2023
BENBENRNBLEE

As at 31 December 2023
R2023E12831F

Numberof ~ GFA under Numberof ~ GFA under
Revenue % projects  management Revenue % projects — management
L6 %  HEME EEREER e %  EREA EEEZER

(estated)
(AMB009) (000sqgm)  (AMBUNY) (000sqm)
ARRFE) (FEEK) (NEAFT) (FF54)
Residentdl properties fia 600,755 683 %47 39,752 603,122 692 29 37,106
Non-residental properfies FEzhz 218732 kil 13 18245 269027 308 118 15,533
Totd &5 879,487 1000 33 52,997 872,149 1000 u 52,639
2024 EE RECHMBTELRBEEERGERLA
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Management Discussion and Anal
""IEJE SR

Sustaining geographical presence
By geographical presence:

As at 31 December 2024, the Group operated across China and managed
383 property projects with an aggregated GFA under management of
approximately 53.0 million sg.m. in 60 cities in China.

The table below sets out the Group’s total revenue from City Operations
Services during the two years ended 31 December 2024, and GFA under
management and number of projects as at 31 December 2023 and 2024

ySis

ll‘E fﬁ‘szﬁlﬁ

R IR AR IE B 5

MR2024F12A31H » AEBRFABEZHEERE
IE3S3E W EEE - A BIC0E M MR BEEE
SEBERHIS30EEFH XK -

TREH| AR EFEF2024F12 A31 8 IEREFE
H) 3 IR T AR 7S 4R Uk 25 K2 A 20234F 22024412 A
STEMEEREMBENBEHE

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December 2024  Asat 31 December 2024  December2023  As at 31 December 2023
HE2024%F EHZ20235
12A31BLEE 12024%12A31R 12A3NBLEE #2023%F12A31H
Number of GFA under Number of GFA under
Revenue projects  management Revenue projects  management
g BRHE EEREEE W BRHE HERERE
(restateq)
(RMB000) (000sqm)  (RMBOO) (000sg.m)
(#E7))
AE¥TFT) (FEBH)  (ARHFT) (FEHR)
Chongaing EE 241,825 91 1,771 236,306 83 10,748
Sichuan Province mi% 171,702 78 10,899 165,605 67 10,187
Hubei Province hiblg) 140,997 43 8,911 129,573 39 7,851
Zhejiang Province 14 105,369 43 5,936 101,782 43 5818
Hunan Province il 68,786 36 4,651 91,377 37 8,629
Shanghai i) 32,067 12 1,339 32,469 i 1,06
Jangsu Province &% 20,845 15 1,053 31,039 13 1,862
Others it 88,896 65 8,437 84,999 54 6,248
Total e 879,487 383 52,997 872,149 347 52,639
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Lifestyle Services

The Group provides Lifestyle Services to property owners and residents
under management, which mainly comprise, among others, (i) Community
Events Planning Services; (i) Management and Agency Services; (i) utility
maintenance services; and (iv) other lifestyle related services.

During the Reporting Period, revenue derived from Lifestyle Services
decreased by approximately 3.8% to approximately RMB213.6 milion as
compared to about RMB222.0 million in the same period last year, mainly
due to the decline in wilingness to purchase real estate resulting from
the overall slowdown in the real estate industry, resulting in a decrease in
revenue derived from car parking spaces and property sales services. During
the Reporting Period, revenue derived from Lifestyle Services accounted for
approximately 14.0% of total revenue representing a decrease of about 0.5
percentage points as compared with the same period of 2023.

FATH and Other Comprehensive Services

The Group provides FATH and Other Comprehensive Services, which
mainly comprise services to foreign-owned enterprises, foreign embassies,
international schools, hospitals and medical facilities, as well as other
comprehensive services, which mainly includes, among others, (i) Foreign
and Medical Related Services; (i) Sales Assistance Services; (i) Preliminary
Planning Services; (iv) digital and intelligent technology services; (v)
maintenance and rectification services; (vij Comprehensive Elderly Care
Services; and (vii) other related comprehensive services.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group operated across China and managed
242 foreign-related and medical-related service projects, with an aggregated
GFA under management of approximately 9.0 milion sg.m. in 30 cities in
China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

""IEJE' w A B2 0 AT

The table below sets out the Group’s revenue attributable to FATH and
Other Comprehensive Services for the two years ended 31 December 2024,
including the respective GFA under management and number of projects
based on each Foreign and Medical Related Services categories of the
Group as at 31 December 2023 and 2024:

Year ended 31 December 2024
HENUF12A3AILEE

TR AR E l%z§2024¢1zﬂ31 HIEREFE
N - B BESRARE RS - BEASE
B R20234F 2024512 A31 B ol - B8
RSN HEEDMNEERELABERIEEEE -

Asat 31 December 2024 Year ended 31 December 2023 As at 31 December 2023
R024E12A31A HENNE12A31ALEE A023E12A31A

Numberof ~ GFA under Numberof ~ GFA under
Revenue % projects  management Revenue % projects  management
& %  EREA HEEEEE g %  REHE TEREEE

(estated)
(RMBYRY) (000sqm)  (AUBLY) (000s9m)

(#27)
AREFR) (FEER)  (AEEFT) (FEr#)
Comprehensive foregn affais related senvices FGARE 188,228 40 1% 6,99 177159 08 185 5889
Comprenensive mecical related senvices Ef%éﬁ&ﬁ 88,627 203 a7 2,036 71,59 165 I 1,671
Comprehensive dgita and teligent technlogy senvices - B R AR RE 11,216 26 - - 209 53 - -
Comprehensive Eerly Care Senices é%iﬁéﬁ&ﬁ 53,276 122 - - BT 104 - -
Comprehensive consutation management senices HHERRE 95,779 79 - - 117249 770 . -
Total e 8712 1000 L) 9,032 434,080 1000 26 7,560

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s GFA under management for
comprehensive foreign affairs related services was approximately 7.0 million
sg.m. and the Group’s GFA under management for comprehensive medical
related services was approximately 2.0 million sg.m.

During the Reporting Period, revenue derived from comprehensive foreign
affairs related services increased by approximately 6.2%, to approximately
RMB188.2 million as compared to approximately 177.2 million in the same
period last year, mainly attributable to the continuous expansion in the
Group’s business, including the increase in the number of property projects
and GFA under management for such services during the Reporting Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Reporting Period, revenue derived from comprehensive medical
related services increased by approximately 23.8% to approximately
RMB88.6 million as compared to approximately RMB71.6 million in
the same period last year, primarily due to expansion of the Group’s
comprehensive medical care related services in hospitals.

During the Reporting Period, revenue derived from comprehensive digital
and intelligent technology services decreased by approximately 51.3% to
approximately RMB11.2 million as compared to approximately RMB23.0
million in the same period last year, mainly due to () completion of the
Group’s digital and smart projects during the Reporting Period; and (i) a
decrease in corresponding ongoing projects as compared to last year.

During the Reporting Period, revenue derived from Comprehensive Elderly
Care Services increased by approximately 18.3% to approximately RMB53.3
million as compared to approximately RMB45.0 million in the same period
last year, mainly due to an increase in occupancy rate of the Group’s elderly
care projects during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, revenue derived from comprehensive
consultation management services decreased by approximately 18.3% to
approximately RMB95.8 million as compared to RMB117.2 milion in the
same period last year, primarily attributable to the decrease in completion
of the Group’s provision of Sales Assistance Services, Preliminary Planning
Services and maintenance and rectification services during the Reporting
Period, resulting in a corresponding decrease in the revenue derived from
such services.

During the Reporting Period, revenue derived from FATH and Other
Comprehensive Services accounted for approximately 28.5% of total
revenue, representing an increase of approximately 0.1 percentage points as
compared with the same period of 2023.
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RETROSPECTIVE RESTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

On 21 June 2024, the Company acquired approximately 90.73% equity
interests in Shanghai Evergreen, and retrospectively restated the financial
data of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023. Please refer
to (i) the announcements of the Company dated 19 April 2024 and 29 April
2024; and (i) the circular of the Company dated 3 June 2024 for details of
such acquisition. Please also refer to notes 1, 3 and 32 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report for details.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue increased by
approximately RMB2.0 million or approximately 0.1% to approximately
RMB1,530.2 million from approximately RMB1,528.2 milion for the year
ended 31 December 2023. The increase in revenue for the Reporting Period
was mainly attributable to the expansion in the Group’s business scale.

The table below sets out a breakdown of the Group’s total revenue by
business lines during the two years ended 31 December 2024:

RATEE2023F12A31H
I FEMBEMNEHNES

¢

RAQBIE R2024F6 21BN LIBEFEH LY
90.73%& 1 + I ¥ A A B8 2202312 A31H 1E
FENMISERETENES - BlZKEEE
RF1E - B2 AR B H A2024F4 198 &
2024F4 F298 B A & ¢ K(i)A A7) B Hj A2024
FOA3AMMBK - BN B LM ARF RS W
AR FEL - 332 °

B %5 1B R
iy 2

RER - NEBMREEINNARE208ET
A0 1%E M A RKE1,530.26 8 T © ME[ZE2023
F12A31B EFERIBHARKE1,5282H8 T ©
HWEMKEIEMFEER AR A EEIBREBLR
RPTEL

TREHNEZ2024F 12 A31 B IEWEFEAEE
BEBRE D AU ERAAE -

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A3ALEE

2024 2023

20245 2023F
Revenue Percentage Revenue Percentage
I B e Bt

(restated)
(RMB’000) (%) (RMB'000) (%)

(B Z7))
(AR¥%Fr) (%) (AR¥Fr) (%)
City Operations Services W T R 879,487 575 872,149 57.1
Lifestyle Services EFEE RS 213,593 14.0 222,028 145
FATH and Other Comprehensive Senvices  #9h + Bl « BBEZGARE 437,121 285 434,080 284
Total @5t 1,530,201 100.0 1,528,257 100.0
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cost of sales

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s cost of sales increased by
approximately RMB6.9 million or approximately 0.5% to approximately
RMB1,322.3 million from approximately RMB1,315.4 milion for the year
ended 31 December 2023. The increase was mainly attributable to the
increase in the Group’s subcontracting costs since the Group outsourced
more labour intensive services, such as security services.

Gross profit

As a result of the aforementioned key factors, the Group’s gross profit
decreased by approximately 2.3% from approximately RMB212.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately RMB207.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2024.

The Group’s gross profit margin by business lines is set forth below:

EEErmE DM

$HE KA

RRER - NEBMHEMR A NN ARECIR
EILA05%ENARKA3223EEL  MEZE
2023F12AB1H IEFEAIBNARK1,315488
Lo ZEMEZEARAEEN D BAAAL B R
SRR (O RARTS) BIFNEIE DN 38 A0 ©

ER
ER EREBRE - AEENEH G 8 E023F

12A31H IFFEMH AR 21208 B LE 24
2.3%% B E2024F 12 AR L EEMH AR
2079B&E L °

AEBOENRREBREDHINNT

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE

2024 2023

20245 20234F

(restateq)

(#xE3l)

City Operations Services Y EEk T AR 1% 12.0% 12.0%
Lifestyle Services EMTHEERRTS 21.2% 21.7%
FATH and Other Comprehensive Services WM B - BESERE IR 13.0% 13.9%
Overall gross profit margin BEENX 13.6% 13.9%
During the Reporting Period, the Group’s gross profit margin was REREH - REBREF R A413.6%  BHE

approximately 13.6%, representing a decrease of approximately 0.3
percentage points from approximately 13.9% for the year ended 31
December 2023. The decrease was mainly attributable a decrease in
revenue from businesses with higher gross profit margins as a result of an
increase in competition in the industry.

The gross profit margin of City Operations Services was approximately
12.0% and remained stable during the Reporting Period as compared to the
year ended 31 December 2023.

202312 A31H IEF E K #J13.9%)8 2 £90.318 &
DE RO EERRITERF NBERER X
BEEBRARD

YER T RGN EF R B412.0%  RBEHRA
A F2023F 12 A31 B IEFEMRLIRIFETE ©
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The gross profit margin of Lifestyle Services was approximately 21.2%,
representing a decrease from approximately 21.7% for the year ended 31
December 2023. The decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in
revenue derived from car parking spaces and property sales services, which
has higher gross profit margin.

The gross profit margin of FATH and Other Comprehensive Services
was approximately 13.0%, representing a decrease from approximately
13.9% for the year ended 31 December 2023. The decrease was mainly
attributable to continuous provision of quality foreign-related comprehensive
services to certain customers whom had budget cuts, which resulted in a
decrease in gross profit margin.

Other income

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s other income amounted to
approximately RMB8.2 miillion, representing a decrease of approximately
14.2% from approximately RMB9.6 million for the year ended 31 December
20283. The decrease was primarily due to reduction in government subsidies
during the Reporting Period.

Other net (losses)/gains

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded other net losses
of approximately RMBO0.1 million, as compared to other net gains of
approximately RMB0.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Selling and marketing expenses

The Group’s selling and marketing expenses primarily consist of promotion
expenses and employee benefit expenses. During the Reporting Period,
the Group’s seling and marketing expenses decreased to approximately
RMB35.4 million, as compared to approximately RMB38.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023. Such decrease was due to the Group’s
active implementation of cost reduction and efficiency enhancement policies.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Administrative expenses

During the Reporting Period and the year ended 31 December 2023,
the Group’s administrative expenses remained stable and amounted to
approximately RMB169.0 million.

Net impairment losses on financial assets

The Group’s net impairment losses on financial assets primarily included
the impairment provisions for losses arising from potential bad debts and
bad debts written off in respect of trade, bills and other receivables. During
the Reporting Period, the Group’s net impairment losses on financial assets
amounted to approximately RMB79.3 million, as compared to approximately
RMB9.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2023, which was mainly
due to prudent considerations made by the Company for the provision of
impairment of trade receivables and other receivables from the Group’s
real estate developer customers and certain third party customers which
encountered liquidity issues due to continuous sluggish performance of the
real estate industry.

Finance cost, net

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s net finance cost amounted to
approximately RMB5.9 miillion, representing a decrease of approximately
8.4% from approximately RMB6.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2023. Such fluctuation was mainly due to (i) the decrease in interest expense
on the Group’s lease liabilities; and (i) the decrease in interest expense due
to the repayment of borrowings by the Group during the Reporting Period.

(Loss)/profit before income tax expense

Loss before income tax of the Group amounted to approximately RMB65.5
million for the Reporting Period. as compared to profit before income tax
expense of approximately RMB7.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2023. Such change from profit to loss was mainly attributable to the
aforementioned impairment of trade receivables and other receivables.
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Income tax (credit)/expense

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s income tax credit amounted to
approximately RMB3.9 million, as compared to income tax expense of
approximately RMB3.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2023. Such
change resulted from the loss recorded by the Group during the Reporting
Period, which resulted in deferred income asset.

Intangible assets

The Group’s intangible assets mainly comprised customer relationships
and goodwill of the Group during the Reporting Period. As at 31 December
2024, the Group’s intangible assets remained stable at approximately
RMB287.6 million.

Trade, bills and other receivables

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and
bills receivables amounted to approximately RMB713.8 million, representing
an increase of approximately 4.9% from approximately RMB680.3 million
as at 31 December 2023. As at 31 December 2024, the provision for
impairment of trade and bills receivables amounted to approximately
RMB118.8 million, representing an increase of approximately 173.3%
from approximately RMB43.5 miilion as at 31 December 2023. As at 31
December 2024, the carrying amounts of the Group’s other receivables
amounted to approximately RMB51.4 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 3.4% from approximately RMB53.2 million as at 31
December 2023. As at 31 December 2024, the provision for impairment of
other receivables amounted to approximately RMB4.0 million, representing
an increase of approximately 183.3% from approximately RMB1.4 million as
at 31 December 2023. The increase in the carrying amount of trade and bills
receivables was mainly due to an increase in the number of trade receivable
turnover days as a result of the Group’s certain customers implementing
tighter cash flow measures. The Group will continue to pay attention to the
balance of trade receivables, increase risk control measures and carry out
specific measures for recollection of trade receivables.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Contract assets

The Group’s contract assets mainly represents the Group’s right to
consideration for work performed but unbilled for provision of maintenance
and renovation services. As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have
any contract assets as it did not have any completed but unbilled projects.

Trade payables

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s trade payables amounted to
approximately RMB317.9 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 5.9% from approximately RMB300.1 million as at 31
December 2023, mainly due to the Group adjusting its cost structure and
payment cycle during the Reporting Period.

Contract liabilities

The Group’s contract liabilities mainly represent the advance payments
made by customers while the underlying services, primarily City Operations
Services, have yet to be provided and thus the relevant revenue has not
been recognised. As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s contract liabilities
amounted to approximately RMB336.4 million, representing an increase
of approximately 13.8% from approximately RMB295.7 million as at 31
December 2023, which was mainly due to the Group’s policy of optimising
prepayment of property management fees during the Reporting Period,
resulting in an increase in the number of customers who paid property
management fees in advance.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach towards
its treasury policy. The Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position
to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and
other commitments can meet the funding requirements of the Group in the
foreseeable future.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s principal use of the cash was for
working capital, which was mainly funded from cash flow generated from
operations.

As at 31 December 2024, cash and cash equivalents of the Group
was approximately RMB261.7 million, as compared with approximately
RMB256.6 million as at 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s total equity amounted to
approximately RMB409.2 million, representing a decrease of approximately
19.3% from RMB506.9 million as at 31 December 2023.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to ensure
that the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising
the return to its shareholders through optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remained unchanged throughout the
Reporting Period.

At the end of the Reporting Period, the gearing ratio (defined as total debt

divided by total equity) of the Group increased to approximately 22.2% from
approximately 19.8% at 31 December of 20283.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EXCHANGE RATE RISK

The Group conducts its business in RMB and has limited exposure to
the foreign exchange risk. However, due to the successful listing of the H
Shares on the Stock Exchange in April 2022, any changes in value of HK
dollars and the interest rates will affect the performance of the Group. The
Group currently does not engage in any hedging activities designated or
intended to manage foreign exchange rate risk. Therefore, the Group will
closely monitor the exchange rate risk and interest rate risk concerned,
actively explore foreign exchange hedging options with major banks and use
financial instruments to hedge against such risks when necessary.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 5,903 employees (31 December
2023: 5,760 employees (restated)). During the Reporting Period, the total
staff costs recognised as expenses were approximately RMB735.2 million
(as at 31 December 2023: RMB741.0 million (restated)).

In terms of talent training, the Group will further enhance its employee
training program with internal and external resources. The employee training
programs primarily cover key areas in the Group’s business operations,
which provide continuous training to its existing employees at different levels
to specialise and strengthen their skill sets.

The Group adopts remuneration policies similar to its peers in the industry.
The remuneration payable to its staff is fixed by reference to the duties and
the prevailing market rates in the region. Discretionary performance bonus
after assessments is paid to employees to reward their contributions. The
Group is subject to social insurance contribution plans or other pension
schemes prescribed by the local governments and is required to pay on
behalf of its employees, a monthly social insurance funds covering pension
fund, medical insurance, work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance
and unemployment insurance, and the housing provident fund, or to
contribute regularly to mandatory provident fund schemes on behalf of its
employees.

In determining the remuneration and compensation packages of the
Directors, Supervisors and senior management, the Group will take into
account salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and their
respective responsibilities and performance of the Group.
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BORROWINGS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any outstanding
borrowings (as at 31 December 2023: approximately RMB9.3 milion, which
had interests rates ranging from 3.35% to 5.5% per annum).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any pledge of assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities (as at 31 December 2023: nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had no capital commitments.

OUTLOOK FOR 2025

In 2025, the Group will continue to adhere to its brand development
strategy of “Big Property e Full Value”, focusing on long-term sustainable
development based on quality. By capitalising on urban renewal trends
and people’s aspirations for a better life, the Group aims to promote urban
development towards refinement, specialisation, and intelligence, aspiring
to become a respected urban comprehensive service provider with unique
business value.
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Focus on deepening the market, enhancing quality
and efficiency to achieve growth with quality

In terms of market strategy, the Group will focus on urban
deepening, business sector specialisation, and quality improvement,
dedicated in building a green market platform. It will implement
the “Four Transformations” strategy of “service standardisation,
standardised products, product branding, and brand value
enhancement,” forming competitive flagship products that improve
market recognition, reduce difficulty in obtaining new customers, and
enhance customer recognition. By planning a high-quality market
development structure, deeply exploring surrounding resources,
enriching value-added service content, and expanding community
extension services, e€.g. home improvement and rental sales, the
Group aims to enhance users’ experience and customer loyalty,
creating safer communities with a warm neighborhood feel and
cultural value.

In terms of capability building, the Group will focus on developing a
high-performance team with strong incentives, assessments, and
capabilities, comprehensively enhancing market personnel’s skills
in business communication, project negotiation, project inspection,
and professional analysis. By retaining internal talent and attracting
industry elites, the Group will build a high-quality talent pool that
combines internal and external resources while optimising the
compensation structure for market personnel to stimulate team
vitality. Additionally, the Group will strengthen opportunity exploration
and project channel construction, implementing a bi-directional
strategy for urban clients, deepening cooperation with key channels,
continuously improving the institutional system, and optimising
the marketing toolkit. By continuously upgrading the full-process
information system for marketing, the Group will enhance operational
efficiency and service capability, providing robust support for market
expansion.
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Seek a second growth curve and build resilient
market growth capabilities

The Group will actively explore new business opportunities, focusing
on developing integrated facilities management (IFM) capabilities
in specialised areas. By integrating facility management, resource
optimisation, and service innovation, the Group will provide
customised service solutions to its clients. Building on this, the
Group will explore emerging business opportunities, such as catering
and nutrition catering, offering healthy, nutritious, and efficient dining
services tailored to specific venues, e.g. industrial parks and medical
institutions, to meet diversified market demands. At the same time,
the Group will continue to expand into the Southeast Asian market,
leveraging the benefits of rapid regional economic development
to deeply explore local market potential and identify new business
growth opportunities, facilitating breakthroughs and strategic layouts
in new business areas and injecting new momentum into the
Group’s long-term sustainable development.

Additionally, the Group will establish an online WeChat ecosystem
and offline locations and stalls, combining horizontal and vertical
reasonable mechanism design with user-friendly system tools to
accumulate user data, expand the coverage of new retail businesses,
and drive quality growth in this sector.

With respect to healthcare sector, the Group will comprehensively
promote services around home elderly care, community elderly
care, institutional elderly care, and hospital logistics services, tailoring
service solutions for clients. Beyond basic property-related services,
it will also provide centralised delivery management, environmental
and medical waste management, medical fabric washing and
distribution leasing and sales, and patient care center services,
creating an integrated service system and one-stop logistics service
center which is demand oriented.

Moreover, the Group’s sub-brand, “Evergreen” (& & ), focuses
on integrated medical and elderly care services, aiming to create
vibrant senior wellness apartments and care institutions for elderly
individuals, providing comprehensive solutions covering clothing,
food, housing, and transportation to create a high-quality, refined
elderly living experience.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Enhance technological empowerment to support
digital transformation

The Group will drive service product innovation through cutting-edge
technologies, such as the Internet, big data, cloud computing,
and artificial intelligence, accelerating the digital and intelligent
transformation to create high-tech smart properties and continuously
enhance service capabilities. The Group will launch the “Xuanhai
Technology” sub-brand, using AloT (The Artificial Intelligence of
Things) technology to empower traditional industries, facilitating
intelligent upgrades and building comprehensive solutions covering
smart properties, smart communities, smart parks, and smart
cities. This solution will provide one-stop smart services across
various aspects, including security management, life services, traffic
management, government affairs management, public services, and
industrial management, creating a safe, convenient, and intelligent
future living experience for urban residents and enhancing the quality
of urban life.

The Group fully embraces artificial intelligence technology, engages
in deep cooperation with IFLYTEK (%} AXF7) and Feishu (7R
£) to continuously implement intelligent applications tailored to
diversified business and management scenarios. At the same time,
the Group will comprehensively refine its data assets, utilising big
data technology to build a new generation of data middle platform,
gradually launch data metrics covering all business scenarios and
employing Al technology for automated operational analysis, laying a
solid foundation for the Group’s digital operations and empowering
the realisation and implementation of strategic goals.
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Optimise the operational model to enhance service
quality and satisfaction

The Group consistently prioritizes customer-centricity, focusing on
the business needs of people and cities, and is dedicated in providing
a better quality and more efficient service experience. The Group
will maintain customer satisfaction as its core goal, continuously
upgrading service quality to offer more detailed, comprehensive,
and caring integrated services to a diversified clientele, meeting
personalised needs in different scenarios, and building an excellent
service reputation.

In terms of operational models, the Group will be guided by
operational goals, optimising the grading standards for service
products, upgrading the management system, integrating quality
supplier resources, and establishing a “highly integrated collaborative
operation” model to comprehensively enhance its service capacity
and efficiency. The Group will strengthen the management of project
lifecycle nodes, ensuring that each link precisely meets customers’
needs. By establishing a regular customer feedback mechanism, the
Group will listen to customers’ voices, and ensure every suggestion
is promptly responded to and implemented, creating a more agile
and efficient operational system. For different business formats and
client groups, the Group will develop differentiated operational control
measures, implement positive customer management systems,
enhance brand perception, and continuously improve brand image
and owner loyalty, creating long-term value for customers.

Additionally, the Group will continue to implement the Amoeba
business model (FiKE 4 E L), combining actual operating
scenarios of front-line business units to establish a self-operated
mechanism that deeply explores operational potential, stimulating
team awareness and vitality. By decentralising operational
responsibilities to the front line, the Group can respond more flexibly
to market changes, optimise resource allocation, reduce operational
costs, enhance overall operational efficiency, and continuously
strengthen brand influence and market competitiveness.
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Enhance organisational capability, strengthen talent
development and cultural identity

In terms of organisational change, the Group will continue optimising
its organisational structure by identifying issues in organisational
control and structure systematically, clarifying job roles and functional
interfaces, and promoting organisational streamlining and efficient
collaboration. The Group will reduce structural redundancy, enhance
operational efficiency, and accelerate the establishment of a human
resources shared services center to create a standardised shared
operational mechanism, improving service ratio and further reducing
management costs, thereby enhancing overall organisational
management effectiveness.

In talent development, the Group will continue to solidify its talent
management and training system, using the “Original Aspiration
Together” platform to build consensus among talents and focusing
on “Elite Together” to delve into key businesses, promoting dual
enhancement of individual capabilities and team collaboration.
The Group will gradually improve its team-building efforts, aligning
them with project development needs to achieve a comprehensive
upgrade from individual capabilities to organisational capabilities.
Additionally, the Group will fully implement the “Wings of Original”
talent development program, constructing a “Dowell Competency
Model” to ensure new employees meet competency standards
within a year, laying a solid talent foundation for the Group’s
long-term development and achieving closed-loop management
of the talent supply chain to provide ongoing talent support for the
Group’s strategic goals.

In terms of cultural identity, the Group will focus on the “Original
Aspiration Together”, “Ba Zhang Community” and “Dowell
Community of Knowledge” as its core platforms to strengthen
cultural guidance and atmosphere creation. By utilising digital tools
such as the “Dowell broadcasting account” and Feishu, the Group
will establish efficient cultural communication channels to promote
comprehensive implementation of cultural concepts. By creating a
forward-looking cultural atmosphere, the Group will unify consensus
among all employees, enhancing team cohesion and centripetal
force, injecting powerful cultural momentum into the Group’s
high-quality development.
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In the future, the Group will continue to focus on enhancing
organisational capability, leveraging talent development, and
strengthening cultural identity, creating an efficient, collaborative, and
vibrant organisational ecosystem that provides solid organisational
support and cultural backing for the realisation of the Group’s
strategic goals.

USE OF PROCEEDS RAISED FROM INITIAL PUBLIC
OFFERING AND OVER-ALLOTMENT OPTION

The H Shares were successfully listed on the Stock Exchange on the Listing
Date with 16,666,667 new H Shares issued and, upon the partial exercise
of over-allotment option, 16,990,867 H Shares were issued in aggregate.
Net Proceeds amounted to approximately HK$139.8 milion in total, after
deducting the underwriting fees and relevant expenses. As at 31 December
2024, the Group has used approximately HK$131.4 million of the Net
Proceeds.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements (the “UOP
Announcements”) dated 23 June 2022, 23 August 2022, 13 December
2023 and 31 March 2025 regarding, among others, change in use of Net
Proceeds, the Board resolved to alter the timeframe for the use of the Net
Proceeds and reallocate the balance of the Net Proceeds. Please refer to
the UOP Announcements for further details. The Board will continuously
assess the plan for the use of the Net Proceeds and may revise or amend
such plan when necessary to cope with the changing market conditions.
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The table below sets out the details of actual usage of the Net Proceeds as

at 31 December 2024

Management Discussion and Analysis
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MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS

The Group entered into an equity transfer agreement (as supplemented
by a supplemental agreement) on 19 April 2024 to acquire approximately
90.73% of the equity interests in Shanghai Evergreen Social Care Enterprise
Development Co., Ltd.* (“Shanghai Evergreen”) at the consideration of
RMB28.0 million. Shanghai Evergreen and its subsidiaries (collectively,
“Shanghai Evergreen Group”) are principally engaged in the medical
care and elderly care services industry in the PRC. Relying on the four
main elderly care products of residential community, institutional elderly
care, nursing and rehabilitation institutions and specialised institutions, the
Shanghai Evergreen Group focuses on the layout of high-end institutional
elderly care and community home elderly care projects. The Shanghai
Evergreen Group currently operates more than 14 elderly care institutional
projects, manages more than 50 community service stations, operates
more than 3,000 beds and has more than 20,000 customers. As at the
date of this annual report, the acquisition of Shanghai Evergreen had been
completed and Shanghai Evergreen had become a direct non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Further details regarding the acquisition of
Shanghai Evergreen are disclosed in the announcements of the Company
dated 19 April 2024 and 29 April 2024 and the circular of the Company
dated 3 June 2024.

The Group also entered into another equity transfer agreement on
20 November 2024 to acquire the entire equity interests in Chengdu
Dongyuhong Commercial Management Co., Ltd.* (“Chengdu
Dongyuhong”) at the consideration of RMB59.5 million. Chengdu
Dongyuhong is principally engaged in business management and real
estate consulting, and holds approximately 83.48% ownership of 3rd to
11th Floor, Building 1, No. 4 of Xinhong North Branch Road, Chenghua
District, Chengdu City, the PRC, which is used as an elderly care centre by
the Group. As at the date of this annual report, the acquisition of Chengdu
Dongyuhong had been completed and Chengdu Dongyuhong had become
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Further details
regarding the acquisition of Chengdu Dongyuhong are disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 20 November 2024 and the circular
of the Company dated 6 January 2025.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other material investments,

acquisitions or disposal of subsidiaries, associated companies or joint
ventures during the Reporting Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the Reporting Period and up to the date of
the annual report, save for the completion of the acquisition of Chengdu
Dongyuhong, there were no significant events affecting the Group.

FINAL DIVIDEND

In view of the business growth of the Group and the support of the
Shareholders, the Board recommended the declaration of a Final Dividend
of RMBO0.083 per share (tax inclusive) for the year ended 31 December 2024
(for the year ended 31 December 2023: RMBO0.03 per share (tax inclusive)).

The dividend distribution plan shall be subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the AGM to be held on Tuesday, 10 June 2025 and
such dividend is expected to be paid by Friday, 8 August 2025. The Final
Dividend payable to the Shareholders shall be declared in RMB and paid
in HK dollars, the exchange rate of which will be calculated based on the
average exchange rate of RMB against HK dollars published by the People’s
Bank of China seven days prior to the AGM. Upon approval at the AGM, the
Final Dividend will be paid by Friday, 8 August 2025.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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DIRECTORS

The Board consists of seven Directors, including two non-executive
Directors, two employee Directors, whom also act as executive Directors,
and three independent non-executive Directors.

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Luo Shaoying, aged 51, is a non-executive Director, the chairlady
of the Board, a member of the Audit Committee and the chairlady of the
Nomination Committee. She was appointed as a non-executive Director in
QOctober 2022 and was re-elected as a non-executive Director in December
2023. Ms. Luo has also been appointed as a director of Dima in May 2016.
In August 2018, Ms. Luo was redesignated as the chairlady of Dima. In
May 2019, she was also appointed as the chief executive officer of Dima.
She subsequently resigned as the chairlady of Dima in November 2022
but continued to serve as a director and chief executive officer of Dima.
Between December 2012 and July 2022, Ms. Luo was a director of Doyen
International Holdings Limited.

Ms. Luo obtained a bachelor’'s degree in business administration from
the University of Georgia, the U.S. in March 1998. She was awarded
the “Top 10 Philanthropic People” by the Chongaing Daily 2020 Annual
Charity Awards and “China Philanthropic People” in the 2020 China Annual
Conference on Philanthropy. She was also awarded the title of the “National
March 8th Red-Banner Pacesetter” by the All-China Women’s Federation in
2022.

Ms. Luo is a sister of Mr. Lo, who is a substantial shareholder of the

Company; and a sister-in-law of Ms. Chiu, who is the spouse of Mr. Lo and
a substantial shareholder of the Company.
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Directors, Supervisor
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Ms. Yi Lin, aged 52, is a non-executive Director and a member of the
Remuneration Committee. She was appointed as a non-executive Director
in December 2020 and was re-elected as a non-executive Director in
December 2023. Between December 2020 and October 2022, she was
the chairlady of the Board. She obtained a bachelor’s degree in accounting
from Chongging University in the PRC in June 1995. She further obtained
a master’s degree in accounting from Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics in the PRC in September 2002.

Ms. Yi has over 18 years of experience in financial management and
accounting. From August 2006 to December 2007, Ms. Yi served as the
general manager of the finance department of Chongging Doyen and was
responsible for coordinating the daily operation of the finance department.
Since January 2008, Ms. Yi has served as the chief finance officer of
Dongyuan Real Estate. From April 2010 to March 2012, Ms. Yi served as the
chief finance officer of Dima. From March 2012 to April 2013, Ms. Yi served
as a vice general manager and the secretary of the board of directors of
Dima. From April 2013 to May 2014, Ms. Yi served as the general manager
of Dima. Since April 2013, Ms. Yi has been a director of Dima. Since May
2014, Ms. Yi has also served as the vice chief executive officer and the head
of finance department of Dima.

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Aiming, aged 51, is an employee Director, whom also acts
as an executive Director, the vice-chairman of the Board and the co-chief
executive officer of the Company. He was appointed as an executive
Director in October 2022 and was elected as an employee Director and
re-elected as an executive Director in December 2023. He obtained a
master’s degree in professional accountancy from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong in December 2008. He also became a certified public
accountant in June 2002 and a certified internal auditor in November 2002.

Between March 2012 and May 2022, Mr. Zhang held various roles at Dima.
He served as the chief financial officer of Dima between March 2012 to April
2013, the secretary of the board of directors of Dima between April 2013
and May 2019, and a vice chief executive officer of Dima between March
2021 and May 2022. Prior to joining Dima, Mr. Zhang also worked in various
property developers and property management companies in the PRC.
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Mr. Fan Dong, aged 55, is an employee Director, whom also acts as an
executive Director, the co-chief executive officer of the Company and the
general manager of the Group. He joined the Group in August 2014 and was
appointed as an executive Director in December 2020 and was elected as
an employee Director and re-elected as an executive Director in December
2023. He is currently a director of several subsidiaries of the Company. He
obtained a bachelor’s degree in law from Southwest University of Political
Science and Law in the PRC in December 1997.

Mr. Fan has over 25 years of experience in property management industry.
Prior to joining of the Group, he served at Chongqging Xinlonghu Property
Management Co., Ltd.* (currently known as BE ¥ £ RIEEE AR A7),
a company principally engaged in the provision of property management
services, from April 1999 to August 2014.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Fan Dong is interested in
approximately 52.74% of the equity interest in Tianjin Partnership, and is
therefore deemed to be interested in 4,990,000 H Shares, representing
approximately 7.45% of the total issued share capital of the Company.

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Cai Ying, aged 50, is an independent non-executive Director, a
member of each of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. She was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in December 2020 and was re-elected as an independent non-executive
Director in December 2023. She obtained a bachelor’'s degree in electrical
technology from Guangdong University of Technology* in the PRC in
July 1997. She further obtained a master’'s degree in finance from Jinan
University* in the PRC in January 2002 and a master’s degree in business
administration from China Europe International Business School in the PRC
in August 2016.
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Ms. Cai has over 27 years of finance management and investment related
experience. Ms. Cai previously worked in the agent service department,
e-commerce department and the computer division of the Guangzhou
branch of China Southern Securities Co., Ltd.*, a company principally
engaged in provision of financial services from July 1997 to May 2004. From
May 2004 to July 2008, Ms. Cai served as a senior manager of the channel
service department of China Southern Asset Management Co., Ltd.*, a
company principally engaged in fund management and provision of financial
services. From August 2008 to July 2013, she served as the general
manager and vice general manager of the Guangzhou branch of Penghua
Fund Management Co., Ltd.*, a company principally engaged in fund
management and provision of financial services. Ms. Cai was responsible for
the sales and marketing of fund products in southern part of the PRC. From
August 2013 to September 2020, Ms. Cai served as a director and general
manager of First Seafront Fund Management Co., Ltd.* From September
2013 to July 2014 and from July 2014 to September 2020, Ms. Cai
served as an executive director and the chairman of the board and legal
representative of First Seafront Asset Management Co., Ltd.* respectively.
Since September 2020, Ms. Cai has served as the vice chairman of
First Seafront Fund Management Co., Ltd.*. Each of First Seafront Fund
Management Co., Ltd.* and First Seafront Asset Management Co., Ltd.* is a
company principally engaged in asset management and provision of financial
services, the investment portfolios of which consisted of shares of certain
property management companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.
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Mr. Wang Susheng, aged 56, is an independent non-executive Director,
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee. He was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in December 2020 and was re-elected as an independent non-executive
Director in December 2023. He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in geography
from Changsha Water Conservancy and Electric Power Pedagogical
University * (currently known as &2 T K £2) in the PRC in July 1991. He
further obtained a master’s degree in economics from Renmin University of
China in the PRC in July 1994. In July 2000, he obtained a doctor’s degree
in international law from Peking University in the PRC. He further obtained
a post-doctoral degree in management science from Tsinghua University in
the PRC in September 2002 and master’s degree in business administration
from the University of Chicago in the U.S. in March 2004. Mr. Wang was
qualified as a non-practising registered accountant in the PRC in May 1997,
a lawyer by the Ministry of Justice of the PRC in June 1997 and a chartered
financial analyst by the CFA Institute in the U.S. in April 2005.

He was a professor in finance of Harbin Institute of Technology (Shenzhen)
between July 2003 and April 2017. Since April 2017, he has been a
professor in finance of Southern University of Science and Technology.

From December 2013 to May 2020, Mr. Wang served as an independent
non-executive director of Guangzhou Automobile Group Co., Ltd., a
company whose issued shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 2238). Between January 2016 and February 2022, Mr. Wang served
as an independent director of Wedge Industrial Co., Ltd.*, the shares of
which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000534.
SZ). Between December 2016 and July 2022, Mr. Wang served as an
independent director of Tianma Microelectronics Co., Ltd.*, the shares of
which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000050.
SZ). From April 2017 to August 2023, Mr. Wang served as an independent
director of Shahe Industrial Co., Ltd.*, the shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000014.SZ). Between October
2018 and August 2021, Mr. Wang has been serving as an independent
director of Shenzhen Prolto Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.*, the
shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
002769.52).
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Since August 2021, Mr. Wang has been serving as an independent director
of ChangYuan Technology Group Ltd.*, the shares of which are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600525.SH). Since December
2021, Mr. Wang has been serving as an independent non-executive director
of CALB Co., Ltd, a company whose issued shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 3931).

Since September 2024, Mr. Wang has served as an independent director of
Fiyta Precision Technology Co., Ltd.*, the shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000026.S2).

Mr. Song Deliang (formerly known as R B8 i), aged 52, is an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Nomination Committee. He was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in December 2020 and was re-elected
as an independent non-executive Director in December 2023. He obtained
a doctor’s degree in accounting from Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics in the PRC in January 2003.

He joined Shanghai National Accounting Institute as a lecturer in August
2003 and was later promoted to vice professor in June 2012. In July 2018
and March 2019, Mr. Song offered training to the management staff of () a
PRC company principally engaged in the provision of property management
services for commercial properties, hotels and industrial parks in the PRC
and is a subsidiary of a state-owned enterprise, the shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange and Shanghai Stock Exchange; and (i) a PRC
company principally engaged in the provision of property management
services in Southern China, Eastern China, Northern China, Western
China, Hong Kong and Macau, the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange.
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From April 2010 to July 2016, Mr. Song served as an independent director,
a member of each of the nomination and audit committee of the board of
directors of Anhui Hengyuan Coal Industry and Electricity Power Co., Ltd.”,
the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 600971.SH). From August 2010 to April 2016, Mr. Song served as
an independent director of State Grid Yingda Co., Ltd.* (formerly known
as FEEESRIMD AR AT, the shares of which are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600517.SH). Mr. Song also served
as the chairman of the audit committee of such company between October
2010 and April 2016. From July 2015 to May 2019, Mr. Song served as an
independent director, the chairman of each of the audit and remuneration
committee of the board of directors of Dima. Between January 2017 and
June 2023, Mr. Song served as an independent director of Shanghai
Tianchen Co., Ltd.*, the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 600620.SH). Between March 2017 and June 2023,
Mr. Song also served as the chairman of the audit committee of Shanghai
Tianchen Co., Ltd.*. Between September 2018 and August 2023, Mr. Song
served as an independent director and a member of the audit committee of
the board of directors of Sunsea AloT Technology Co., Ltd.*, the shares of
which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002313.S2).

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 7
December 2023 (“13.51B Announcement’) in relation to a notice issued
by the China Securities Regulatory Commission regarding administrative
penalties against, among others, Mr. Song with regards to his previous
position as an independent non-executive director at Sunsea AloT
Technology Co., Ltd.* Please refer to the 13.51B Announcement for detalils.
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SUPERVISORS

The Supervisory Board currently consists of three members.

Mr. Mao Dun, aged 46, is a Supervisor and the chairman of the Supervisory
Board. He was appointed as a Supervisor in December 2020 and was
re-elected as a Supervisor in December 2023. He was appointed as the
chairman of the Supervisory Board in April 2024. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in taxation from Chongaing Business College (currently known as &
B THAE) in the PRC in July 2001.

Since May 2014, Mr. Mao has served as the assistant audit general manager
of Dongyuan Real Estate and has been responsible for coordinating audit
related matters. Since March 2024, Mr. Mao served as an employee
supervisor of Dima.

Mr. Yang Guang, aged 36, is a Supervisor. He was appointed as a
Supervisor in December 2023. Between December 2023 and April 2024,
he was the chairman of the Supervisory Board. He obtained a bachelor’'s
degree in management from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics
in the PRC in July 2010. Since October 2015, he has been a non-practising
member of the Shanghai Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Between October 2010 and October 2015, Mr. Yang was an audit manager
at PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhongtian CPA (Special General Partnership)*.
Between October 2015 and May 2021, he was an executive general
manager for finance in Shanghai Fosun High Technology (Group) Co.,
Ltd.*, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fosun International Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 656). Between March 2021 and July 2021, Mr. Yang has served
as a supervisor of Shanghai Gangyin E-Commerce Co., Ltd.*, a company
listed on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations (stock code:
835092). Between May 2021 and March 2024, Mr. Yang served as a senior
finance director at Shanghai Miaowei Construction Technology Co., Ltd.*,
a subsidiary of Dima. Since April 2024, he has been the chief executive
officer of Chongaing Dima Robotics Co., Ltd.* and an executive director and
general manager of Chongaing Deept Smart Technology Co., Ltd.*.
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Ms. Tan Liang, aged 28, was elected as the employee Supervisor (i.e. the
Supervisor who represents the employees of the Company). She joined
the Group in July 2016, and was appointed as an employee Supervisor in
December 2020 and re-elected as an employee Supervisor in December
2023. Ms. Tan has over eight years of experience in accounting field.
Ms. Tan joined the Company in July 2016 as a fund settlement specialist
and was responsible for fund settlement of the Group. She was later
promoted to be a fund settlement supervisor in July 2019 and was further
promoted to assistant manager in fund settlement in July 2020.

In January 2023, she served as the deputy manager of financial analysis of
the Group, and in August 2024, she was promoted to senior accounting
manager of the Group. She completed a curriculum of accounting from
Chongqing Technology and Business University in the PRC in June 2017 by
self-learning. Ms. Tan is a certified public accountant in the PRC.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Xing, aged 48, is the chief financial officer of the Group and a joint
company secretary of the Company. He joined the Group in August 2014 as
the chief financial officer of a subsidiary of the Company, namely Chongaing
Dongyuan, and was responsible for overseeing its finance matters and daily
management of finance department. He has served as the chief financial
officer of the Company since January 2015 and has been responsible for
managing district finance matters. He was appointed as the chief financial
officer of the Group since December 2020. He is currently a director of
several subsidiaries of the Company. He is also currently a supervisor of
several subsidiaries of the Company. He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
accounting from Southwest Agricultural University, currently known as 78
FAE) in the PRC in July 1999 and a master's degree in accounting
from Chongging University in December 2017. Mr. Liu is qualified as a
senior accountant, and such qualification was accredited by the People’s
Government of Chongaing City of the PRC in December 2013.

Mr. Liu has over 24 years of experience in finance management. Prior to
joining of the Group, between November 1999 and August 2014, he joined
Chongging Firm New Century Department Store Chain Operation Co., Ltd.*,
a company principally engaged in retail of groceries and consumer goods as
a finance officer.
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The Board presents the Directors’ report for the financial year ended 31
December 2024,

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is an investment holding company established in the PRC.
The Group is principally engaged in property management services and
related services. The Company was established in the PRC on 13 January
2015 as a limited liability company and converted into joint stock company
with limited liability on 17 December 2020. The Company’s H Shares
were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 29 April 2022.
The Company completed the conversion of 50,000,000 unlisted shares
into H Shares on 31 August 2023. The listing of the converted H Shares
commenced trading on the Stock Exchange on 1 September 2023. Details
of the corporate’s information are set out on page 2 to 4 of this report.

PRINCIPAL OPERATIONS

The Group is a long-established property management service provider
offering comprehensive services for a wide range of property projects in
the PRC with a rapid growth track record. As at 31 December 2024, the
Group had business presence in four major regions in the PRC, namely,
Southwestern China, Western China, Central China and Eastern China.
The Group provides City Operations Services to property developers,
property owners and residents and enterprises. It also provides FATH and
Other Comprehensive Services to foreign corporations, foreign embassies,
international schools, hospitals and medical facilities and other customers
and Lifestyle Services to property owners, property developers and
residents.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Group
are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group
in this annual report. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year ended 31 December 2024. As
at the date of this annual report, the Board has no intention to significantly
change the principal business of the Group.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the Group in this annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Reporting Period and
a discussion on the Group’s future business development are set out in
the section headed “Management discussion and analysis — Business
review” and “Management discussion and analysis — Outlook for 2025”.
An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Reporting Period
using financial key performance indicators is set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis”. Save as disclosed in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Significant Events after the
Reporting Period” in this annual report, the Group had no material events
after the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report.

Material acquisitions and disposals

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Group acquired Shanghai Evergreen and Chengdu Dongyuhong.
Please refer to the section headed “Management discussion and analysis
- Material investments, acquisitions and disposals” in this annual report for
details. Save as disclosed, the Group did not have any material acquisition
or disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group in this annual report.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Reporting
Period are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report. As at 31 December 2024, the distributable reserve of the
Company amounted to approximately RMB61.3 milion (for the year ended
31 December 2023: approximately RMB135.5 million (restated)).

Dividend

In view of the business growth of the Group and the support of the
Shareholders, the Board recommended the declaration of a Final Dividend
of RMBO0.03 per share (tax inclusive) for the year ended 31 December 2024
(for the year ended 31 December 2023: RMBO0.03 per share (tax inclusive)).

The Company is not aware of any arrangement under which a Shareholder
has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.
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The dividend distribution plan shall be subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the AGM to be held on Tuesday, 10 June 2025 and
such dividend is expected to be paid by Friday, 8 August 2025. The Final
Dividend payable to the Shareholders shall be declared in RMB and paid
in HK dollars, the exchange rate of which will be calculated based on the
average exchange rate of RMB against HK dollars published by the People’s
Bank of China seven days prior to the AGM. Upon approval at the AGM, the
Final Dividend will be paid by Friday, 8 August 2025.

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC and its implementing
rules which came into effect on 1 January 2008, and amended on
24 February 2017 and 29 December 2018, the Notice on the Issues
Concerning Withholding the Enterprise Income Tax on the Dividends Paid
by Chinese Resident Enterprise to H Shareholders which are Overseas
Non-resident Enterprises (Guo Shui Han [2008] No. 897), which was
promulgated by the State Administration of Taxation and came into effect
on 6 November 2008, etc., where a PRC domestic enterprise distributes
dividends for 2008 and subsequent years for financial periods beginning
from 1 January 2008 to non-resident enterprise shareholders, it is required
to withhold 10% enterprise income tax for such non-resident enterprise
shareholders. Therefore, as a PRC domestic enterprise, the Company
will, after withholding 10% of the Final Dividend as enterprise income tax,
distribute the Final Dividend to all non-resident enterprise Shareholders
whose names appear on the H Share register of members of the Company,
i.e. any Shareholders who hold H Shares in the name of non-individual
shareholders, including but not limited to HKSCC Nominees Limited,
other nominees, trustees, or Shareholders registered in the name of other
organisations and groups on Friday, 13 June 2025. After receiving dividends,
the non-resident enterprise Shareholders may apply to the relevant tax
authorities for enjoying treatment of taxation treaties (arrangement) in person
or by proxy or by the Company, and provide information to prove that it
is an actual beneficiary under the requirements of such taxation treaties
(arrangement). After the tax authorities have verified that there is no error,
it shall refund the tax difference between the amount of tax levied and the
amount of tax payable calculated at the tax rate under the requirements of
the relevant taxation treaties (arrangement).
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Pursuant to the Notice on the Issues Regarding Levy of Individual Income
Tax after the Abolishment of Guo Shui Fa [1993] No. 045 Document (Guo
Shui Han [2011] No. 348), the Company shall withhold and pay individual
income tax for individual holders of H Shares. If the individual holders of H
Shares are Hong Kong or Macau residents or residents of other countries or
regions that have a tax rate of 10% under the tax treaties with the PRC, the
Company will withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate of 10% on
behalf of such Shareholders.

If the individual holders of H Shares are residents of countries or regions
that have a tax rate lower than 10% under the tax treaties with the PRC, the
Company will withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate of 10% on
behalf of such Shareholders. If such Shareholders wish to claim refund of
the amount in excess of the individual income tax payable under the relevant
tax treaties, the Company may apply, on behalf of such Shareholders and
according to the relevant tax treaties, for the relevant agreed preferential
tax treatment, provided that the relevant Shareholders submit the relevant
documents and information in a timely manner required by the Administrative
Measures for Non-resident Taxpayers Claiming Tax Treaty Benefits (State
Taxation Administration Announcement 2019, No. 35) and the provisions of
the relevant tax treaties. The Company will assist with the tax refund subject
to the approval of the competent tax authorities.

If the individual holders of H Shares are residents of countries or regions
that have a tax rate higher than 10% but lower than 20% under the tax
treaties with the PRC, the Company will withhold and pay individual income
tax at the applicable tax rates stated in such tax treaties on behalf of such
Shareholders.

If the individual holders of H Shares are residents of countries or regions that
have a tax rate of 20% under the tax treaties with the PRC, or that have not
entered into any tax treaties with the PRC, or otherwise, the Company wil
withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate of 20% on behalf of such
Shareholders.

Shareholders are recommended to consult their tax advisers regarding the

PRC, Hong Kong and other tax implications arising from their holding and
disposal of H Shares.
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Major customers and suppliers

The table below sets out the types of major customers for each of the three
business lines of the Group:

Business lines

ES 3

City Operations Services
WA T AR T

Lifestyle Services

E i A E RS

FATH and Other Comprehensive Services

FERF
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Major customers

Property developers, property owners, residents and enterprises
MERER XX EFPREXE

Property owners, property developers and residents

¥ UERERREP

Foreign corporations, foreign embassies, international schools,

hospitals and medical facilities and other customers

N B BEEFRA R

®F
The suppliers of the Group are primarily third-party subcontractors located
in the PRC which provide cleaning, security, landscaping and certain repair

and maintenance services.

The percentage of sales and purchases for the Reporting Period attributable
to the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as follows:

Sales attributable to:

- the largest customer: 5.2%

- five largest customers in aggregate: 8.0%

During the Reporting Period, the total revenue attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers were less than 30% and the revenue attributable to
the Group’s largest customer was less than 10%.

Purchases attributable to:

- the largest supplier: 3.7%

- the five largest suppliers in aggregate: 11.0%

During the Reporting Period, the total purchases attributable to the Group’s

five largest suppliers were less than 30% and the purchases attributable to
the Group’s largest supplier was less than 10%.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024, the largest customer of the Group
was Dima Group and its related parties, to whom the Group provided
comprehensive property management services. Apart from Dima Group and
its related parties, none of the Directors, or any of their close associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules), or any shareholder who, to the knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital),
had any interest in any of the five largest customers or suppliers of the
Group during the Reporting Period.

Relationship with stakeholders

The Group recognises that the employees, customers and suppliers are
keys to corporate sustainability and are keen on developing long-term
relationships with stakeholders. The Company places significant emphasis
on human capital and strives to foster an environment in which the employee
can develop their full potential and to assist their personal and professional
growth. The Company provides a fair and safe workplace, promoting
diversity to its staff, providing competitive remuneration and benefits and
career development opportunities based on their merits and performance.
The Group also puts on-going efforts to provide adequate trainings and
development resources to the employees so that they can keep abreast
of the latest development of the market and the industry and, at the same
time, improve their performance and self-fulfilment in their positions. The
Company understands that it is important to maintain good relationship with
customers. The Group has established procedures in place for handling
customers’ complaints and customer satisfaction surveys in order to ensure
customers’ complaints are dealt with in a prompt and timely manner.
The Group is also dedicated to develop good relationship with suppliers
as long-term business partners to ensure stable services and supplies of
materials. The Group reinforces business partnerships with suppliers and
contractors by recurring communication in proactive and effective manner
S0 as to ensure quality and delivery.
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Share capital

As at 31 December 2024, the total share capital of the Company was
RMB66,990,867, divided into 66,990,867 H Shares of nominal value of
RMB1.00 each. Details of movements in share capital of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2024 and details of the H Shares issued
during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual
report were as follows:

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Luo Shaoying (Chairladly)
Ms. Yi Lin

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Aiming (Vice-chairman, Employee Director)
Mr. Fan Dong (Employee Director)

Independent non-executive Directors
Ms. Cai Ying
Mr. Wang Susheng

Mr. Song Deliang

No Director will be proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

RN
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Supervisors

The Supervisors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report were as follows:

Mr. Mao Dun
Mr. Yang Guang
Ms. Tan Liang

The Supervisory Board has held three meetings during 2024. Details of the
meetings and events conducted by the Supervisory Board during 2024 are
set out in the work report of the Supervisory Board of this annual report.

Details of biography of Directors, Supervisors and the senior management of
the Company are set out on pages 34 to 42 of this annual report.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ service contracts

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of three years with effect from 14 December 2023 until the
expiration of the term of office of the second session of the Board (i.e. 13
December 2026). The appointments are subject to the relevant provisions
of the Articles of Association with regard to vacation of office of Directors,
removal and re-election of Directors.

Each of the Supervisors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years with effect from 14 December 2023 until
the expiration of the term of the second session of the Supervisory Board.
The appointments are subject to the relevant provisions of the Articles of
Association with regard to vacation of office of Supervisors, removal and
re-election of Supervisors.

No Director or Supervisor has a service contract with members of the Group
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group to protect the
Directors and officers of the Group against any potential liability arising from
the Group’s activities which such Directors and officers may be held liable.
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Emolument policy and Directors’ remuneration

In compliance with the CG Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing
Rules, the Company has established the Remuneration Committee to
formulate remuneration policies. The remuneration is determined and
recommended based on, among other things, each Director’'s and senior
management personnel’s qualification, position and seniority. As for the
independent non-executive Directors, their remuneration is determined by
the Board upon recommendation from the Remuneration Committee. Details
of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals
are set out in note 37 and note 9, respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

None of the Directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration and
there were no emoluments paid by the Group to any of the Directors as an
inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office.

Confirmation of independence of independent
non-executive Directors

The Company has received a confirmation of independence from each of
the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and concluded that all
the independent non-executive Directors are considered to be independent
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Changes in information of Directors, Supervisors and Co-
CEO

Changes in the information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rules
13.51(2) and 13.51B of the Listing Rules are set out below:

Mr. Wang Susheng, an independent non-executive Director, has been
appointed as an independent director of Fiyta Precision Technology Co.,
Ltd.*, the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code: 000026.52) with effect from 6 September 2024.

Save as disclosed above, there were no changes in the information of the
Directors, Supervisors and Co-CEO which are required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51(2) and 13.51B of the Listing Rules as at the date of
this annual report.

Dlrectors Report

%ﬁiﬁ*‘:

FHRRRESHMH

ARBDRE ETHRRIMSECI MR E AT
WﬂiﬁM§AE Mﬁiﬁ%ﬁ% il \VEE-
REGER)ZEZRSREEBASNER -
Bfr & S BT MR o ﬁi#ﬁﬁé%% 57 B
THEFEREFHEZEENEREE BEFR

hAEBHTMALTOFTHFBED RIS R E M
e RIS R
MEEERELRBRETMHFH  AREBL

EREMNEEXNHFMAMERMAAEENFEH
HAEINAAR LB AT SHAERBERAHE -

BYFYTESNE LRI H

ARRCERESBIIFRTESRELTHRANE
BB EB I MEMEH R L - EFEER
B MR AR LIFNTEENE LY
HERREHRBIAL -

EE ESERBEETHAREN

25

BiE FHRRIE183.512) R 13.51BIKBEFHEMNE
REsHF M

H2024F9H6HE » By IFMITEE T AL E
BEEARIDERBEREBROERAE (EKRH
RRINEHFR ST LT (D A5 - 000026.52))
BN EE -

Br EXXFTIBRESN  RAFHRAE  HEmEE -
EERBETRARENZHARE EMRAE
13.51(2) )2 13.51BI§ T LAIK 5% ©

2024FEHE RECARTELRBEBROGBRIA

51



52

Directors’ Report

ESEWE

Compliance with non-competition undertakings and
Directors’ interests in competing business

Interests in competing business

None of the Directors, Supervisors or their associates had any direct or
indirect interest in a business which competed or might compete with the
business of the Group as required to be disclosed under Rule 8.10 of the
Listing Rules during the Reporting Period.

Non-competition Undertaking

To protect the Group from potential competition in the future with respect
to the provision of comprehensive property management business by the
Group, each of Dima, Dima Ruisheng and Tianjin Chengfang has given an
irrevocable Non-competition Undertaking in favour of the Company (for itself
and for the benefits of its subsidiaries). For detalils, please refer to the section
headed “Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders — Non-competition —
Non-Competition Undertaking” in the Prospectus.

In compliance with the Non-competition Undertaking, each of Dima, Dima
Ruisheng and Tianjin Chengfang will make an annual declaration as to
compliance with the terms of the Non-competition Undertaking. Each of
Dima, Dima Ruisheng and Tianjin Chengfang has confirmed that it has
complied with the Non-competition Undertaking during the Reporting Period.
The Company has received a written confirmation from each of Dima, Dima
Ruisheng and Tianjin Chengfang in respect of the compliance by them
and their close associates in respect of the compliance by them and their
close associates with the terms of the Non-competition Undertaking. The
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Non-competition
Undertaking and assessed whether Dima, Dima Ruisheng and Tianjin
Chengfang and their close associates have complied with the terms of the
Non-competition Undertaking, and were satisfied that each of Dima, Dima
Ruisheng and Tianjin Chengfang has complied with its undertakings under
the Non-competition Undertaking during the Reporting Period.

As each of Dima, Dima Ruisheng and Tianjin Chengfang ceased to hold
30% or more interest in the Company, the Non-competition Undertaking has
expired as at the date of this annual report. Please refer to the Prospectus
for details.
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Connected transactions

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, details of the Company’s
connected transactions during the Reporting Period are as follows:

A. Connected transactions

On 19 April 2024, the Company (as purchaser), Shanghai Dixuan
Industrial Co., Ltd.* (“Shanghai Dixuan”) (as vendor) and Shanghai
Evergreen (as target company) entered into an equity transfer
agreement (as supplemented by a supplemental agreement dated
29 April 2024), pursuant to which the Company conditionally
agreed to acquire, and Shanghai Dixuan conditionally agreed
to sell, approximately 90.73% of equity interests in Shanghai
Evergreen at the consideration of RMB28.0 milion. As at the date
of such equity transfer agreement and supplemental agreement, as
Shanghai Dixuan was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Dima, it was a
connected person of the Company. As at the date of this annual
report, the acquisition of Shanghai Evergreen has been completed
and Shanghai Evergreen had become a direct non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Further details regarding the acquisition
of Shanghai Evergreen are disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 19 April 2024 and 29 April 2024 and the circular of
the Company dated 3 June 2024.

On 20 November 2024, Chongaging Dowell Enterprise Management
Consultation Co., Ltd.* (“Chongqing Dowell”) (as purchaser),
Chengdu Dowell Haina Zhiye Co., Ltd.” (“Chengdu Dowell”) (as
vendor) and Chengdu Dongyuhong (as target company) entered
into an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which Chongqging
Dowell has conditionally agreed to acquire, and Chengdu Dowell
conditionally agreed to sell, the entire equity interests in Chengdu
Dongyuhong at the consideration of RMB59.5 million. As at the
date of such equity transfer agreement, as Chengdu Dowell was
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Dima, it was a connected person of
the Company. As at the date of this annual report, the acquisition
of Chengdu Dongyuhong has been completed and Chengdu
Duyonghong had become an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company. Further details regarding the acquisition of Chengdu
Dongyuhong are disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 20 November 2024 and the circular of the Company dated 6
January 2025.
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B.  Continuing connected transactions B HEHEXS

City Operations Services

On 18 October 20283, the Company entered into a master
City Operations Services agreement (the “Master City
Operations Services Agreement”) with Dima Group, which
was approved by the Shareholders on 13 December 2023,
pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide to Dima
Group and Affiliated Companies (including associates of Dima
Group as defined under the Listing Rules) City Operations
Services from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026. Please
refer to the circular of the Company dated 21 November
2023 for details.

The fees to be charged pursuant to the Master City
Operations Services Agreement shall be determined after
arms’ length negotiations with the prevailing market price
(taking into account of the location of the property projects,
the expected operational costs (including, among others,
labour costs, material costs and administrative costs)),
historical transaction amounts and the prices charged by
the Group for providing comparable services to Independent
Third Parties. The fees to be charged shall be on normal
commercial terms, and at prices no more favourable
than those provided to customers who are Independent
Third Parties. Since the Master City Operations Services
Agreement is a framework agreement, such agreement does
not specify any repayment terms.
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It was estimated that the maximum amounts of fees payable to
the Group in relation to the transaction contemplated under the
Master City Operations Services Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2024 would not exceed RMB50.4 million.

During the Reporting Period, the total service fees paid by Dima
Group and Affiliated Companies pursuant to the Master City
Operations Services Agreement amounted to approximately
RMB29.9 million.

Lifestyle Services

On 18 October 2023, the Company entered into a master Lifestyle
Services agreement (the “Master Lifestyle Services Agreement”)
with Dima Group, which was approved by the Shareholders on 13
December 2023, pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide to
Dima Group and Affiliated Companies (including associates of Dima
Group as defined under the Listing Rules) Lifestyle Services from 1
January 2024 to 31 December 2026. Please refer to the circular of
the Company dated 21 November 2023 for details.

[t was estimated that the maximum amounts of fees payable to the
Group in relation to the transactions contemplated under the Master
Lifestyle Services Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2024
would not exceed RMB49.0 million.

During the Reporting Period, the total service fees paid by Dima
Group and Affiliated Companies pursuant to the Master Lifestyle
Services Agreement amounted to approximately RMB6.8 million.
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3. FATH and Other Comprehensive Services

On 18 October 2023, the Company entered into a master FATH and
Other Comprehensive Services agreement (the “Master FATH and
Other Comprehensive Services Agreement”) with Dima Group,
which was approved by the Shareholders on 13 December 2023,
pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide to Dima Group and
Affiliated Companies (including associates of Dima Group as defined
under the Listing Rules) FATH and Other Comprehensive Services
from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026. Please refer to the
circular of the Company dated 21 November 2023 for detalils.

It was estimated that the maximum amounts of fees payable to the
Group in relation to the transactions contemplated under the Master
FATH and Other Comprehensive Services Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2024 would not exceed RMB70.9 million.

During the Reporting Period, the total service fees paid by Dima
Group and Affiliated Companies pursuant to the Master FATH
and Other Comprehensive Services Agreement amounted to
approximately RMB42.7 million.

Throughout the Reporting Period, Dima was a substantial shareholder of the
Company and therefore Dima was a connected person of the Company.

The Company confirms that the Group has followed the relevant pricing
policies as set out in the abovementioned agreements when determining the
price and terms of the continuing connected transactions conducted during
the Reporting Period.

Save to the extent as permitted by the waivers from the announcement
requirement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules granted by the Stock Exchange, the
Company has complied with the requirements in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules for the Reporting Period in relation to the Group’s related
party transactions which constitute continuing connected transactions as
abovementioned.
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Confirmation from the independent non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions mentioned above and confirmed that the
transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
the business of the Group, on normal commercial terms or better, and in
accordance with the agreed terms of the relevant agreements which are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

Confirmation from the auditor

The Company’s auditor has been engaged to report on the continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Board has received
an unqualified letter from the auditor of the Company in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, stating that:

a. nothing has come to their attention that causes it to believe that
the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Company’s board of directors.

b. for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes it to believe
that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group.

C. nothing has come to their attention that causes it to believe that
the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions.

d. with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the disclosed
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to their
attention that causes it to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have exceeded the annual cap as set by the
Company.
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Related party transactions

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2024 is contained in note 36 (“Note
36") to the consolidated financial statements of the Group in this annual
report.

Save as disclosed in item (b) of Note 36 headed “Related Party Transactions”
to the consolidated financial statements contained in the Annual Report,
none of the related party transactions as disclosed under Note 36 constitute
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction that is subject
to, among other things, reporting, announcement, annual review and/or
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
for connected transactions or continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year under
review.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 14.36B(3) OF
THE LISTING RULES

On 23 June 2022, Chongging Dongyuan (as purchaser), Sichuan Donglan
Business Management Co., Ltd.* (“Sichuan Donglan”) (as vendor),
Mr. Zhang Ligun (“Mr. Zhang”) (as shareholder of target company) and
Hunan Jindian Property Management Co., Ltd.* (“Hunan Jindian”)
(as target company) entered into an equity transfer and cooperation
agreement (“Hunan Jindian Acquisition Agreement”), pursuant to which
Chongging Dongyuan conditionally agreed to acquire, and Sichuan Donglan
conditionally agreed to sell, 80% equity interests in Hunan Jindian at the
consideration of RMB61.7 million.

Pursuant to the Hunan Jindian Acquisition Agreement, Sichuan Donglan
and Mr. Zhang have given guarantee of the financial performance of Hunan
Jindian (including its revenue and net profit and their respective growth rate)
for the three years ended 31 December 2024 (“Performance Guarantee”).
Such Performance Guarantee guaranteed that, among others:

(@ the cumulative growth of Hunan Jindian’s total revenue and net profit
for the three years ended 31 December 2024 shall not be less than
20%;

(b) the total revenue (net of tax) of Hunan Jindian for the three years

ended 31 December 2024 shall not be less than approximately
RMB196.8 million; and
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(@] the net profit of Hunan Jindian for the three years ended 31
December 2024 shall not be less than approximately RMB20.3
million.

If the Performance Guarantee cannot be met, Chongging Dongyuan shall
be entitled to claim from Mr. Zhang a compensation amount calculated in
accordance with the formula set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 23 June 2022 (the “DT Announcement”). After determining such
compensation amount, Mr. Zhang shall enter into a compensatory equity
transfer agreement with Chongging Dongyuan to settle such compensation
amount with his equity interests in Hunan Jindian, which shall also be
calculated with reference to the formula set out in the DT Announcement.
Based on the preliminary information available and the Board’s preliminary
assessment as at the date of this annual report, the Performance Guarantee
has not been met.

The Company shall re-comply with the applicable requirements under the
Listing Rules when determining such compensation amount and entering
into of the abovementioned compensatory equity transfer agreement on or
around 30 April 2025 (i.e. Performance Guarantee determination date).

DIRECTORS’ AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group in this annual report and in the paragraphs
headed “Compliance with non-competition undertakings and Directors’
interests in competing business” and “Connected transactions” in this
section, no Director, Supervisor or substantial shareholder nor any entity
connected therewith has any material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the Group’s
business to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries
or its parent companies was a party subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include, among others:

(i)

(i)

)

the Group’s historical results may not be indicative of its future
prospects and results of operation and its future growth may not
materialise as planned, and failure to manage any future growth
effectively may have a material adverse effect on the business,
financial condition and results of operation of the Group. The Group
will continue to uplift its operation and management capability and
market competitiveness and seize market opportunities for achieving
continual growth in operating results;

the Group may not procure new City Operation Services agreements
as planned or at desirable pace or price and the profitability of the
Group depends on the Group’s ability to obtain new customers and
retaining existing customers. The Group will continue to expand
its property management portfolio by proactive market-oriented
expansion and strategic acquisition to add to the scale of its
properties under management;

termination or non-renewal of the Group’s City Operation Services
agreements for a portion of property projects could have an
adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of
operations. The Group will continue to enhance quality and uplift
service capability, gain customers’ recognition, and increase contract
renewal rate; and

the Group’s future acquisitions or investment in other companies
may not be successful and the Group may face difficulties in
integrating acquired operations with its existing business. The Group
will continue to proactively explore investment opportunities and build
up experience in integrating acquired operations.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable laws,
rules and regulations which have a significant impact to the Group. As at
the date of this annual report, except as disclosed in the annual report, the
Group complied with, in all material respects, all the relevant and applicable
PRC laws and regulations governing the business of property management
and the Group has obtained all licenses, permits and certificates for the
purpose of operating its business.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company’s joint ventures and
associated company were not involved in and the Board is not aware of
any non-compliance incidents that might adversely affect the value of the
Company’s interests in them.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As of 31 December 2024, the interests and short position of the Directors,
the Supervisors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

()  Long position in the shares of the Company
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Mr. Fan Dong (Note 3) 4,990,000 (L) Interest in a controlled corporation 7.45%
BELE (HH3) REEEER

2024 EE RECHMBTELRBEEERGERLA

61



62

Directors’ Report

ESEWE

Notes:

1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such
securities.

2. The calculation is based on the total number of 66,990,867 H
Shares in issue as at 31 December 2024.

3. Mr. Fan Dong is interested in approximately 52.74% of the equity

interest in Tianjin Partnership and is therefore deemed to be
interested in all the Shares held by Tianjin Partnership, by the

1. FEILIXRRZBATEREEZESF
MR -
2. Rt EENH E2024F12A318 1

B B AT 19 42 £166,990,867 AxHAX °

3. SBREEHEARREZE B H2.74%0
MR FE L RIRE F R B E K0
RAHRZEEMEENZIT KRG

virtue of SFO. A
(i)  Interest in Tianjin Partnership i) KEEBEDR
Capacity/Nature of Approximate percentage of
Name of Director interest  Equity interest the equity holding
3 5t/ RuitE RE BRRREDL
Mr. Fan Dong Beneficial owner  RMB1.05 million 52.74%
BREE EnEAN ARK1.05BBT

Save as disclosed above, no other Director, Supervisor or chief
executive of the Company had interests or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
were recorded in the register.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as is known to the Company, as at 31 December 2024, as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO, the following persons, other than a Director, Supervisor or chief
executive of the Company, had an interest of 5% or more in the H Shares or

underlying H Shares:

FERERAQF
ARG 2 ERER
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Approximate
shareholding

Number of H percentage in the
Shares held as at total issued share
31 December capital of the

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest 2024 Company
HARATE BT
R2024512A318  RABHENHL
RREB A ERiE FrFHR R & B FREDH
(Note 2)
(Btetz)
(%)
Tianjin Chengfang Beneficial owner 13,461,643 (L) 20.09
RERT EnEAA
Dima Ruisheng Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 3) 13,461,643 () 20.09
MEE R LEER (A1523)
Dima Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 3) 13,461,643 () 20.09
pihes RyEE s (Mi3)
Chongaing Doyen Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 3) 13,461,643 (L) 20.09
BEEFRR REEE R (H73)
Mr. Lo Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 3) 13,461,643 () 20.09
BEE R LEER (A1523)
Ms. Chiu Interest of spouse (Note 4) 13,461,643 (L 20.09
iR G I (B s (ata)
Chongging Chaofenglian Materials Co., Beneficial owner 12,058,357 (L) 18.00
Ltd* (“Chongqing Chaofenglian”)
ERHEBYMERRA EnAA
(BRI ])
Lin Zhiyao Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 5) 12,058,357 () 18.00
Mz RyEE s (Mits)
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Approximate

shareholding

Number of H percentage in the
Shares held as at total issued share
31 December capital of the

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest 2024 Company
BARDRE BT
M2024512H310  BRALENHD
RREB A Bt FrFHR R & B FRESH
(Note 2)
(Hfat2)
(%)
Tianjin Partnership Beneficial owner 4,990,000 (L) 7.45
REGE EnlEAA
Mr. Fan Dong Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 6) 4,990,000 (L) 7.45
SBEREAE RyEEE R (H17T6)
Ms. Xia Qing Interest of spouse (Note 7) 4,990,000 (L) 7.45
E¥L+ fo S rkss (H7737)
Mr. Liu Xing Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 6) 4,990,000 (L) 7.45
Bk RiLE R (A/576)
Ms. Ma Xuemei Interest of spouse (Note 8) 4,990,000 (L) 7.45
BEELL Ao (B (H7E8)
Kingdom Vast Limited Beneficial owner 12,705,000 () 18.97
IEPNSIYNG] EmEAA
RAF Capital Group Limited Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 9) 12,705,000 (L) 18.97
hEEAEEARAR RELE R (A/579)
Mr. Wang Hao Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 9) 12,705,000 (L) 18.97
FERE R LEER (A1579)
Ms. Zhang Xiangnong Interest of spouse (Note 70) 12,705,000 (L) 18.97
REERL Ao s (H7E10)
All Wealthy Investment Limited Beneficial owner 6,685,000 (L) 9.98
EnEAA
HEROIC COURAGE LIMITED Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 77) 6,685,000 (L) 9.98
RiELEER (AEE11)
Mr. Wong Wing Hung Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 7117) 6,685,000 (L) 9.98

Wong Wing Hung%t 4

Ry RE S (Mi11)
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Notes:

The letters “L” denotes the person’s long position in such securities.

The calculation is based on the total number of 66,990,867 H Shares in
issue as at 31 December 2024.

Tianjin Chengfang was owned by Dima Ruisheng as to approximately
98.99%, which Dima Ruisheng was in turn wholly-owned by Dima. As
at 31 December 2024, Dima was owned by Chongqging Doyen and
Chongging Shuorun as to approximately 35.55% and 3.01% respectively.
Chongging Shuorun was owned by Chongging Doyen and Ms. Chiu as to
approximately 98.96% and 1.04% respectively, while Chongqging Doyen
was owned by Mr. Lo and Ms. Chiu as to approximately 77.78% and
22.22% respectively. By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Lo, Chongging
Doyen, Dima and Dima Ruisheng are deemed to be interested in all the H
Shares held by Tianjin Chengfang.

Ms. Chiu is the spouse of Mr. Lo. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Chiu is
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Mr. Lo.

Chongging Chaofenglian was held as to approximately 90% by Lin Zhiyao.
By virtue of the SFO, Lin Zhiyao is deemed to be interested in all the H
Shares held by Chongging Chaofenglian.

Tianjin Partnership was owned by Mr. Fan Dong and Mr. Liu Xing as to
approximately 52.74% and 37.18%, respectively. By the virtue of SFO,
each of Mr. Fan Dong and Mr. Liu Xing is deemed to be interested in all
the Shares held by Tianjin Partnership.

Ms. Xia Qing is the spouse of Mr. Fan Dong. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Xia
Qing is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Mr. Fan Dong.

Ms. Ma Xuemei is the spouse of Mr. Liu Xing. By virtue of the SFO,
Ms. Ma Xuemei is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Mr. Liu Xing.
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ESEWE

10.

11.

Kingdom Vast Limited was wholly-owned by RAF Capital Group Limited,
which was in turn was wholly-owned by Mr. Wang Hao. By virtue of the
SFO, each of RAF Capital Group Limited and Mr. Wang Hao is deemed to
be interested in all the Shares held by Kingdom Vast Limited.

Ms. Zhang Xiangnong is the spouse of Mr. Wang Hao. By virtue of the
SFO, Ms. Zhang Xiangnong is deemed to be interested in all the Shares
held by Mr. Wang Hao.

All Wealthy Investment Limited was wholly-owned by HEROIC COURAGE
LIMITED, which was in turn wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Wing Hung. By
virtue of the SFO, each of HEROIC COURAGE LIMITED and Mr. Wong
Wing Hung is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by All
Wealthy Investment Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2024, the Company had
not been notified of any persons (other than a Director, Supervisor or chief
executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position in the
Shares or underlying Shares that were recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

DOWELL SERVICE GROUP CO. LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

B EXXFIREEE SN

BRERAREREEACEERAAZE
e MhEEASKEERARXMBISE

E2ERA REBSFLPEHED  KE?
AEEERAAMIBERESARE /AR
BRERARFENME RN ORES -

RARZETEIELENERS  REEHFR
HEHY - RRRLTHRER/ETELEER
BERMBERND TR ES

All Wealthy Investment LimitedfEBHEROIC
COURAGE LIMITEDZ & # & * MHEROIC
COURAGE LIMITEDX BWong Wing Hung?t
EREHRE - RIBESFRHAEKM - HEROIC
COURAGE LIMITED#Wong Wing Hung’t
4 & B 118 A % BAI Wealthy Investment
LimitedF 5 &9 P B R (9 By i 25

H 22024F12A31H * AR

AL WEMETAL ARAEE  EFARD
TR BBRON SR 15 ARBIR 15 o 45 A Rk
1.8 58 4 T B 2 16 ) G360/ PR 7 ) LR
PO AR -



MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2024.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

During the year ended 31 December 2024, there were not any rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any Director or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, nor were there any such rights exercised by
them. Also, there was no arrangement to which the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries is a party that would
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association of the Company, or the law of PRC being the jurisdiction
in which the Company was incorporated under which would oblige the
Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set
out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual
report.

Directors’ Report

ESEWE

EEEY

B E2024F12A31HIEFE - BIERAR QAR
SHAEME RIS EFBHE IR RITES EE] AR
BH NTFEBBAEY -

BERONEEENZ

HE024F12A1IBALEFE  FAEZTHEES
B ) A48 31 AR M 1857 B) T 25 M 5 A T # ) AT
FHREARQBRG K EEEMERRZ  BE
INVEITE TR SRR o pEoh - RAF] - EfER
AR EATAI M E R Rk R R B A B IR ER] L
AL REEEAMEEMEMEAEED
ZERER o

BriBEERE

AR ER AR T B (BN A R B M AL
FRERDEER) ZR Y EERELBERNEMN
MRIE - RBRARBARBRA R FIZ R 3% E
A

RAFANTZCEERTRENAFRI

2024 e RECARHTELREEERDERAF

67



68

Directors’ Report

ESEWE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Environmental protection

The Group is subject to PRC laws in relation to environment protection
matters. The Group considers the protection of the environment to be
important and have implemented measures in the operation of its businesses
to ensure its compliance with all applicable requirements. Given the nature of
its operations, the Group believes it is not subject to material environmental
liability risk or compliance costs.

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this annual
report, no fines or penalties for non-compliance of PRC environmental laws
had been imposed on the Group, and the Group had not been subject to
any material administrative penalties due to violation of environmental laws in
the PRC.

Social responsibility

The Group has entered into employment contracts with its employees in
accordance with the applicable PRC laws and regulations.

The Group maintains social welfare insurance for its full-time employees in
the PRC, including pension insurance, medical insurance, personal injury
insurance, unemployment insurance and maternity insurance, in accordance
with the relevant PRC laws and regulations.

Health and work safety

The employee’s administrative measures adopted by the Group contain
policies and procedures regarding work safety and occupational health
issues. The Group provides its employees with annual medical checks and
safety training, and the construction sites of the Group are equipped with
safety equipment including gloves, boots and hats.

The operational management center of the Group is responsible for
recording and handling work accidents as well as maintaining health and
work safety compliance records.

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Group did not encounter any material safety accident, there
were no material claims for personal or property damages and no material
compensation was paid to employees in respect of claims for personal or
property damages related to safety accident.
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Corporate governance

The Company has adopted the principles as set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules. The Board is of the view that
the Company is in compliance with the mandatory code provisions of the
CG Code for the Reporting Period.

For details of the Corporate Governance Report, please refer to pages 75 to
102 of this annual report.

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE PROVISIONS

The Articles of Association provides that the Directors, managing directors,
alternate Directors, auditors, secretary and other officers for the time being
of the Company and the trustees (if any) for the time being acting in relation
to any of the affairs of the Company, and their respective executors or
administrators, shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them, their or any of their
executors or administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any
act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty
or supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts. The Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance in respect of
legal action against Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
Shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that
will or may result in the Company issuing Shares were entered into by the
Company, or subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2024.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM is scheduled to be held on 10 June 2025. A notice convening the
AGM will be issued and disseminated to the Shareholders in due course.
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ESTHRE

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group made charitable and
other donations in a total amount of RMB218,000 (2023: RMB47,510).

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REVIEW OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Audit Committee has reviewed together with the management of the
Company the accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group and
the audited annual results for the year ended 31 December 2024.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
have been audited by BDO Limited. A resolution for the re-appointment of
BDO Limited. as the Company’s auditor is to be proposed at the AGM.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of purchasing,
holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any rights in relation to
the Shares, they are advised to consult an expert. The Company is not
aware of any tax relief or exemption available to the Shareholders of the
Company due to their holding of the Company’s securities.

For and on behalf of the Board
Dowell Service Group Co. Limited*
Ms. Luo Shaoying

Chairlady

Hong Kong, 31 March 2025

* For identification purpose only.
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Supervisory Board’s Report

During the Reporting Period, the Supervisory Board carefully and thoroughly
performed its supervisory functions in favour of the Company and the
Shareholders in a responsible manner according to the Company Law, the
Articles of Association and the requirements under the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC, while duly monitoring and examining the operations
and financial conditions of the Group, as well as supervising the performance
of duties by the members of the Board and management of the Company,
according to the laws.

l. - CONVENING OF THE MEETINGS OF THE
SUPERVISORY BOARD

The Supervisory Board held three meetings during the Reporting
Period. The details are as follows:

@

On 20 March 2024, the second meeting of the second session
of the Supervisory Board was convened, during which the
Supervisory Board considered and approved, among others,
(i) the 2023 work report of the Board; (i) the 2023 work report
of the Supervisory Board; (iii) the financial account report for
the year ended 31 December 2023; and (iv) the 2023 profit
distribution plan;

On 26 April 2024, the third meeting of the second session of the
Supervisory Board was convened, during which the Supervisory
Board considered and approved the proposed change of
chairman of Supervisory Board; and

On 22 August 2024, the fourth meeting of the second session
of the Supervisory Board was convened, during which the
Supervisory Board considered and approved, among others: (j)
the financial account report for the six months ended 30 June
2024; and (i) the profit distribution plan for the six months ended
30 June 2024.
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ESERE

OPINIONS OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD ON
SUPERVISED MATTERS OF THE COMPANY
DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

Compliance of the Company’s operations with
legal requirements

During the Reporting Period, pursuant to the laws and
regulations of the PRC and the Articles of Association, the
Supervisory Board duly supervised the convening procedures
and resolutions of general meetings of Shareholders and
meetings of the Board, the Board’s execution of resolutions
approved at general meetings of Shareholders, the performance
of duties by the senior management of the Company. The
Supervisory Board was of the view that the Company’s
operation was in compliance with laws and regulations, and
the internal control system was comprehensive and sound. The
Board strictly carried out various resolutions approved by and
authorisations granted by general meetings, and the decision
making procedure was lawful and effective. The Directors
and senior management of the Company could perform their
respective duties with diligence and dedication without violating
laws, regulations and the Articles of Association or damaging
interests of the Company and its Shareholders.

Financial position of the Company

During the Reporting Period, the Supervisory Board has carefully
reviewed the consolidated financial statements and financial
information of the Company during the Reporting Period.
The Supervisory Board was of the view that the procedures
adopted by the Board in preparing and considering the annual
financial report of the Company are in compliance with the laws
and regulations of the PRC. The contents of the report gave
a true, accurate and complete view of the actual situation of
the Company and do not contain false statements, misleading
representations or material omissions.
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Supervisory Board’s Report

3. Use of Net Proceeds

During the Reporting Report, the use of the Net Proceeds
strictly observed relevant provisions and the use disclosed, and
no illegal use of the Net Proceeds were found.

4. Material related party transactions

During the Reporting Period, the Company conducted related
party transactions, including continuing connected transactions
according to the principle of fairness and such transactions
have been complying with laws and regulations. The continuing
connected transactions were found to be in conformity to
the provisions of relevant agreements, and have fulfiled the
obligation of information disclosure in accordance with the
Listing Rules. The Supervisory Board was not aware of any
action which would damage the interests of the Company and
investors in the Company.

5. The Supervisory Board has no disagreement
on the matters supervised during the Reporting
Period

MEMBERS OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
AND ATTENDANCE OF THE MEETINGS OF THE
SUPERVISORY BOARD

The Supervisory Board, which comprises three members, including
two Shareholder representative Supervisors and one employee
representative Supervisor appointed by the workers’ congress. All the
members of the Supervisory Board are diligent and conscientious,
and have conscientiously performed their duties in compliance with
the relevant laws, regulations and the Articles of Association, and have
personally attended all the meetings of the Supervisory Board.
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ESgRE

WORKING PLAN FOR 2025

In 2025, the Supervisory Board will continue to abide by the
principle of being responsible to all the Shareholders, and perform
its supervisory duties in strict accordance with the requirements of
the relevant laws and regulations and the Articles of Association. The
Supervisory Board will continue to strengthen the internal learning and
training of Supervisors to improve their supervision awareness and
ability, and continuously promote self-improvement of the Supervisory
Board. According to the authority and responsibilities stipulated in
the Company Law, the Supervisory Board will effectively supervise
the Company’s business activities and play an important role in the
governance of the Company and the protection of Shareholders’
rights, so as to effectively safeguard and protect the interests of the
Company and its Shareholders, and prevent damage to the interests
and image of the Company.
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Dowell Service Group Co. Limited* RECHAETELREEERBERAA
Mr. Mao Dun EEe T

Chairman of the Supervisory Board EBEEE

31 March 2025 202593 H31H
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2024,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Group is committed to implementing high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and enhance the
corporate value as well as the responsibility commitments. The Company
has adopted the CG Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules as
its own code of corporate governance.

The Board has the collective responsibility for leadership and control of, and
for promoting the success of, the Company by directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs. The Board is committed to the Company’s objective of
consistent growth and development and increase in shareholder value. The
Board sets strategies for the Company and monitors the performance and
activities of the management.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
set out in the CG Code. The principal role and function of the Board in
relation to corporate governance is to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance, to review and monitor the
training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company, to review and monitor the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
to formulate, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to
employees and Directors, and to review the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate governance report of the
Company under the annual report of the Company.

To the knowledge of the Directors, during the Reporting Period and up to
the date of this annual report, the Company has complied with all applicable
code provisions set out in the CG Code. The Directors will use their best
endeavours to procure the Company to continue to comply with the CG
Code.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix C3 to the
Listing Rules as its code for dealing in securities in the Company by the
Directors and Supervisors.

After specific enquiries made to all Directors and Supervisors, the Directors
and Supervisors have confirmed compliance with the required standard set
out in the Model Code during the Reporting Period and up to the date of
this annual report.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities, accountabilities and contribution of the
Board and management

The Board assumes the responsibility of leadership and control of the
Company, and supervises and approves significant decisions regarding
financial performance, strategic development objectives and operations of
the Company. The management is authorised and responsible to handle
the Company’s daily operations and businesses management. The Board
is well balanced with Directors having sound industry knowledge, extensive
corporate and strategic planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the
business of the Group. The employee Directors, whom also act as executive
Directors, the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors bring a variety of experience and expertise to the Company. In
particular, the independent non-executive Directors are responsible for
ensuring a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and
providing a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent views and
judgement on corporate actions and operations. The Board has established
three committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, and has delegated to the Board
Committees various duties. All the Board Committees perform their distinct
roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall at all times ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders. All Directors have full and timely
access to all the information of the Company and may, upon request,
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board annually reviews the implementation and effectiveness of
mechanisms to ensure independent views and input available to the Board
and the Board is of the view that the independent mechanism is effective.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on Directors’
and senior managements’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken
against Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.
The insurance coverage would be reviewed on an annual basis.

Board composition and change in Board composition

The Board currently comprises two employee Directors, whom also act as
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. The composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zhang Aiming (Co-CEQ)
Mr. Fan Dong (Co-CEQ)

Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Luo Shaoying (Chairladly)
Ms. Yi Lin

Independent non-executive Directors:

Ms. Cai Ying
Mr. Wang Susheng
Mr. Song Deliang

The brief biological information of each Director is set out in the section
headed “Directors, Supervisors and senior management” in this annual
report. The changes in information of Directors, Supervisors and Co-CEQO is
set out in the section headed “Director’s Report - Changes in Information of
Directors, Supervisors and Co-CEQ” in this annual report. Save as disclosed
therein, there are no other material relationships (whether financial, business,
family or others) among the members of the Board.

Each of the Directors have entered into a service contract or letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of not more than three years until
the expiry of the term of office of the second session of the Board (i.e. 13
December 2026).
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Chairman and chief executive officer

The roles of the Chairman and the chief executive officer have been
separated as required by Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code.

The Chairman and the Co-CEO have separate defined responsibilities.
The Chairman is responsible in leading the Board in forming the Group’s
strategies and policies and for organising the business of the Board,
ensuring its effectiveness and setting its agenda but not involved in the
day-to-day business operation of the Group. The Co-CEO are directly in
charge of the daily operations of the Group and are accountable to the
Board for the financial and operational performance of the Group. Their
respective roles and responsibilities are set out in writing, which have been
approved and adopted by the Board.

Independent non-executive Directors

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report, the
Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
representing no less than one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

In determining the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors, the Company follows the requirements as set out in the Listing
Rules. The Company has received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent.
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Appointments, re-election and removal of Directors

Save for employee Directors who shall be elected from the employee
meeting or employee representative meeting of the Company, directors
(including non-executive Directors) shall be elected at the shareholders’
general meeting with a term of office from the date he or she takes office,
until the expiry of the term of office of the session of the Board. Upon expiry
of the term, a Director shall be eligible to offer himself for re-election and
re-appointment. Save for employee Directors who shall be removed by the
employee meeting or employee representative meeting of the Company
and are not subject to the approval of the Shareholders, any Director with
unexpired term of office may be removed by the shareholders’ general
meeting by an ordinary resolution.

Continuous professional development of Directors

Each Director is provided with the necessary induction and information to
ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the Company’s operations
and businesses as well as his/her responsibilities under all applicable laws
and regulations.

The Directors should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company wil
continue to arrange regular seminars to provide the Directors with updates
on the latest developments and changes in the Listing Rules and other
relevant legal and regulatory requirements from time to time. The Directors
are also provided with regular updates on the Company’s performance,
position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge his/her duty.

The Directors are committed to complying with the CG Code C.1.4 on
Directors’ training. During the Reporting Period, all Directors attended
training sessions on the respective obligations of the Directors and senior
management. In addition, relevant reading materials including compliance
manual/legal and regulatory updates/ seminar handouts have been provided
to the Directors for their reference and studying.
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According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of training  BEZFREMLS  EFRMERARNEZ S

received by the Directors during the Reporting Period is as follows: SIBEENT :
Attending training Reading relevant
sessions, including news alerts,
but not limited to, newspapers,
briefings, seminars, journals, magazines
conferences and and relevant
Name of Directors EEnE workshops publications
ZmEINRE - BF MEEBNTE -
BRRAGHRE - B4 - BT R
WeE BBERTWRE HHEATIY
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Ms. Luo Shaoying EREL L v v
Ms. Yi Lin S+ v v
Executive Directors iTES
Mr. Zhang Aiming REREE v 4
Mr. Fan Dong BERELE 4 v/
Independent non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Ms. Cai Ying BETL v/ v
Mr. Wang Susheng THERE v v/
Mr. Song Deliang RESKE 4 4

80 DOWELL SERVICE GROUP CO. LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024



Corporate Governance Report

Board Meetings

Pursuant to Code Provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, at least four regular
Board meetings should be held in each year at approximately quarterly
intervals with active participation of majority of directors, either in person or
through electronic means.

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board meetings regularly.
Notice of not less than 14 days is given of all regular Board meetings to
provide all Directors with the opportunity to attend and include matters in
the agenda. For other Board Committee meetings, seven days’ notice is
given. The agenda and accompanying board papers are despatched to the
Directors or Board Committee members at least three days before meetings
to ensure that they have sufficient time to review these documents and be
adequately prepared. When the Directors or Board Committee members are
unable to attend a meeting, they are advised of the matters to be discussed
and given an opportunity to make their views known to the chairman of the
Board Committee prior to the meeting.

All the Directors have access to advice and services of the Company’s
joint company secretaries, who are responsible for ensuring that Board
procedures and applicable regulations under the Articles of Association or
otherwise are complied with. Each Director is entitled, if necessary, to seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are
recorded in detail and include the matters considered by the Board and
the Board Committees and the decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting and Board
Committee meeting are sent to the Directors within a reasonable time after
the date on which the meeting is held so that they have an opportunity to
request amendments. All minutes are kept by the Company and are open
for inspection by any Director during normal office hours with reasonable
advance notice. Matters considered and decisions reached at the Board
and Committee meetings are recorded with sufficient detail in the minutes.
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Attendance record of Directors

The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings and the
general meetings of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2024 is set out below:

EEHER®

HZE2024F12A31BILFE  SEFHFEART]
BEEoRABRRRSHREIHRIIOT -

Meetings attended/number of meetings

HEEE FERE
Name of Directors EEnE Board meeting General meeting
EEggR BRAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhang Aiming (Vice-chairman, REREE (BEE FESEFE)

Employee Director) 8/8 3/3
Mr. Fan Dong (Employee Director) BREE(EEEE) 8/8 3/3
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Luo Shaoying (Chairladly) BEHAALT (FE) 8/8 1/3
Ms. Yi Lin S+ 8/8 1/3
Independent non-executive Directors BYkHTES
Ms. Cai Ying BERELT 8/8 3/3
Mr. Wang Susheng FEELE 8/8 3/3
Mr. Song Deliang RIESTHEE 8/8 3/3

Board Committees

Each of the Board Committees has specific written terms of reference which
deal clearly with their respective authority and duties. The Board Committees
operate in accordance with their terms of reference established by the
Board.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 20 February 2021 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee consists of one non-executive Director, namely
Ms. Luo Shaoying, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wang Susheng and Mr. Song Deliang. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Song Deliang, who has the appropriate professional
qualifications and experience in accounting matters.

DOWELL SERVICE GROUP CO. LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

EXZEE

BEZZReARNEERERE B
AREEENEILBE B2 REES
SHIE BB EEE -

]

FRZR®

/

Z
%

AIERE AR BIR20214F2 B20H A3 3]
%% 5

N
ZESUHIEHLEMRBAEHE -
ERZEENEBER —BIRTESERALR L
MMEBIUIENTES  BEHERLENRRES
RE-BRLZBEIFR/RBRALE  BRE
EBTEAREEERER KR -



Corporate Governance Report

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee include, among others,
(i) providing an independent view of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control, compliance and risk management
systems of the Group; (i) overseeing the audit process, assisting the Board
in reviewing the financial information and reporting process of the Group
and performing other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board;
(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance, compliance with legal and regulatory requirements
and requirements under the Listing Rules; and (iv) developing, reviewing and
monitoring the code of conduct applicable to the Company’s employees
and Directors.

The Audit Committee convened two meetings during the Reporting Period.
The table below sets forth the details of the attendance at such meetings:

TXRE

AWE

EREZEGNTERERE (AR aE inrs
B SRS RE  RIZES - ARFERERR
FMERHERHEBEIER  ((EBEHFTBRE B
E)J§$Aﬁﬁzl§§@9ﬂ%§ﬂ&¥&mmﬁi]@@ﬁ
é SHORMEMBE LET  (i)FlE REsT A
NABATEER BT AENEERENRLET
HRAHENBERER  RvVHIE BT REE
EARARARIEIREENITASE -

WEMA ERZESHERAMAGH - TRH
I

I EERE RN

Number of meetings

attended/number of

Name of committee member ZESHRERSR meetings
HESBRE

ERBXH

Mr. Song Deliang (Chairman) RiEmE A (FE) 2/2
Ms. Luo Shaoying EHAFEL T 2/2
Mr. Wang Susheng T & E F 2/2

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 and confirmed
that it has complied all applicable accounting principles, standards and
requirements, and made sufficient disclosures. The Audit Committee also
discussed the matters of audit and financial reporting. It had also reviewed
the significant issues on the financial reporting and compliance procedures,
internal control and risk management systems and connected transactions,
and have discussed with the auditor of the Company about the tasks they
performed.
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il

XERARE

The Audit Committee had reviewed the remuneration of the auditor for
the year ended 31 December 2024 and has recommended the Board to
re-appoint BDO Limited as the auditor of the Company for the year ending
31 December 2025, subject to approval by the Shareholders at the AGM.

The work performed by the Audit Committee during the Reporting Period
included, among others, the following:

reviewed the audited consolidated results for the year ended 31
December 2023;

reviewed the unaudited condensed consolidated interim results for the
six months ended 30 June 2024,

reviewed the Company’s cash flow and monitoring the Company’s
overall financial condition;

made recommendation to the Board in relation to the re-appointment
of auditors;

reviewed the appropriateness and effectiveness of the internal control,
compliance and risk management systems of the Company and
recommended improvements of such systems to the Board;

reviewed the appropriateness and effectiveness of the internal audit
functions of the Company and recommended improvements of such
function to the Board; and

reviewed the arrangements which employees can raise concerns on
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters, and investigating such matters (where necessary).
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 20 February
2021 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee consists of one non-executive Director,
namely Ms. Yi Lin, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Ms. Cai Ying and Mr. Wang Susheng. The chairman of the Remuneration
Committee is Mr. Wang Susheng.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include, among
others, (i) making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management and
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing policies
on such remuneration; (ii) reviewing and approving the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives; (i) making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of Directors and senior management; and (iv) to review and/or
approve matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules.

The Remuneration Committee convened one meeting during the Reporting
Period. The table below sets forth the details of the attendance at such
meeting:
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Number of meetings
attended/ number of

Name of committee member ZEENERSE meeting
HESBRE

BEXH

Mr. Wang Susheng (Chairman) TaRAESE (£/E) 1/1
Ms. Yi Lin S+ 1/1
Ms. Cai Ying BERELT 1/1

During such meeting, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and
recommended the Board the remuneration policy and structure of the
Company and the remuneration packages of the Directors, Supervisors and
senior management.

EZEe@ L FHZBeFMAARANHHIEK
RERBURES EERSREEABOFM
8 YMESSRLEE -

2024FEHE RECARTELRBEBROGBRIA

85



86

Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

Compensation of the Directors, Supervisors and senior management

The Directors, Supervisors and senior management receive compensation
in the form of salaries, benefits in kind and/or discretionary bonuses relating
to the performance of the Group. The Company regularly reviews and
determines the remuneration and compensation packages of the Directors,
Supervisors and senior management.

The aggregate amount of remuneration paid by the Company to Directors
and Supervisors (including salaries, allowances and contributions to
retirement benefit scheme) for the year ended 31 December 2024 was
approximately RMB7.3 million.

The aggregate amount of remuneration paid by the Company to its five
highest paid individuals (including the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management) (including salaries, allowances and contributions to retirement
benefit scheme) for the year ended 31 December 2024 was approximately
RMB9.0 million.

None of the Directors had waived or agreed to waive any remuneration for
the year ended 31 December 2024.

The Board will review and determine the remuneration and compensation
packages of the Directors, Supervisors and senior management and will
receive recommendation from the Remuneration Committee which will take
into account, among other things, salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitments and responsibilities of the Directors and Supervisors and
performance of the Company.

For additional information on the Directors’, Supervisors’ and senior
managements’ remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2024 as well
as information on the five highest paid individuals, please refer to note 37
and note 9 to consolidated financial statements.
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Further, and pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of members of the senior management (excluding Directors
and Supervisors) by band for the year ended 31 December 2024 is set out
below:

TRER/RE
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Remuneration band N E Number of persons
A
HK $ 500,001 to HK $ 1,000,000 500,001/ 7t 21,000,000/ 7T 1

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 20 February 2021
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee consists of one non-executive Director, namely
Ms. Luo Shaoying, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Ms. Cai Ying and Mr. Song Deliang. The chairlady of the Nomination
Committee is Ms. Luo Shaoying.

The primary responsibility of the Nomination Committee is to (i) review
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the corporate’s strategy; (i)
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select
or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (i) assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; (iv) review and report annually to the Board the
implementation and effectiveness of mechanism to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board; and (v) make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or reappointment of Directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company.
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The Nomination Committee convened two meetings during the Reporting MWEHIA - IRZZE G HERMREHE - TRHE
Period. The table below sets forth the details of the attendance at such  FIHEZEHMFFE -
meetings:

Number of meetings
attended/ number of

Name of committee member ZEENENRE meeting
HESBRE

BEXH

Ms. Luo Shaoying (Chairladly) BHAELT (FE) 2/2
Ms. Cai Ying BELT 2/2
Mr. Song Deliang REREE 2/2

The work performed by the Nomination Committee during the Reporting B EZEERREBABI TR TIERIE (AR E1E)

Period included, among others, the following: ATR&IE
. reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board; . BN EFSHRE - AS - HREZETE

. assessed the independence of the independent non-executive SZBN FEMITEEME UM &
Directors; and

. reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the nomination EMREBRTAEESIREES -
policy.

Director nomination policy EFEEHE

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection EZECKATERREAZAESHRAERED
and recommendation for the appointment of Directors to the Nominaton HEETFIREHZES -
Committee.

The Company has adopted a Director nomination policy (the “Nomination A ABIERMEZIZRZEBEE ([BRBEKR))  §F
Policy”), which sets out the selection criteria and process and the ﬁﬁﬂﬁfﬁﬁ%&%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ’]?ﬁ“ EAER AR T A 2
Board succession planning considerations in relation to nominaton and EZESETHEZEEZ  HEAHRESSH
appointment of Directors. It aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of HEAAARIREETCHEBIENTEE £B K
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company  Z oL #BHFE - RESSEEANEEZ RS -
and the continuity of the Board and appropriate leadership at Board 2EZE& Mg BEE (WEA) - UiERE
level. The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as B &It »

appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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The Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability and
the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed candidate, including
but not limited to the following:

° character and integrity;

° qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and experience that are relevant to the Company’s business and
corporate strategy and diversity aspects under the board diversity

policy;

° requirements of independent non-executive Directors on the Board
and independence of the proposed independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules; and

° willingness, ability to devote adequate time and relevant interest
to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
Committee(s).

The Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the selection
and appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors at general
meetings. After receiving a list of candidates for the replacement and
appointment of new Directors, the Nomination Committee will request the
candidate to provide his/her biographical information and other information
deemed necessary. The Nomination Committee will review and take
reasonable steps to verify the information obtained from the candidate and
seek clarification, where required. The Nomination Committee may, at its
discretion, invite any candidate to meet with the Nomination Committee
members to assist them in their consideration of the proposed nomination or
recommendation. The Nomination Committee will then submit its nomination
proposal to the Board for consideration and make the corresponding
recommendation to the Shareholders for approval.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as appropriate,
to ensure its effectiveness.
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Board diversity policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company recognises and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at Board
level as an essential element in supporting the attainment of the Company’s
strategic objectives and sustainable development. The Company seeks
to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a number of
factors, including but not limited to talents, skills, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, independence,
knowledge and length of service. The Group will continue to implement
measures and steps to promote and enhance gender diversity at all levels of
the Company. The Company will select potential Board candidates based
on merit and his/her potential contribution to the Board while taking into
account the board diversity policy and other factors. The Company will also
take into consideration its own business model and specific needs from
time to time. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard to
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board comprises seven members, including three female Directors.
The Directors also have a balanced mix of knowledge, skills and experience,
including property management, accounting, finance and investment.
They obtained degrees in various majors including but without limitation
to accounting, finance, business administration and law. The Company
has three independent non-executive Directors who have different industry
backgrounds, including economics, accounting and financial management.
The Company has taken and will continue to take steps to promote gender
diversity at all levels of the Company, including but without limitation at
Board and senior management levels. Taking into account the Company’s
business model and specific needs as well as the presence of three female
Directors out of a total of seven Board members, the Company considers
that the composition of the Board satisfies the board diversity policy.
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The Company will also ensure that there is gender diversity when recruiting
staff at mid to senior levels so that it will have a pipeline of female senior
management and potential successors to the Board going forward. It is the
Company’s objective to maintain an appropriate balance of gender diversity
with reference to the stakeholders’ expectation and international and local
recommended best practices. As at 31 December 2024, the gender ratio
in the workforce (including senior management) was approximately 46.6%
male and 53.4% female. Accordingly, the Company considers that gender
diversity is achieved in its workforce.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for the implementation of the
board diversity policy and compliance with relevant codes governing board
diversity under the CG Code. The Nomination Committee will review the
board diversity policy and the Company’s diversity profile (including gender
balance) annually to ensure its continued effectiveness.

Corporate governance functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in Code
Provision A.2 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, training and continuous professional development of Directors,
Supervisors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of
the Model Code and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this corporate governance report.
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DIRECTORS’S AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’, Supervisors’ and
chief executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the company or its associated corporations” above, at no
time during the Reporting Period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements which enable the Directors
and the Supervisors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate,
and none of the Directors and the Supervisors, or any of their spouses or
children under 18 years of age was granted any right to subscribe for the
equity or debt securities of the Company or any other body corporate nor
had exercised any such right.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules requires there to be an open market in the
securities for which listing is sought and a sufficient public float of an issuer’s
listed securities to be maintained. This normally means that at least 25% of
the issuer’s total issued share capital must at all times be held by the public.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date prior to the
issue of this annual report, the Company maintained sufficient public float as
required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the Reporting Period.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out
in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 163 to 172 of this annual
report.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

BDO Limited, Certified Public Accountants, were engaged as the
Company’s external auditor for the year ended 31 December 2024.
PricewaterhouseCoopers retired as the audit institution of the Company and
were not re-appointed upon expiration of its term of office at the conclusion
of the annual general meeting of the Company held on 28 June 2022. Save
as disclosed above, there were no other changes in auditor of the Company
during the past three years.

An external auditor may provide certain non-audit services to the Group as
long as these services do not involve any management or decision making
functions for and on behalf of the Group, or performing self- assessments or
action as an advocacy role for the Group.
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Before any engagement with external auditor for non-audit services, external
auditor must comply with the independence requirements under Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. An independent auditor’s responsibilities for
the consolidated financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report of this annual report. During the year ended 31 December 2024,
the remunerations paid or payable to BDO Limited regarding the audit and
non-audit services are set out as follows:

TEZEINEZ BN R IEZ RIS AT - SNEAZ B
N BB TEAEHRIASBEHNEXSHENE
=T AR B IR IE o B AZERAN T 4r & BT IS
RAFRENETHRRNFROBIAZEENRE -
B E2024F12A31B IEFE - BLEFT RIEER
BENKEREBLEEZOMESEHINNT

RMB

ARETT

Audit and related services FET RAEERS 1,850,000
Non-audit services (Note) IERET RIS (A7) 250,000
2,100,000

Note: Non-audit services include agreed-upon procedures on the interim financial
statements of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2024.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group endeavours to uphold the integrity of its business by maintaining
an internal control system in its organisational structure to allow for corporate
compliance culture to be embedded into its day-to-day operations. The
Group’s internal control system and procedures are designed to meet its
specific business needs and to minimise its risk exposure. For instance, the
Group’s employees are required to attend staff trainings in relation to policy
changes and other issues from time to time. The Board acknowledges its
responsibility for ensuring that sound and effective internal control systems
are maintained so as to safeguard the Group’s assets and the interest
of shareholders. The Group has developed and established an internal
audit and risk management team, which reports to the Board and the
Audit Committee, to look after the Group’s systems of internal control, risk
management and the internal audit function. The systems of internal control
and risk management are designed to manage rather than to eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The
Board is also responsible for reviewing and maintaining an adequate internal
control system to safeguard the interests of the shareholders and the assets
of the Company.
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The Group has set up and implemented, among others, the following
internal control measures:

—
—

) asystem to monitor and manage any overdue account receivables;

(2)  an internal accounting policy with clear guidelines in relation to the
revenue recognition policy of the Group’s revenue derived from each
of its City Operations Services, Lifestyle Services and FATH and Other
Comprehensive Services in accordance with the relevant applicable
accounting standards;

(8) standardised the Group’s third-party subcontractors selection and
engagement process;

(4) formulate a purchase order creation and approval mechanism;
(6) standardised the Group’s accounts payable management process;

(6) enhanced the management of the safety of the Group’s database
systems; and

(7)  developed a standard procedure alternation process and system and
formulate an official data recovery plan.

The Group has established risk management manual to formulate the risk
management process and the management is committed to fostering a
risk aware and internal control conscious environment. The staff in all levels
within the Group are also required to take the relevant responsibility on the
risk management process. The procedures for risk management are as
follows:

Risk identification

Both interal and external factors including economic, political, technology
and environmental, social and governance factors, laws and regulations,
business objectives and stakeholders’ expectation would be considered.

Risk assessment

The risk identified would be assessed and rated based on the likelihood and
impact to the achievement of the Group’s objectives.
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Control activities

The internal control procedures have been designed and implemented to
address the risks.

Risk monitoring

Risk register has been maintained and updated regularly to monitor risks on
an ongoing basis.

Risk management review

The Board and the Audit Committee would perform a review of any change
of significant risks reported by the internal audit and risk management team.

As at 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this annual report, so far
as the Directors are aware, there have not been any other incidents of
non-compliance.

The Group has also implemented various risk management policies and
measures to identify, assess and manage risks arising from its operations.
Detailed risk categories identified by the management, internal and external
reporting mechanism, remedial measures and contingency management
have been codified in the Group’s policies.

During the Reporting Period, the internal audit functions have been carried
out under the leadership of the Board and the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee reviewed the effectiveness of internal control system of the
Group in respect of finance, operation, compliance and business matters
and reported the results to the Board. Should any material fault or any
material weakness in monitoring be found, the internal audit team will report
the same to the Audit Committee in timely manner.

Based on the aforementioned implementation of internal policies and risk
management policies, the Directors are of the view that the Group has
adequate and effective internal control procedures in place.

The Group’s management will continuously monitor and improve the
procedures at least once per year to ensure that the effective operation of its
risk management and internal control measures is in line with the growth of
its business and good corporate governance practice.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company takes seriously of its
obligations under Part XIVA of the SFO and the Listing Rules. The Company
has adopted a continuous disclosure compliance policy which sets out
guidelines and procedures to the Directors and officers of the Group to
ensure inside information of the Group is to be disseminated to the public in
equal and timely manner.

Each business unit is responsible for monitoring any potential inside
information within its operations. If there is any potential inside information,
such information will be escalated to the senior management and the
company secretary of the Company so that an assessment will be made as
to whether an announcement will need to be made. If an announcement will
be made including considering whether any safe harbour is available under
the SFO, such announcement will be made by the Company on timely
basis to enable the public, namely Shareholders, potential investors and
other stakeholders of the Company, to assess such information. All inside
information is kept strictly confidential and is restricted to relevant parties
on a need-to-know basis to ensure confidentiality until disclosure has been
made to the public by way of an announcement.

Whistleblowing and anti-corruption policies

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining the highest
possible standards of openness, probity and accountability. A whistleblowing
policy is in place to create a system for the employees and business partners
to raise concerns, in confidence and anonymity, to the Audit Committee and
the Board about possible improprieties relating to the Group. The identity of
the whistleblower will be treated with the strictest confidence.

The Company has also established an anti-corruption policy and system
to promote and support anti-corruption laws and regulations. The
anti-corruption policy sets out the basic standard of conduct which applies
to all directors and employees of the Company. It also provides guidance on
accepting advantages and handling conflicts of interest.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Pursuant to Rules 3.28 and 8.17 of the Listing Rules, the Company must
appoint, as its company secretary, an individual who, by virtue of his/
her academic or professional qualifications or relevant experience, is, in
the opinion of the Stock Exchange, capable of discharging the functions
of company secretary. The Stock Exchange considers () a member of
The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute; (i) a solicitor or barrister
(as defined in the Legal Practitioners Ordinance (Chapter 159 of the
Laws of Hong Kong)); and (i) a certified public accountant (as defined
in the Professional Accountants Ordinance (Chapter 50 of the Laws of
Hong Kong)) to be acceptable academic or professional qualifications.
In assessing “relevant experience”, the Stock Exchange will consider the
individual’s (i) length of employment with the issuer and other issuers and the
roles he/she played; (i) familiarity with the Listing Rules and other relevant
law and regulations including the SFO, the Companies Ordinance, the
Companies (Winding up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance and the
Takeovers Code; (i) relevant training taken and/or to be taken in addition
to the minimum requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules; and (iv)
professional qualifications in other jurisdictions.

Mr. Liu Xing and Mr. Wong Wai Chiu (as an associate director of SWCS
Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited, an external services
provider) have been appointed as the Company’s joint company secretaries.
Mr. Wong Wai Chiu’s primary contact person of the Company is Mr. Liu
Xing, one of the joint company secretaries.

Mr. Liu Xing is experienced in finance and accounting and has a thorough
understanding of the operation of the Group as he joined the Group in
August 2014. However, Mr. Liu does not possess any of the qualifications
as stipulated in Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules and may not be able to
solely fulfill the requirements of the Listing Rules. Therefore, the Company
also appointed Mr. Wong Wai Chiu, who meets the requirements under
Rules 3.27 and 8.17 of the Listing Rules to act as another joint company
secretary and to provide assistance to Mr. Liu Xing for a period of three
years commencing from the Listing Date so as to fully comply with the
requirements set out under Rules 3.28 and 8.17 of the Listing Rules.

The joint company secretaries attended sufficient professional training as
required under the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2024
to update their skills and knowledge. All Directors have access to the joint
company secretaries’ advices and services.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS
Communications with Shareholders

The Company is committed to pursue active dialogue with the Shareholders
as well as to provide timely disclosure of information concerning the
Company’s material developments to its Shareholders, investors and other
stakeholders.

The annual general mesting of the Company serves as an effective forum for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. Notice of annual
general meeting together with the meeting materials will be published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company, and will be despatched
upon request to all Shareholders not less than 20 business days before
the annual general meeting. As one of the measures to safeguard the
Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions will be proposed
at general meetings on each substantial issue, including the election of
individual Directors, for Shareholders’ consideration and voting. In addition,
the Company regards annual general meeting as an important event, and
all Directors, Supervisors, the chairman of the Board Committees, senior
management and external auditor will attend the annual general meeting of
the Company to address the Shareholders’ inquiries (if any). If the Chairman
or the chairman of each Board Committee fail to attend the meeting, then
other members of each Board Committee will be invited to attend the annual
general meeting and answer the Shareholders’ inquiries. All resolutions
proposed at general meetings will be voted on by poll. The voting results
will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)
and the Company (www.dowellservice.com) on the same day of the relevant
general meetings.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
(www.dowellservice.com), where the latest information and updates on
its business operation and development, corporate governance practice,
contact information of investor relations and other information are published
for the public’s access.

The Board has reviewed the implementation of the Shareholders’
communication policy of the Company. Taking into account the variety of
existing channels for communication and participation, the Company is of
the view that its Shareholders’ communication policy was effective during
the year ended 31 December 2024.

The Company will continuously review the abovementioned shareholder
communication policy to ensure its continued effectiveness.
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XERARE

Procedures for Shareholder(s) to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)

The following procedures for Shareholders to convene an EGM are prepared
in accordance with the Articles of Association:

(1)

Any one or more Shareholders (the “Requisitionist(s)”) holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, 10% or more of the Shares,
severally or jointly, carrying the right of voting at the general meetings
shall have the right, by one or several written requests of the same
format and content, to require an EGM to be called by the Board
for the transaction or any business specified in such requisition. The
written requisition should be sent to the Company’s principal place
of business at 4th Floor, Hall E, Dongyuan 1891, Nan’an District,
Chongaing, the PRC. The Board shall give a written reply on whether
or not it agrees to convene such EGM within 10 days upon receipt of
the aforementioned written request. The aforementioned number of
Shares shall be calculated in accordance with the Shares held on the
day on which the written request is made by the Requisitionist(s).

Where the Board agrees to hold the EGM, it shall serve a notice
of such meeting within five days after the resolution of the Board,
give notice of the convening of a general meeting. If the Board does
not agree to convene the EGM or fails to reply within 10 days after
receiving the aforementioned written request, the Requisitionist(s)
making the request may request the Supervisory Board to convene an
EGM.

If the Supervisory Board fails to agrees to convene the EGM, it
shall service a notice of such meeting within five days receipt of
the aforementioned written request. In the event of any change
to the original proposal set out in the notice, the consent from
the Requisitionist(s) shall be obtained. If the Supervisory Board
fails to serve the notice of EGM within the prescribed period, the
Requisitionist(s) for more than 90 consecutive days may convene and
preside over the meeting by themselves.
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Procedures for Shareholder(s) to put forward proposals at
a general meeting

Shareholder(s) holding three (3) per cent or more of the Shares, individually or
in aggregate, shall have the right to put forward ad hoc written proposals (the
“Proposal’) 10 days before a general meeting. The Board shall, within two
days upon receipt of such Proposal, issue a supplemental notice of general
meeting and subject the Proposal to the general meeting for consideration.
The contents of the Proposal shall fall within the scope of responsibilities of
the general meeting and shall have clear topics and specific resolutions.

Procedures for directing Shareholder’s enquiries to the
Board

The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the investor relations, whose contact details are as
follows:

Address:  4th Floor, Hall E, Dongyuan 1891, Nan’an District, Chongaing,
the PRC
Email: ir@dowellservice.com

Communication with Shareholders and investors

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
Group’s business performance and strategies.

The Company meets the Shareholders at the annual general meeting,
publishes interim and annual reports of the Company’s website (http://
www.dowellservice.com) and the Stock Exchange’s website (http:/www.
hkexnews.hk), and releases press releases on the Company’s website to
keep the Shareholders and potential investors abreast the Group’s business
and development.

Articles of Association

There has not been any other changes to the Articles of Association during
the Reporting Period. An up-to-date version of the Articles of Association is
also available on the Company’s website (http://www.dowellservice.com)
and the Stock Exchange’s website (http://Awww.hkexnews.hk).
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy in 2023 (the “Dividend
Policy”). Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the Company should maintain
sufficient cash reserves to meet the demand for funds, future growth and
its equity value when recommending or declaring dividends. In addition
to the declaration of dividends, the Board should also take into account
of the financial performance, cash flow position, business status and
strategy, future operation and income, capital demand and expense plan,
Shareholders’ benefits, limits on the dividend declaration and any other
factors the Board may consider to be relevant. According to the Articles of
Association, dividends will be denominated and declared in RMB. Dividends
on H Shares will be paid in HK dollars. The relevant exchange rate will be
calculated based on the average exchange rate of RMB against HK dollars
as announced by the People’s Bank of China seven days prior to the date
of the AGM at which the dividend declaration was approved.

No dividend shall be declared or payable except out of profits and reserves
lawfully available for distribution. The Company is permitted to pay dividends
only out of the Company’s retained earnings, if any, as determined in
accordance with applicable PRC accounting standards and regulations.
Under PRC law, the Company is required to set aside 10% of its after-tax
profits each year, if any, to fund certain statutory reserve funds until such
reserve funds reach 50% of the registered capital of the Company. The
statutory reserve funds are not distributable as cash dividends. The Board
will review the Company’s status periodically and consider adopting a
dividend policy if and when appropriate.

By order of the Board

Dowell Service Group Co. Limited
Ms. Luo Shaoying

Chairlady and non-executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2025

* For identification purposes only
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ABOUT THIS REPORT
Introduction

DOWELL SERVICE GROUP CO. LIMITED* (5 JR1= &4k i1 i& & Bk
S BARD B R A 7)) (referred to as “DOWELL” or the “Company”,
and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group” or “we”) is pleased to
publish its third Environmental, Social and Governance (referred to
as the “ESG”) Report (referred to as the “Report”), with an intention
to provide a disclosure of the Group’s management practices and
performance in the ESG field throughout 2024.

Reporting Standards and Principles

The Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide (referred to as the “Guide”) in
Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (referred to as
the “HKEX”). The Company upholds the disclosure principles set out
in the Guide, reports on the “mandatory disclosure” and “comply or
explain” provisions set out in the Guide, and follows the four reporting
principles of materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency.
Materiality: The Report has identified material ESG factors and
disclosed the process to identify and the criteria for the
selection of material ESG factors and the process and
results of stakeholder engagement.

Quantitative:  The standards, methodologies, assumptions and/
or calculation tools used, and source of conversion
factors used, for the reporting of emissions, are
described in the notes to the Report.

Balance: The Report provides an unbiased picture of the
Group’s performance and avoids selections,
omissions, or presentation formats that may
inappropriately influence a decision or judgment by the

report reader.

Consistency: Consistent statistical methodologies are used for
information disclosure in the Report. Any changes will
be clearly stated in the Report.
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Reporting Period and Boundary

The Report covers the period from 1 January 2024 to 31 December
2024 (referred to as the “Reporting Period” or the “Year”). Unless
otherwise stated, the Report covers businesses directly controlled
by DOWELL; environmental key performance indicators (KPIs) in the
Report cover the headquarters office as well as the Eastern China, the
Central China, the Western China, and the Southwest China, while
social KPlIs cover the entire Group.

Reporting Language

The Report is published in both Chinese and English. In the event of
any discrepancies, the Chinese version shall prevail.

Approval and Confirmation

The board of directors of the Company (referred to as the “Board”)
assumes full responsibility for the content of the Report and approved
and confirmed the content of the Report on 31 March 2025.

Publication

The electronic version of the Report is available for Environmental,
Social and Governance Report 2024 on “Disclosure” under “Investor
Relations” on the Company’s official website (www.dowellservice.
com), or on the HKEXnews website (www.hkexnews.hk).

Contact us

We attach great importance to your comments and suggestions on
the Report, and welcome you to contact us by email (Email address:
ir@dowellservice.com).
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2. ABOUT DOWELL

2.1

2.2

Company Profile

DOWELL’s corporate culture is symbolized by “mountain”,
which implies its service-oriented commitment and the steadfast
and firm adherence to its original aspiration. DOWELL believes
that “Man’s will is higher than any mountain”, and emphasizes
that our corporate culture is a culture of “people”. Only working
together as a team enables us to climb the peak. Underpinned
by the prevailing service concept of “For Every Moment of
Peace of Mind”, we take responsibility for the quality of the
enterprise and support the realization of the ultimate goal.
Simplicity and reliability, customer orientation, pursuit for
excellence, and mutual achievement are the core values of the
corporate culture, and also represent the code of conduct and
value standards that we all uphold.

The Company was established in 2003 and was listed on the
HKEX in 2022. As of 31 December 2024, the Group operated
and managed 625 property projects in 80 cities in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”), including 247 residential projects
and 378 non-residential projects. The Group provides diversified
services through such business lines: being City Operations
Services, Lifestyle Services and FATH and Other Comprehensive
Services.

Honours and Recognition

We adhere to the customer-centric service philosophy and
continue to innovate to provide customers with higher-quality
comprehensive property management services. By virtue of
our outstanding service quality, we have earned the trust and
high recognition from our customers and won a large array of
property service honours and awards in the industry. Below are
the major honours and awards received by the Group:
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Honours and awards

BB RIRE
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RIE -HERER

Awarding entities
FRRE

Rank the 15th among the 2024 Top 100 Property Management Companies
in China

20247 B 2 AR 75 E 58 (S ¥ TOP15

2024 Top 10 Property Service Companies in terms of Comprehensive Strength

in Chongging

2024E E WM ERS B ELRE E HTOP10

2024 International Outstanding Enterprise in Sustainable Development of
Property Management Services
20241 M E RIS AT B REBAE

2024 China Leading Enterprise in Property Technology Empowerment

2024 B R R BE AR b

2024 Leading Brands Engaged in Specialised Operation of Property Services
in China
2024 B RIS BB LB mERE

2024 Featured Brands of Property Services in China — Integrated Medical and
Wellness Care Services DOWELL Shengkang

2024 B ERBFEmECEX-BEREREFRERERREE

Rank the 15th in 2024 Property Enterprises in terms of Comprehensive Strength

in China
2024 B EIRE B 1F 1554

2024 China Leading Property Service Enterprises in terms of
East China Regional Competitiveness

2024 BEIMERBERRILHF HBALDLE

Information Technology
Research Institute of Beijing
China Index Academy

LR IRIE BRI T

Information Technology
Research Institute of Beijing
China Index Academy

P IEE SR

Information Technology
Research Institute of Beijing
China Index Academy

IERFIRIE BB T

Information Technology
Research Institute of Beijing
China Index Academy
bR RE BB T

Information Technology
Research Institute of Beijing
China Index Academy

IR EE SR

Information Technology
Research Institute of Beijing
China Index Academy
ERPEE SR
EH Consulting

BHEE

EH Consulting

RMEE

2024 China Exemplary Benchmark Property Service Enterprise in terms of Hospital EH Consulting

Property Services

2024 BRI B M R MIGEAIRRLE
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$ﬁﬂ:

Honours and awards Awarding entities
REBRKRE TEERE

2024 China Benchmark Property Service Enterprise in terms of Red Property EH Consulting
2024 B X RIS AL EMERELE BHEE

2024 China Preferred Brand of International Property Services EH Consulting
2024+ Bl BIFR ) R AR 15858 f b (k=

2024 China Exemplary Benchmark Property Service Enterprise in terms of Featured EH Consulting
Property Technology Empowerment

2024 B ¥ R M E BT B R R A BB
2024 China Property Enterprise with ESG Rating BBB EH Consulting
20247 B ¥ 3 1> 3 ESGHT 4 BBB B E
2024 Top 14 Listed Property Enterprise in China EH Consulting
20247 B ¥ 1 2 TOP14 BHEE
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3. ESG APPROACH AND STRATEGY

3.1 Board Statement

The Board of Directors assumes full responsibility for the
Group’s ESG strategies, approaches and reporting. Under the
leadership of the Board, during the Year, the ESG Working
Group has been working to understand the concerns and
requirements of various stakeholders through materiality
assessment, identifying and prioritizing ESG materiality issues
SO as to determine the Group’s ESG management approach,
strategy, priorities and objectives. We have clearly set key ESG
goals including greenhouse gas emissions, waste management
and use of resources. The Board has conducted a detailed
review and discussion of these objectives and regularly assesses
the progress in achieving these goals to ensure the effective
advancement of ESG initiatives. In the future, we will continue
to explore opportunities for improvement, constantly enhancing
our ESG performance, promoting corporate sustainability and
creating long-term value for our stakeholders.
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3.2 ESG Governance Structure 3.2 ESGERLER
Our ESG governance structure is led by the Board to manage BMIMESGE A EBHESETAET
sustainable development matters. The ESG working group and BRI FEERRER - ESGL{E/A
relevant departments are responsible for reporting to the Board, MEREABFIBEMNESSER
forming the following comprehensive governance structure: AT 2 HEEE R

REME  EET

Decision-making level: Board

o YESGEMREREEDIEE
o BRNMBHALEBESGEER A - Kk - BEREELE  BiF:1E BAHIIREEEAESGEE - BREKE &
o FEMFEESGHREAR o

e Taking overall responsibility for ESG strategy and reporting;

e  Deciding and approving the ESG management approaches, strategies, objectives and annual tasks of the Group,
including assessment, prioritisation and management of material ESG issues, risks and opportunities; and

e Approving the content of the annual ESG report.

HEE - (ESGIE/ME) BREERE H EFE  PHAZEAKERHEABIILE
(0 : BRREEPLEEA - ADBERPLEEA  EEERPOAEA - HFCEEEPLERA
RERREPLEEA)

Organisational level: (ESG working group), Senior management, Office of the Board, Repre-
sentatives of relevant departments of the Group

(e.g., heads of Risk Management Center, Human Resources Center, Operational Development Center,
Digitalization and Communication Center, Investment Development Center)

o TEHMEZZER;

o Al FIME  BREKEEEAESGEE - EBKREE &

o HIEEESGEERE - KM FEIFRER  HESSHI  LHEDEBEHTIE-

e  Reporting to the Board regularly;

e |dentifying, assessing, reviewing and managing material ESG issues, risks and opportunities; and

e Formulating ESG management approaches, strategies, annual tasks and objectives for approval by the Board, and
promoting the implementation of relevant tasks.

HESGHEEARIERPS
(EBRE C ANERABL - BEERP - BFCEREEPL - BERRHL)

Executive level: ESG-related departments of the Group
(Risk Management Center, Human Resources Center, Operational
Development Center, Digitalization and Communication Center, Investment Development Center)

e RIBEEESGEERNH# KK FEIFEREENERMNS T @ ABKRHTEEESGHEE T ;

o HBEFRIBESGHEABRKHE &

o TEHIRESGIfE/NAER o

e According to the Group’s ESG management approaches, strategies, annual tasks and objectives and division of
labour, we organise and execute ESG-related work;

e  Following various ESG-related policies and systems; and

e Reporting to the ESG working group on a regular basis.
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3.3 Stakeholder Engagement

Stakeholder engagement is one of the important elements in
promoting sustainable development. By fully listening to the
opinions of all parties, we are committed in balancing and
satisfying the requirements of various stakeholders. We believe
that the Group’s business development will benefit from effective
and continuous listening to, response to and resolution of the
views and concerns of stakeholders. At the same time, we
continue to optimize our sustainable development strategy and
strive to achieve win-win cooperation.

Major stakeholders Major concerns/expectations

FERHE TEET HE

33 HPrEBE

FhEBBIHENSERRITIE
MEETLEZ — RMTOEIET
BR BN TPEHEERSFNED
Z2 - RPIR BB BMFENRE -
R NIRRT E B R AR M
BOIMMEE AR EENELE
& - REF - RATEH R AFARR
RS - IREREERHR -

Major communication channels

TRBERE

Customers ° Customer privacy protection
° Service quality
o Health and safety of products and

services
®P o EPREALIRE
o frRi%E =

s EmkRBoEEEZE

Customer satisfaction survey and
comment form

Customer advisory group
Customer Service Center

Visits by customer relationship manager
Daily operation/communication
Online service platform
Phone/email
EPmEERENERE
B/

=P AR

B BIRSIRRED

HEEE N

W ERBTAE

BiEHAE

DOWELL SERVICE GROUP CO. LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE HENE $ﬁ¢

Major stakeholders Major concerns/expectations
FEFOE TERE HE

Shareholders/investorse

Major communication channels
FEBERK

Economic performance o

Annual general meeting and other

R AREE

. Risk management

Compliance with laws and regulations

Z% /}ig Z )&

HAAE}%
BIEER

general meetings

Interim reports and annual reports
Corporate communications such as
letters/circulars to shareholders and
notices of meetings

Results announcements
Shareholders’ visits

Investor meetings

Senior management meetings
Meetings and interviews
REEFRGEAMBRAE
HERER B 4R

EBH - WBREEHARLE
il

KHERM

IR 2 E A&

KEEGE

SREBAEER

SEEA

i

Employees’ rights and interests
Employee health and safety

Provision of competitive compensation
and incentive system

Optimisation of the training and
development system

Employment relations and employee
communication

BTz
BTIfRRFEELTE
IR B 0 80 5 B SRR

TERIRERER
BEBERETER

Employee opinion survey

Performance appraisal

Meetings and interviews

Business briefings

Special advisory committee/panel
Seminars/workshops/lectures
Publications (e.g. employee newsletters)
Employee communication conferences
Employee intranet

BEIRRAER

THERBRFZ

SREHK

ALk

BRI AZE El/ii;’%; A J\i\‘ﬂ
Mg T B

o (A B T

ETEBAE

8 T AR
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Major stakeholders

AE

Major concerns/expectations

Major communication channels

TERNE TERE HE FTEBERR
Business partners ° Intellectual property protection ° Reports
° Response to policies and participation in Meetings
industry exchanges o Visits
° Business ethics
° Information security
EBRA e HBERRE s WE
o  EBRBERSETEIR s BRE
s  HXEIE e K&
. ERLR
Regulatory authorities e Compliance with laws and regulations e Meetings

Prevention of corruption risks
consultation
Information security

Written response to public
Compliance reports

EEWE s AXaR s E&
e HBERERRAR e HARFANEHEMEE
. EREE e  ARWmE
Community/ ° Participation in charity and volunteer ° Volunteer activities
non-governmental activities ° Community activities
organisations ° Seminars/lectures/workshops
HEERAEE o SQRARESHERTY o EIED
o HEED
o WFE BRI
Peers ° Response to policies and participation e Strategic cooperation projects
in industry exchanges o Communication conferences
EES s EBRBRKZHITEIR e  KWRUEAIEER
e  BEAE
Suppliers ° Supply chain management ° Supplier management programme
° Supplier/contractor evaluation system
° Meetings
o Site visits
HER o  fHEREER s HEBEERER
o LRER AR ITEGIE
s E&E
o  EHMRE
External counselors e Compliant employment ° Working groups
HNIE 122 AR e AKAT e TI{E/NAE
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3.4 Materiality Assessment

The support of stakeholders is the cornerstone of our robust
development and the core driving force behind the continuous
progress of the enterprise. To this end, we always hold the
expectations and opinions of internal and external stakeholders
in high regard, ensuring that their concerns are fully reflected
in our decision-making and operations. During the year, our
stakeholder group, business scope and operating environment
have not undergone significant changes compared to last year.
After a comprehensive assessment by the Board of Directors,
the ESG Working Group and the management, and by reference
to the guidelines of the Stock Exchange and the Materiality Map
of the Sustainability Accounting Standards Board (SASB), it
has been confirmed that the materiality matrix results from the
previous year remain applicable to the current situation. This
year, we will continue to use this matrix to ensure the continuity
and consistency of our ESG initiatives. These issues not only
reflect the core concemns of the stakeholders but also align with
industry trends and global sustainable development goals. At
the same time, we will continue to optimize the mechanism
for communicating with stakeholders by conducting regular
dialogues, surveys and feedback collection. This will allow
us to dynamically adjust our ESG strategies, further enhance
transparency and accountability, create long-term value for our
stakeholders and promote the sustainable development of the
enterprise.
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2024F [E s

CHERE

#B’z*':

BB

BOENIFERMEREEMNE
A EREEB R EBEESNZOE
71 - Bt BPIR LB AR IN R
MEHMHEHERENETENE © #
RERRMELEP D EBEMMH
) o RFE - BRI D & B -
EBEERCERIERAFAL RE
EBEBRE L - LB EEE  ESGLIE
b@&E@Fm%@ﬁm'%%mi
e M FEERES Ew
ZEBECASBEZ HERE - R L
FENEZHEEEERDARE %F
RSN - AFERMEEE LA
—ﬁ@~m%%&aiﬁm@%ﬁﬁ
—HE e BERETMERM THMNE
KZ OB RS - BT E BB 2 IR
AHEERRBZARE - FR - B
B E LT O B KB RES
FIBTFHIYEE - ML U E - B
REFIEESGRES - E— P RAEHE
MEAR  BREMHEEERAEE
HEREMIFEER -

RECARTEERBEEARDARDA

113



114

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R S RER/HKRE

= High

Materiality to Stakeholders

HRFEE A mERM

24

& Low

Highly material issues
BEEERE

22

17

21Mo 18
am®

BB
Materiality Matrix

11
16 L

HRRCHNESE
Materiality to DOWELL

Moderately material issues
HEEERE

Generally material issues

-REZEE

1.

Customer privacy protection

8.

Compliant employment

Supplier environmental and social risk
management

1. EPELRE HHAT 6. HEARERMEEBRER

2. Operation compliance Customer satisfaction 17. Optimisation of the training and
development system

2, ZEAH 9. EPmEE 7. RERIEZRER

3. Anti-corruption 10. Intellectual property protection 18. Provision of competitive compensation
and incentive system

3. k&S 0. HBERRE 18, REAHFNNZFHEHEEL

4, Product and senvice quality 11. Responsible marketing 19. Waste management

4, EmkRBER 1. BEIEH 9. EEWER

5. Business ethics 12, Promoting the development of 20. Energy management

intelligent property services
5. BEIELE 2. EPEEMERKEE 20. BRER
6 Health and safety of products and 13. Employment relations and employee  21. Water resource management
services communication

6. EmMREOERELZ S 13 EREEKEIER 2. KARER

7. Employees’ health and safety 14, Supply chain management 22. Greenhouse gas emissions
management

7. BIREERE 14, HERER 2. RERBHMERE

15. Employees’ rights and interests 28. Participation in charity and volunteer
activities
5. EIfm 2. BERGEEETRED
24, Climate change
4. REEL
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4. COMPLIANCE GOVERNANCE 4. SRER

4.1 Business Ethics 41

The Group attaches great importance to internal control and
risk management, and continuously improves the management
system of risk response and internal control. We have
formulated the Internal Audit Management System to clarify the
Group’s goals and principles for internal control management
and risk management, risk identification, risk assessment,
risk response, risk management monitoring and supervision,
etc. Our risk management centre has an audit team to be
responsible for the Group’s internal audit work; and the audit
team is equipped with professional auditors based on business
needs. The inspected and audited units include all operating
and management activities and related information of finance,
engineering, procurement, operations, human resources, etc.
There is no limitation in the scope of audit. In response to the
problems identified in the audit, the audited unit or relevant
functional departments of the Group are required to rectify,
correct and deal with disciplinary violations, and check the
implementation of audit requirements. We give full play to the
supervision of internal audit and strengthen risk management.

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of
business ethics in order to create healthy and steady long-term
development. Therefore, we have the Standards on Eight
Prohibited Conducts in place, specifying employees’ prohibited
behaviours, professional bottom lines and disciplines. For
example, employees are not allowed to harm the interests of
customers, the Company and its partners for personal gains,
and are prohibited to commit fraud, deceive the Company,
or disclose or sell the Company’s secrets, etc. Specifying
prohibited conducts helps to regulate the daily behaviours
of employees, so as to ensure the health and integrity of the
Group’s internal control environment. We also provide a variety
of reporting channels, such as mobile phone, email, QQ,
website, address and Feishu, providing employees with a safe
and convenient way to strengthen supervision of inappropriate
behaviours.
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4.2 Integrity Building

During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly complied with
relevant laws and regulations in preventing bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering, such as the Anti-Money
Laundering Law of the PRC, the Company Law of the PRC and
other laws and regulations in relation to anti-money laundering.
The Group strictly resists any form of corruption, bribery,
extortion, fraud, embezzlement and money laundering.

We have developed the Anti-Money Laundering Management
System to promote and strengthen the Group’s anti-money
laundering efforts, and establish and improve the anti-money
laundering management mechanism. We require the financial
management department to supervise each business
department and cease any suspicious business in a timely
manner. Relevant departments of the group companies at all
levels shall conduct analysis on the significant transactions
that occurred on the day, prudently screen any suspicious
transactions and report them to the Risk Management Center.
After investigation, the Risk Management Center will then report
to the supervisory authority. The Risk Management Center,
together with relevant departments, regularly inspect the
implementation of anti-money laundering in each business line
and conducts independent inspection and supervision.

Our Standards on Eight Prohibited Conducts require all
employees not allowed to accept commercial bribes. Employees
are prohibited to directly or indirectly solicit or accept any form of
improper benefits from cooperative units and customers, such
as cash, entertainment and hospitality, loans, work opportunities
etc. During the Group’s economic and business dealings and
operating activities, cash gift and gift coupons and gifts from
external units or individuals that fail to be refused by employees
due to work connections, shall be handed over to the financial
department and the administrative department, respectively. Our
Risk Management Center is responsible for providing regular
trainings to employees to ensure their compliance with such
standards.
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The Group provides various anti-corruption reporting channels,
including monitoring reporting hotlines, reporting emails and
reporting addresses, and encourages all stakeholders to
report any internal or external acts of corruption and bribery.
We undertake to protect the personal information of all
whistleblowers and ensure that they won’t receive any unfair
treatment as a result of their whistle-blowing actions. Where
reports of corruption received are substantiated, the persons
concerned will be punished in accordance with the established
system, and, in severe cases, be referred to the judicial
authorities.

During the Year, we provided anti-corruption training to the
Directors and our employees, nurturing a culture that values
integrity and high ethical standard through the provision of
education on topics about integrity and ethical behaviour in an
in-depth manner.

During the Year, there was no litigation related to corruption
brought against the Group or its employees.
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4.3 Information Security

The Group strictly complies with the provisions of the Cyber
Security Law of the PRC in relation to information security and
privacy protection, and maintains the personal information of
customers, so that customers are confident of the services
of the Group with relief. We have established the Information
Security Management System to ensure that data security
management risks of the Group are effectively managed and
controlled, and have developed a comprehensive security
management framework to deal with security issues that may
arise in different scenarios. To effectively protect data assets,
the Group formulates measures and technical requirements
in terms of organisational responsibilities, security processes,
system security management, data sharing management, etc..
For example, we require security scanning for all information
systems before they are launched to avoid possible information
security loopholes and relevant risk issues. In daily operations,
we carry out strict control, and employees are not allowed to
transmit company information to external parties. We require
our employees to enter into confidentiality agreements and
undertakings with our partners, to determine the data protection
and security responsibilities that employees and partners should
assume during the operation and maintenance, development
and testing, and production operation of all the Group’s
business systems. In addition, we require our employees to
refrain from photographing, recording or videotaping company
information under any circumstances, uploading company
information to the Internet or peddiing it to other companies
or individuals, so as to ensure the security and confidentiality
of company information. These measures contribute to
the establishment of good information security awareness
and behavioural habits, and effectively preventing the risk
of information leakage, thus safeguarding the interests and
reputation of the Group.
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The Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations,
including the Administrative Measures on Internet Information
Services and the Regulations on the Administration of Mobile
Internet Application Programme Information Services, and
formulated the Cloud Server Operation and Maintenance
Management System, Information System Operation and
Maintenance Management System and Information System
Implementation and Management System to ensure stable
operation of the servers and to improve the stability of the data.
We have specified regulations on data resource management,
such as server password management, vulnerability and virus
management, and server failure management, to strengthen
the security of servers. We have formulated detailed process
of server failure handling, including timely troubleshooting,
recording the failure situation, and reporting, etc., so as to
respond and solve the problems quickly and minimize the
impact of failures on the business. In addition, we provide
cloud server registration form, cloud resource application form,
inspection log form, etc., which is conducive to comprehensive
recording and archiving of the server management process,
optimizing the inspection points, inspection contents and
inspection process control.
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Protection of Personal Data

The Group attaches importance to the protection of customer
data and the establishment of information security so that
customers are confident of the Group’s services with relief.
The Information Security Management System emphasizes
the protection of user information and specifies rules for
the collection and use of user information, principles for the
collection and use of personal information with the consent
of the user to protect personal data in all respects. First of all,
the Group stipulates that the collection of customers’ personal
sensitive information is prohibited, and requires the purpose,
manner and scope of collection of customers’ personal
information be clearly communicated in order to protect the
privacy rights and interests of users. In addition, the Group
has established a strict privilege management system to
ensure user’s privileges are effectively controlled and managed
to minimize the risk of data misuse. For example, dynamic
desensitization operation and data encrypted transmission of
customer class data effectively prevent the risk of data leakage
or tampering during transmission and processing. We believe
these measures provide strong support for the safe use and
protection of personal data and help building a secure data
management environment.

During the Year, there was no personal data leakage or related
lawsuit against the Group.
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Responsible Marketing

To ensure correct and balanced advertising messages are
delivered to customers, the Group has formulated management
systems for brand positioning, media management, brand
campaigns and other media publicity work, such as the
Document Management System, the Media Relations
Management System, and the Brand Database Management
System. These provisions regulate the maintenance of and
cooperation with the Group’s media relations, clarify the
authority and responsibility for media relations management,
improve the efficiency of the issuance of documents and ensure
the quality of the issuance of documents, so as to ensure
cooperation between the Group and the media is carried out
effectively.

During the Year, there was no disputes related to advertising
and information promotion brought against the Group.
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4.4 Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

The Group has formulated the Intellectual Property Rights
Management System, which includes the Trademark
Management Measures, Patent Management Measures,
Copyright Management Measures and other internal process
specifications to standardize the process management of
intellectual property rights such as patents and software
copyrights. Our Intellectual Property Management System
regulates and manages the application, registration, use and
protection of intellectual property rights by all departments in
the Group. Each department puts forward the specific needs of
intellectual property application based on business needs and
actual situations, and submits the relevant filing plan and filing
materials to the Digitalization and Communication Center in a
timely manner. The Group’s Digitalization and Communication
Center is responsible for trademark registration, renewals and
changes, as well as the fiing of computer software copyrights
and domain names. The Human Resources Center and the
Human Resources Administration Archivist are responsible for
ensuring employment contracts and confidentiality agreements
of new employees contain relevant intellectual property rights
ownership clauses, and collecting, filing and storing intellectual
property rights-related information. The Risk Management
Center, on the other hand, establishes intellectual property
protection systems and regulations, and is responsible for
coordinating and reviewing intellectual property-related contracts
to ensure intellectual property rights are legally protected to
safeguard the Group’s rights and interests.
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The Group manages all aspects of our trademarks, including
registration, use, licensing, rights protection and filing, in
accordance with the Trademark Management Measures. The
Digitalization and Communication Center is responsible for the
design, management and daily use of trademarks. We use our
trademarks strictly in accordance with the contents contained in
the registration certificates to prevent exceeding the authorized
scope of use. If a trademark is involved in litigation and dispute,
etc., it is important for the relevant staff to report to the Risk
Management Center in order to safeguard our intellectual
property rights. Our Patent Administration Measures set out
the patent application process, including the online approval
process and the appointment of patent agents to handle
specific matters. The Digitalization and Communication Center
is responsible for handling patent disputes and conducting
patent litigation, and if necessary, it may delegate the handling
to a patent agency or the Risk Management Center. Meanwhile,
if infringing behaviours are found, the cases will be seriously
followed up as well as legal actions will be taken.

The Group currently owns 3 patents. During the Year, there
were also no cases of intellectual property infringement or
violations.
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4.5 Supplier Management

The Group’s Procurement Management System regulates
the bidding and procurement process, improves the
bidding supervision and control mechanism, and enhances
the efficiency of procurement management. The system
includes the classification of procurement, procurement
mode, procurement method, procurement department, etc.,
to ensure the Group’s work in procurement and supplier
management is standardized. We require our employees to
follow basic principles in the procurement process, such as
integrity, fairness and impartiality, and prohibition of “one-stop”
procurement, to ensure the procurement process is open, fair
and transparent. We have categorized our suppliers and clarified
the responsibilities of different management department for
suppliers. We also require our functional centers and regional
companies to conduct annual performance evaluations of our
partner suppliers and set up evaluation indicators, methods and
evaluators. The Group conducts annual grading of suppliers
based on the results of performance evaluation and adopts
corresponding management measures and preferential policies
for suppliers of different grades. The procurement department
is responsible for concluding contracts with suppliers in
accordance with the bidding documents, and after the signing
of the contract, it is necessary to make a timely presentation to
the business department to ensure the content of the contract
is implemented. The procurement department initiates a pooled
procurement plan based on the procurement requirements.
The plan shall include information on the procurement budget,
the details of the procurement requirement, the standard of
service and model number etc. Our Supplier Inspection Record
and Evaluation Form is used for recording and evaluating the
inspection and overall evaluation of suppliers, including basic
information about the supplier, as well as various elements of
the on-site inspection and the scoring criteria. We evaluate
the overall situation of the supplier by inspecting the on-site
environment, office situation, plant equipment, quality control
and other aspects.
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To promote the sustainable development of the supply chain,
the Group prioritises the environmental and social risk factors
of its suppliers. The Group requires its suppliers to enter into
Integrity Cooperation Agreements at the time of cooperation
to ensure the legitimate rights and interests of both parties are
safeguarded in the course of business cooperation. Cooperation
with integrity, which is mutually observed by both parties,
includes the inadmissibility of accepting any unjustified benefits. If
we find that any supplier provides unjustified benefits or violates
the agreement, it is required to pay liquidated damages, and
the Group has the right to blacklist the offending supplier and
cancel or terminate the contract with such supplier in order to
protect the legitimate rights and interests of all parties. Subject
1o the satisfaction of service needs, we work to minimise energy
consumption. We are committed to reducing the negative
impact of our procurement activities on the environment. We are
progressively incorporating green product specifications into our
procurement practices, and will prioritise suppliers that have a
lower environmental impact.

The Group’s procurement mainly involves comprehensive
property management services. We have appointed a total of
708 suppliers. The number of suppliers by geographical region
is as follows:
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2024 Southwestern Region Annual Supplier Conference
AR EH024FEHRERAE

The person-in-charge of Southwestern region of the Group, the person-in-charge of Operations and Quality
Department of Southwestern region, the person-in-charge of Southern area of Southwestern region and various
fellow suppliers gathered together to engage in in-depth communication and discussion on the conference theme:
“Dowell is by your side, ‘Supply’ is the key to a successful future”. The meeting focused on reinforcing partnerships
and enhancing the value of high-quality services, presenting a thorough review of the path of cooperation between
the parties over the past year, offering a comprehensive perspective on the direction of future development and
conducting an in-depth analysis of the deployment of key tasks such as regional development opportunities,
innovative mode of cooperation and increased platform protection.

AEETEREAEEA AHRHELMENEAEA OHEERIBEFFBEESEAARSHEBRREER -2
EZEMCHRER [HIBRRRINEREE  RETAARNERY - @2BRERSEEHBEERERESRE
RASEERA - SFALETAE—FEANSIERRE  2ERETARRERAM - WRASIT 7RIS -
BIFTEEEAX AR FARER(CE S TIERE -

To express gratitude to our suppliers for their outstanding contributions to the quality development of services in
Southwestern region of the Group during 2024, Southwestern region of the Group has specially established awards
such as “Outstanding Cooperative Supplier” and “Selected Cooperative Supplier” to recognize partners with excellent
performance. These honors not only reflect the Group’s recognition of suppliers in the Southwestern region in terms
of quality assurance, stability in supply and collaborative innovation, but also signify the complete endorsement from
customers and the market regarding the outcome of collaboration between the parties. In the future, the Group will
continue to collaborate with our partners, reinforce synergy and innovation, jointly promote the elevation of service
quality and high-quality development of the industry and create win-win outcome that benefit both parties.
REBHEERNE04FERASBEFAREESREMEERMENREER  AEEAmREFRIRYT £
BeEfEm I M BEAEHER SRR HRBEENSERHEET TRE - EEXREBETERBRTASE
ErmEEgfHERERERE HEBELSEANSEIENSERM  ERXTEFETBHE H S 1E
RAFTDEBTE - AR AEEREBEBEFSERMY  REBREAF  HEXPRERERAETESRE
BRE G BREMNHRE-
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5. CUSTOMER ORIENTED

5.1 Customer Communication

To enhance our service quality and customer satisfaction,
we have put in place the Reporting Management System to
ensure customer issues are resolved. Our report management
requirements include report information categorization, rapid
processing process, customer complaint handling, report
assignment, report reception, report processing, incident
follow-up and other aspects. When we handle any reporting,
we are required to follow up such reporting in a timely and
effective manner, to record the handling process, and to ensure
customer satisfaction.

We have established the Complaint Management System
to ensure customer complaints are treated in a timely and
effective manner, thereby converting potential adverse effects
into customer satisfaction. The system sets out in detalil
the requirements for the management of complaints, the
grading and handling of complaints, as well as the specific
handling procedures, and clearly sets out the categorization of
complaints and the determination criterion, including general
complaints, escalated complaints and major complaints, as
well as the distinction between valid and invalid complaints. In
addition, this system describes in detail the process of receiving
complaints, handling complaints and conclusion, including the
duties of the complaint reception post, the time limit for the
person responsible for handling complaints, and the time point
for complaints conclusion. We have established the standards
regarding complaint negotiation techniques for our staff to
ensure complaints are resolved appropriately and to protect
customers’ interests. Through the strict implementation of this
complaint management system, the Group is able to respond
to customer needs and feedback in a timely manner, improve
service quality and enhance customer satisfaction, thereby
improving the Group’s competitiveness and brand image.

During the Year, the Group received a total of 596 complaints
about its services and products, all of which were properly
handled.
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5.2 Customer Service

We strictly abide by laws and regulations such as the Urban
Real Estate Management Law of the PRC and the Regulations
on Property Management. The Group has put in place the
Quality Control System to ensure our customers are provided
with high quality services. The Quality Management System
standardizes a three-tier quality supervision and management
mechanism to ensure the implementation of on-site quality
management services and supervisory activities. The quality
management team is mainly responsible for quality supervision,
and the Operation and Development Center is responsible for
the establishment, supervision and assessment of the quality
control system. The Operations Development Center conducts
quarterly reviews and monthly briefings on the implementation
of the quality inspection plan for each regional company. It also
formulates an annual satisfaction enhancement plan, implements
monthly project enhancement plans and conducts quality
inspections to ensure the Group provides quality services. In
accordance with the results of the quality inspection, the Group
will give appropriate rewards and penalties to the appropriate
units in accordance with the Dowell Service Group Individual
Reward and Penalty Management System.

We have formulated the Quality Red Lines and Management
Risk Checklist, which clarifies the control requirements for
project quality red lines at all levels to ensure the on-site quality
management services meet the standard requirements. This
system lists out, in detail, the quality red line prohibitions for
each category, and the corresponding judgment criteria in terms
of internal management, order maintenance, customer service,
engineering maintenance, environmental management, etc..
If any department hits the quality red line, it is required to put
forward its self-improvement measures to rectify the situation
or report the program. We require all levels of management to
incorporate training and explanation of quality red line into quality
analysis meetings and daily training to our staff so that they
would be able to identify and solve problems in a timely manner.
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We are committed to providing better customer service.
Through the implementation of the On-site Inspection
Management System, we are able to identify and resolve site
quality issues in a timely manner to ensure smooth project
operations and customer satisfaction, and provide clear
operational guidelines for our staff. Meanwhile, the Group
actively implements different policies, such as the Service
Etiquette Standard, which covers the appearance, demeanor
and language expression of our staff to ensure that their images
and behaviors are in line with the Group’s service standards,
and that they can leave a good impression to our customers,
thus providing them with better services.

Intelligent Property Construction

During the Year, we had intelligent property facilities, including
Doyin station applet, supply chain management platform,
financial information system optimization, and the construction

of a unified data middle platform;

Doyin Station applet:
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As a resident-side tool applet, it provides smart community-related front-end functions such

as online bill payment, repair report, and management of cohabitants.

RERUL/MEF
AR RTm I BE

Supply Chain

EREPHmITAR/NMER RHTREUGLEE  RERE EERAFTAFEELRE

Management
Platform:
HEREERTYS

Unified Data Middle
Platform:

—BET s

Achieve a comprehensive online procedure encompassing supplier management, demand
management, procurement planning, procurement execution, contract signing and payment
management, tackling issues relating to business disruption and system data fragmentation
BRETER - TRER - KBS RKERT - SR RNREEN 2 RIER 1L
R TSN B R B B R R

Establish a system of all operating indicators covering the management level and provide a
mobile management cockpit
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Nanjing - Yin Yangtze River (8 Z El £ 5I) Safe and Intelligent Community
ERNRIZZEEHE

The Nanjing @ Yin Yangtze River Safety and Inteligent Community project puts emphasis on resolving the problems
associated with lagging performance in traditional community management and relies on Internet of Things (loT)
technology to achieve holistic smart upgrade. The Group worked with the local government and management
committee of the high-tech zone in an in-depth manner to build an innovative 10T integration platform. This platform
implements unified 10T management and control for over 700 smart devices within the community, laying a technical
foundation for smart community development.
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In terms of specific implementation, the project achieves high-altitude projectile trajectory tracking and intelligent
vehicle lane occupancy recognition through the system platform. It combines touchless facial sensorless access
control gates and an intelligent elevator call system to create an efficient and convenient contactless homecoming
route. At the same time, a BA management system and monitoring system are deployed at the operation and
maintenance terminal of the facility, allowing real-time interaction with environmental monitoring sensors, “Angel
Eye” system and smart delivery robots. This enables dynamic interaction between equipment operational data and
property information displayed on large screens, significantly enhancing community management efficiency. Moreover,
the home security system is deeply integrated into the community’s digital twin platform, achieving a three-tier security
closed loop from single-unit access control to indoor alarm system. Through the interaction mechanism of the
devices, the response time to anomalies is reduced to seconds thereby greatly enhancing the community’s security
capabilities. This series of innovative measures not only address the pain points of traditional community management
but also create a new paradigm for future communities that are “warm and thoughtful”, setting a benchmark for the
development of smart communities.
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TALENT MANAGEMENT 6.

Employees are an important cornerstone of the Group’s development.
We strictly abide by the Labor Law of the PRC, the Labor Contract
Law of the PRC and other relevant laws and regulations, in order
to promote equal employment, to respect and protect human
rights, to improve the salary and benefit system, to care for the
health of employees and to effectively protect their legal rights and
interests. During the Year, the Group did not violate any laws and
regulations regarding remuneration and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, holidays, equal opportunities, diversity,
anti-discrimination, prevention of child labor or forced labor.

6.1 Employment

We continuously optimize the talent recruitment system,
recruitment methods and channels, and formulate recruitment
plans based on job characteristics. We have formulated the
Recruitment and Hiring Management System, which includes
the recruitment requirements approval process, the specific
content of daily recruitment management, interview levels and
approval rules, etc. The Group complies with the Regulations
on the Prohibition of Child Labor of the PRC and the Protection
of Minors of the PRC. The Group arranges employees’ working
hours reasonably. If they need to work overtime, compensation
and subsidies will be provided according to the overtime
arrangement. We comply with relevant laws and regulations
such as the Regulations of the PRC on the Prohibition of Child
Labor, the Employment Promotion Law and the Law of the
PRC on the Protection of Minors. We conduct background
checks on our employees, which include verifying the identity
of the candidates and maintaining personnel files about all
employees to examine the authenticity of the documents
provided by them including copies of their age documents and
dates of commencement of employment. If false information is
found, the Company reserves the right to terminate employment
of the relevant employees and the rights of the Company are
protected. Employees are encouraged to complete their work
on time. Employees who are required to work overtime due to
special assignments and emergencies are required to submit
the request to their supervisors in advance and obtain approval
for overtime work. We provide employees with a reasonable
amount of overtime allowance as subsidy to ensure that the
rights and interests of employees are fully protected.
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In order to make full use of internal recruitment resources,
we give priority to internal employee referral and campus
recruitment. The specific processes and management
requirements must be implemented according to the Internal
Talent Referral and Management System. We have established
a recommendation process, which includes employees refer
candidates through the Company’s recruitment platform or to
the Human Resources Center, and the referred candidates are
hired after interviews, assessments and background checks.
There will be rewards for successful referral.

Resignation management is an important part of human
resources management. When an employee intends to
resign, we require a resignation interview as the first step of
communication to understand the reasons for resignation and
discuss the details of the resignation. Subsequently, after the
resignation approval is confirmed and the last working date and
resignation procedure time are determined, employees will be
required to enter the work handover stage to ensure the work
tasks of the resigned employees are smoothly handed over to
the successor, and to protect the balance between the interests
of the Group and the rights and interests of employees.

DOWELL SERVICE GROUP CO. LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE -HERERKRS

BTRIFARMHBBER - B
BEEZEANBE THBNRERE
ARRENERERLFL2RIAAA
MEREEGE) AT - HWARET
HEME BB LEBARIERET
BHMANERT OHEBREA -
HEBALAER BAFNERRER
SRR o IR E A RS ERE)

BEREERANEREEREEN
—IR EBTEEREE  RMEXE
HEEBIERBRNE — 2 LT
B R R0 B BE B AL ERETT AT AR o BE
& BB EI N RER - BTERE
TYERHMBERTFEPIRRRER - B
TREATIEZMREER - MRERE
ITOTEEBIENBZGEEFA - R
[EAREEMEME TR FE -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IE iﬁ,

6.2 Health and Safety

The Group is committed to providing employees with a
healthy and safe working environment and improving their
safety awareness in the workplace. The Group strictly abides
by the Work Safety Law of the PRC, the Law of the PRC
on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases,
the Regulations on the Supervision and Administration of
QOccupational Health in the Workplace, the Regulations of the
PRC on Work-related Injury Insurance, the Fire Protection Law
of the PRC and all applicable laws and regulations related.

We have formulated the Safety Inspection Operation Guidelines
to standardize the content and standards of various safety
inspections and eliminate safety hazards. We conduct regular
safety inspections of various workplaces to ensure that our
employees’ working environment meets the safety standards.
Through daily inspections, we check the integrity and operation
of facilities and equipment to ensure basic facilities in the
working environment are operated normally in order to reduce
the occurrence of accidental injuries. Our monthly inspections
focus on on-site safety measures, including the operation and
functional testing of facilities and equipment, as well as special
inspections of the operation of safety facilities and equipment,
S0 as to comprehensively improve the safety level of employees’
workplaces.
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In terms of safety inspections, different types of inspections are
implemented according to different time and activities, including
daily inspections, monthly inspections and special inspections to
ensure the safety status of the workplace. Special inspections
are carried out by relevant personnel of the responsible
department for specific situations or special periods. Through
spot inspections of key parts and procedures, they check
the integrity of facilities and equipment, the implementation of
safety measures and employees’ understanding of emergency
incident handling procedures, so as to promptly discover and
solve safety hazards and ensure the safety and stability of the
workplace.

The Group adheres to the principle of “focusing on fire
protection and integrating of prevention and elimination”,
strictly implements various rules and regulations, and puts fire
prevention first. We require our employees to report any hidden
dangers immediately to ensure safety measures are effectively
implemented. Our property project department is responsible for
special activities during holidays and periods with high incidence
of safety accidents. It identifies project risk every month and
establishes a ledger to follow up with rectification work. The
patrol post is responsible for inspections of fire protection
facilities, fire extinguishers, water pressure inspections, etc.
to ensure the equipment is in good condition so as to ensure
fire protection facilities can be used normally in case of
emergencies. Through special inspections, we conduct spot
checks on the implementation of fire prevention inspections,
rectification of fire hazards, and fire prevention measures in
places for flammable and explosive dangerous objects, so as to
promptly discover and resolve existing safety hazards. We also
established a general ledger of flood control materials and flood
control points. The sandbag ledger and other systems have
strengthened the management and implementation of flood
prevention work, further improved the level of fire safety, and
ensured the safe production of employees and projects.
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During the Year, the Group did not receive any complaints or REE  AEBREBWEIEAARE
lawsuits regarding violations of laws related to health and safety, RIER%Z 2 BRI EERIRF REFFA
and there were no work-related fatalities in the past three years, BA=FINSEFERTTHMEZR

including the Year.

Fire Drill
SHBEE AR

Through fire safety training and emergency drills, Xinxin PARK (T #TPARK) project has implemented fire safety work in
practice, and achieved excellent results of “zero” fire safety accidents throughout the year. In November 2024, Xinxin
PARK project was awarded the honor of ‘Jiangbei District 2024 Outstanding Fire Safety Achievement (Key Unit of
Advanced Fire Safety)’ by Jiangbei District Fire Safety Committee of Chongging.
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Anti-Riot Drill Elevator Rescue Drrill
By B AR ERERAER
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6.3 Remuneration and benefits

The Group is committed to providing competitive remuneration
packages, conducting annual assessments for each employee,
and making corresponding salary adjustments based on
factors such as market environment, qualifications, work
performance and position. The Group also provides promotions,
salary increases, and honorary recognition to employees with
outstanding performance. The Group strictly abides by laws
and regulations of China, including Social Insurance Law of the
PRC, Interim Regulations on the Collection and Payment of
Social Insurance Premiums, Regulation on Work-related Injury
Insurance and Regulation on Unemployment Insurance, etc. We
have formulated the Remuneration and Benefits Management
System to provide more complete salary and benefit standards,
clarify statutory benefits, unify benefits and special benefits, and
formulate corresponding management regulations based on the
performance, market, faimess and confidentiality. In terms of
salary management, the system includes salary structure, salary
survey, salary review, etc.

The Group improved its salary and performance system during
the Year. We determine performance salary, special incentives,
bonuses, fixed salary and other components based on the
employee’s job sequence, rank, and grade to achieve changes
in income and long-term incentives. For different categories of
employees, we set different salary structures and assessment
cycles. Assessment contents include key performance,
ability and quality, values assessment, satisfaction, etc. The
assessment methods include fixed-period and non-fixed-period
assessments in order to motivate employees’ performance and
improve their performance levels and competitiveness.
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We are committed to providing our employees with fair
and reasonable working hours, work assignments and
arrangements. According to local employment regulations,
employees are also entitled to annual leave, personal leave,
marriage leave, paternity leave, maternity leave, bereavement
leave and rest days. We also handle social insurance and
provident funds for our employees in accordance with
regulations, and we organize an employee welfare physical
examination every year. The Group is always committed to
maintaining a stable working environment through a series
of measures and plans, while at the same time meeting the
needs of employees and promoting employee well-being and
participation.

Vocational Training

We help our employees to improve their employability and to
get prepared for future challenges. We provide employees
with a platform to plan and develop their careers and provide
training and development opportunities. For new employees,
the Human Resources Center will organize induction training for
new employees to understand the Group’s development history,
organizational structure, corporate culture, etc., and help new
employees integrate into the Company as soon as possible. In
addition, we provide comprehensive and professional training
for all employees, including management, finance, corporate
culture, employee development, etc., as well as professional
skills training related to employee positions. For the career
development of our employees, we have formulated a complete
talent development system to help employees designing career
plans and provide development channels such as promotion
and job rotation. We have also established a clear rank system
to meet the growth needs of employees and promote their
all-round development.

6.4
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During the Year, we are committed to enhancing the
Company’s talent echelon mechanism and through the
promotion and implementation of key projects, we gradually
implemented talent reserves and echelon construction. For
example, we have formulated talent development project plans
for project managers/area general employees, establishing a
pool of high-quality talent for critical positions. At the same time,
we have further expanded our talent development resources
by integrating external training resources, external opportunities
for further education and the Dong Xuetang online learning
platform. This provides employees with diversified learning and
development support, facilitating talent growth and enhancing

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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AEE  BRABRNNTERRASH
B BBERIRE MR E
17 BERBEATREBRBEHFER -
flan - HMBIETIEELRE FRE
AT BRERTE - WL THE
HELE/FRENASE  RESR
MAFERBEAS - R RFIE—
TRETATEEER  BATING
BIIER  IMEEEREARREE
REBBYE  RETRH“ZITEHN
BERBRIF  PHATREES
BRae NiRTT -

organizational capability.

The Group's Key Talent Development Program “Elite Together”
EEERASBREABRE]

The “Elite Together” program aims to systematically cultivate high-potential talents and help them achieve all-round
growth by strengthening their professional skills, stimulating their innovative thinking and providing them with
multi-channel career development opportunities. The program invites external experts to focus on enhancing the
leadership and strategic vision of the participants. Through diversified training courses, practical exercises and
cross-disciplinary exchanges, the program promotes in-depth integration of internal and external resources and
fosters intellectual exchange through the collision of different viewpoints, so as to build a core talent echelon consisting
of individuals with forward-thinking mindsets and exceptional leadership qualities to drive for the Group's future
development.

[(BRE | SEABREMBEESEIAT @ BEREERRE  BEAMBEARRRERENBEERES -
BHAABR 2 FUMKE < THBFEIMNIERBENRA 2 HEE RS N EBREE - BB T EREIIRRE -
BEURRRB RN  (REANBEINBERNDAEESEBENE  REBRRERFZHELGAELREMN
BEHEENOZO AT K

DOWELL SERVICE GROUP CO. LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RiE HERE $E’z¢

Amoeba Business Empowerment

B K B A & AR R

Focusing on business empowerment training, the goal is to "stimulate the operational awareness of all employees and
unleash organizational effectiveness" through the systematic implementation of Amoeba business model. The training
covers management concepts, accounting methods, goal setting and performance management, helping employees
master independent accounting and self-management skills while enhancing market insight and decision-making
abilities. Through practical exercises and cross-departmental collaboration, the program promotes resource integration
and intellectual exchange through the collision of different viewpoints, facilitating the building of synergy among various
Amoeba business units.

BEgemeEI - UIRERELEEH  BREBMEIRER  RFHETIFDRELE R - FDR
%%«MEA ’f?iéiﬁxi BERERENER EHEIERBUREHRE T LEREE  BATSRENE
REREETT © EBORREEEPIHIE - REERESBBANE - HBXPREETEKE T »
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT

The Group complies with relevant laws and regulations such as
the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC and the Atmospheric
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC to ensure its
environmental compliance of business activities. The Group advocates
“increasing income and reducing expenditure to cut costs and
increase efficiency” and formulates specific measures. We obtained the
environmental management system certification (GB/T 24001-2016/
ISO14001:2015). We have established the Notice on Advocation of
Cost Reduction and Efficiency Enhancement Through Administrative
Control and formulated a series of specific measures to strictly control
costs and eliminate waste, thereby improving efficiency. We strictly
abide by the laws and regulations including the Law on the Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution of the PRC and Law on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes of the PRC
to ensure the Group’s emissions are within regulatory limits. We
have set emission reduction targets and actively implemented them.
In the future, we will maintain or gradually reduce greenhouse gas
emission intensity, waste generation intensity, and electricity and water
consumption intensity at similar operating levels. In the Year, with the
exception of greenhouse gas emission intensity, electricity and water
consumption which have risen due to the increase in the number of
projects, we have made good progress towards other environmental
targets.

During the Year, the Group did not violate any laws and regulations
related to environmental protection.
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7.1 Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emission Management

We are committed to reducing GHG emissions. The electricity
consumption in the office and use of vehicles are the major
sources of our GHG emissions. The GHG emissions inventory
is made by the Group with reference to the Greenhouse Gas
Inventory Protocol developed by the World Resources Institute
and World Business Council for Sustainable Development,
as well as the 1ISO14064-1 standard set by the International

7.1

$ﬁﬁ:

BEREBHNEER

BABOIREDRERER R - A
EHENEHEASRMAERE
BEREZHOR - BB R E R
RAEERAIBERRINIESS
HAENCRAEREREZTE) ME
B L A AR ET TE BDISO14064-1 + &
AREBHETEEREES - $¢r

Organisation for Standardization. For the Year, GHG emissions RIREEREE AR EREBHEW
within the scope of the Report are as follows: BRI

Greenhouse gas Emissions Unit 2024
BEREHK By 20245 &
Direct emissions (Scope 1) Tonne of CO.e 40.86
B (EEN) NP iRE 8

GHG reductions from planting of new trees

(Scope 1) Tonne of CO.e 17.02
B ANER E R RS RR (S EN) AN _F(LIRE S

Indirect emissions (Scope 2) Tonne of CO.e 50,454.78
A (BE2) AE_E(LIREE

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2) Tonne of CO.e 50,478.62
REREBENE S (§E1&2) AL IRE 2

GHG emissions intensity (area) Tonne of CO,e/m? GFA in *000s 1.45
RERBENEE (HE) ABE—ELIRE R/ TFHEEEE

GHG emissions intensity (person) Tonne of CO.e/employee 8.55

BEREBHREE (AB)

RE—E(REE

BT
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7.2 Green Office

We implement the concept of green office, improve the
green office system, and advocate digital office, carbon
reduction office and energy-saving office by setting up
conservation reminders and publicity signs in the office areas,
and jointly create an energy-saving and comfortable green
office environment. We insist on complying with the laws
and regulations including Energy Conservation Law of the
PRC and the Regulations on Management of Urban Water
Conservation, etc. We actively implement the energy saving and
consumption reduction measures that we have formulated. We
have formulated an environmental protection system for office
areas to achieve standardized management of green offices.
Qur Office Environmental Management System, Group Energy
Saving and Consumption Reduction Initiative and Office Paper
Saving Tips to cultivate employees’ habits and awareness of
energy conservation and consumption reduction and contribute
to green development.
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Reduce Electricity Use

° Avoid keeping lights on, try not to turn on lights when
there is sufficient light, and to ensure lights are tumned off
when getting off work

° Strictly control the temperature of the air conditioner
for not lower than 26 degrees Celsius in summer and
not higher than 18 degrees Celsius in winter. Maintain
the equipment regularly and turn off the air conditioner
promptly after getting off work

° Promote the use of energy-saving equipment, turn
off computers and other equipment when not in use,
regularly repair and maintain equipment, and prohibit the
use of high-power electrical appliances

During the Reporting Period, the electricity consumption within
the reporting scope was 88,470.60 MWh, or 2.54 MWh per
GFA in ’000.

Office Supplies:

° Maintain, repair and care for durable items such as desks,
compuiters, etc. in a timely manner

° Try to trade in old items for new ones or recycle
consumable items, and pay attention to saving printing
paper, by using double-sided printing, limiting colour
printing, etc.

° Use part replacement rather than complete item
replacement, such as pen refill

° Place office supplies at designated locations to improve
work efficiency and avoid wasting time

B E
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7.3

Save Paper

° Printer copy function set to black and white default

° Use wastepaper whenever possible when drafting
documents

° Promote double-sided printing to reduce paper
consumption

During the Reporting Period, the paper usage within the
reporting scope of this Report was 10,362.88 kg, representing
1.76 kg per capita.

Water Resources Management

The water we use during operations all comes from municipal
water, and there is no problem of obtaining water sources.
For property projects, we conduct regular inspections and
maintenance of water equipment to eliminate leakage caused by
aging equipment, avoid unnecessary waste of water resources,
and reduce the Group’s water costs and sewage treatment
costs. We use the Form of Records of Office Environment
Inspection, regularly inspect the workplace and record any water
problems, putting up signs of water conservation tips to remind
people to reduce water consumption.

During the Reporting Period, the water consumption within the
reporting scope was 2,300,098.41 cubic metres, or 68.76 cubic
metres per GFA in "000.
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7.4 Waste Management

We formulated the Rules on Waste Disposal Management
to strengthen waste management and reduce environmental
impact. We require waste to be divided into three categories:
recyclables, non-recyclables, and handed over to professional
plants for disposal. We also guide employees to identify and
classify waste by learning environmental protection knowledge
and formulating List of Waste Types Classified. For different
types of waste, we have stipulated corresponding treatment
methods, including recycling and reuse, and handing over to
professional treatment plants for treatment. In addition, we have
stipulated the responsibility for the disposal of infrastructure
decoration waste, emphasized the regular cleaning of garbage
bins and waste baskets, and required records of waste disposal.
These measures help to standardize the waste treatment
process and promote environmental protection and resources
utilization. We have arranged for a qualified third party to carry
out recycling by collecting hazardous waste at fixed locations in
a centralized manner”.

CHERE
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Waste generation Unit 2024
BEYELE By 2024 E
Non-hazardous waste generated' kg

BEBREYNELS' Fr 22,540
Non-hazardous waste generation intensity ~ kg/employee

BEREVMELERER F=/IEE 3.82

The non-hazardous waste generated by the Group is estimated based on
day-to-day operations.

The hazardous waste generated in the course of our operation consists
of a small amount of waste toner cartridges and ink cartridges etc. which
are recovered and recycled by qualified recyclers and has a relatively small
impact on the environment. Therefore, it is not disclosed in KPI A1.3 (Total
hazardous waste produced) in this report.
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NEEME -
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7.5 Coping with climate change

HE

7.5

The Group implements China’s goal of “carbon peak” and
“carbon neutrality” and actively contributes to mitigating climate
change. We are aware of the urgency of responding to climate
change. We have identified physical risks and transformation
risks related to climate change in our business, and developed
response measures based on climate change risk assessment
results to mitigate the impact of climate risks on corporate

operations.

Categories and descriptions of

climate risks

SR 1% B B 3 ) I 3

Potential consequences

BEER

EHRIREL
AREEHEETEEHRIBE
TS ARERIR B MR BB - B
BB EH RER N TR - R
BAT EH T RRBEL (A HY
BERSEEBER - LRERRE(
PRV R R 2 P 0+ LA
FRERHCEEEHLE -
Countermeasures

PR S

° Physical climate risks (e.g.
flooding, super typhoon, storm
surge, and extreme rainfall)

° fgﬂ%ﬁﬂﬁﬂlgﬁ\(ﬁu7k/x

HBAR

BeR ~ RSRH - HRikER)

o Supply chain disruption and

impact on demand

Damage to infrastructure and

facilities

° Increased operating costs due
to maintenance of damaged

facilities
L4 'f/\FE%\_EP“ Fﬁ/\ﬁ_?_é%j

ELT R AR T B
. EUEZIBRME M EBEEK o
I AN

Formulation of Disastrous
Weather Handling Plan and
Earthquake Disaster Handling
Plan

Provision of disaster response
training

Launch of disaster drills for
employees

Exploration of using renewable
energy sources
HIECEEMERREIETESR) X
(G EXERIBTER)

A B TR X8 e 30|
KB A RR
BRREMAAIBERIRPIEE

Chronic risks (e.g. extremely hot
weather and sea level rise)

2Rk
(A& R ZR R,

SETELF)

Rising electricity use demands
and operating costs due to
increased cooling demand

° Drop in productivity

° Flooding caused by rising sea

levels
o HSESKIEN - MERE SN
TR BB A B

. EENTE
. STELFEBGE

Close attention to the weather
forecast to ensure timely

and adequate preparation

to guarantee the safety of
employees and property owners

ERHIRRIAHAREREL
Kb~ ERAER - RETE
AEREERE -
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Categories and descriptions of

climate risks Potential consequences Countermeasures
SR B 38 B I BEER EH Rk
Policy and regulatory risks (reporting Damaged reputation and loss of e Tracking the latest laws and
disclosure compliance risks) competitive advantage regulations on climate change
° Possible penalties for and integrating them into
noncompliance business management strategies
BFRE R R o  BEXE KXEBRFEY o L%Kﬁﬁ@ﬂf“k%ﬁ@
(FHREWESRER) o  RAEMMAIELE DS ER O MRS EBEERSR
h
Market risks (e.g. inability to adaptto e Failure to meet climate change e Reduction of carbon emissions
growing stakeholder concerns on policies of customers by purchasing energy-efficient
sustainability) office supplies and using clean
energy
5 b e  REEFABTPHREEEK HESENARD MARF
(I RERFHEHAHERRE BE IR A IR BE L
RRAZ W)

8. CONTRIBUTING TO COMMUNITY 8. ERLE

We have always regarded development and responsibility as equally BMeREEREEAEARASEENZ
important core principles. While pursuing excellence, we actively DRA e FEBRE AR - HAIEGEE
fulfil our corporate social responsibility, incorporating care into every ThEHERT BEERAEBEERD
aspect of our business expansion. We are committed to listening to B—ERE - BOIRNERHEEROES
the voices of community residents and giving back to society through WiRAERITEEEMLE o

practical actions.

Through various channels and collaborations with government iA % 18 2R 18 DA I BB B0 P AN 5 4B A
departments and local organizations, we gain a deep understanding of WEE ZRPARATBEAEF R WHFHE
the needs of the people. We continuously engage in activities such as FREEHE  AmFE  TRERSE &
public awareness education, charitable initiatives, volunteer services, EEAEEEY - RMxEDE Tﬁ MEEEE
and community care. By leveraging our property management PEBRLHERR HEIF HEAZ
advantages, we actively participate in actions related to environmental MEAESAHEESTEY B HAERAE
protection, educational support, community welfare and caring for EHAEE BE—(ALAE BAMNTEIIR
underprivileged groups, striving to create a better life for residents and Ro

to build a warm and inclusive community environment.
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"Deliver Coolness in Summer" Activity
[EHEBRIED

In August 2024, Chongaing topped the national high-temperature list. To show care for workers who are exposed to high
temperatures, the Group, in collaboration with the Lizhiyuan Community of Tongyuanju Street in the Nan'an District of
Chongaing, organized a "Deliver Coolness in Summer " activity to provide special care for these workers.

C04FBAEERE L TRBEBEEEE  ATREHRALIEFEHENEE  AEENcEETRERFATHESE
AXEHERRT —SBIERXERIEY  ARERITIEEX L —HIEHOBEIE-

“Spark Program - Dream Journey”

EXETE e REZIK

The Group initiated the internal fundraising activity for public welfare visit to Haizi Primary School in Wenshan, Yunnan
under the “Spark Program e Dream Journey” campaign. The activity was well received by all the employees. Within just
a few days, over 500 items, including clothing, books and stationery, were collected for Wenshan Haizi Primary School.
Additionally, items such as warm underwear, stationery and sports goods were purchased for each student.

REFBER[ENGTE e RE 2 IR I BB TN BERRERMESNTEBEE  EDE T AREEETIANIR -
REHEARN RXEFN2EETEERY BE XASEMESORY  TABUEEABEREANK XA -

jrliie=y [}
BEAmF -

“Deliver Coolness in Summer” Activity “Spark Program - Dream Journey”
[EHEBRIES ERGHEl e MEZ IR
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“Spark e Dowell” Party Building Cultural Activities

ERCHEETED

The Group launched the “Spark e Dowell” online and offline party building cultural activities to enhance the atmosphere
and harmony in the community through the “red spirit”. Each activity focuses on the party members and backbone
employees who are the main driving force. They wilingly take on the role of volunteers in the “Spark e Dowell” project and
party building serves as the guiding light for the provision of daily services. The aim is to make the “red” spirit shine in daily
services. We carried out volunteer services such as beautifying the park, visiting and assisting elderly residents and those
living alone in the community, reaching out to party member owners and their families, and providing flood prevention
support. We stay true to our original aspiration, embrace and pass on the “red legacies”, safeguard every moment of peace
in the community, continuously enhancing the sense of happiness and belonging of the local residents.

AEEZFEEACHIRERTEEVLEY  UAERHREATRAENZE  SHEEUNEENEHE T AKX
DHE  RROHTEXR/ENCHAEREE  UREASBFERFENAL  RAEIHRERTRET  FRER
X BEERUBSRIBEZA FHEEXIRRE DWAREBSEERE TSV EALENE T
BRZONE A THEARER=RE BB -
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APPENDIX I: ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL KPIS
SUMMARY

The following is a summary of the Group’s information on sustainability in the
environmental area for the Year:

Environmental area Unit
RIBEE By
Emissions®

23 €/

Nitrogen oxides kg
REY TR
Sulfur oxides kg
ey TR
Suspended particles kg
FR)F FERL T
Greenhouse gas emissions’

BERBHEHE

Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) Tonne of CO,e
BERREREBHM(EET) N biE S
GHG reductions from planting of new trees (Scope 1) Tonne of CO.e

AR ARH)R = RS (BE1) N (3

Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) Tonne of COe
MR =R (B ER) NE A biE =
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2) Tonne of CO.e

RERBMAE (FBE1K2)
GHG emissions intensity (area)
BEREENEE (EE)

GHG emissions intensity (person)

BRERBHREE (AH)

R — (iR &

Emissions are calculated with reference to “How to Prepare an ESG Report
— Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” of the HKEX.

GHG emissions are calculated with reference to “How to Prepare an ESG

Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” of the
HKEX.
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Tonne of CO,e/m* GFA in '000s

A —EfbiRE S/ TEHEEEE
Tonne of CO,e/employee

NS tiEE 8T

fisk— - BRENEZERE

UTRAFENRASEIFERRENBE

2024

2024 E

5.75

0.01

0.55

40.86

17.02

50,454.78

50,478.62

1.45

8.55
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Environmental area

RIGEE

Non-hazardous waste
BEBRRY

Non-hazardous waste generated
BEERNELE

Non-hazardous waste generation intensity (person)

BEEEDEE (AB)

Water consumption

KIFHFE

Total water consumption

HBFEKE

Water consumption intensity (area)
HROKEE (HE)

Water consumption intensity (person)
BREKBE (AB)

Electricity consumption

ENHE

Total electricity consumption
nEEE

Total electricity consumption intensity (area)
HEEERE (HHE)

Total electricity consumption intensity (person)
BREBETE (AR

Paper consumption

HIRIHFE

Paper consumption

WRAE

Paper consumption intensity (person)

RIOBREEE (A2

kg

TR
kg/employee
FTr/ET

Cubic metre

ST K

Cubic metre/m? GFA in *000s
SRS FERREERE
Cubic metre/employee

SHK/BT

MWh

I FL

MWh/m? GFA in *000s
JEE,FFHEEmE
MWh/employee

KEK BT

kg

TR
kg/employee
FTR/BT

2024 F [E s

2024

2024

22,540

3.82

2,300,098.41

68.76

389.65

88,470.60

2.54

14.99

10,362.88

1.76
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The following is a summary of the Group’s information on sustainability in the

social area for the Year:

Social area’

e

Total number of employees
BT

Number of employees by gender
BB DHWET AH

Female

g

Male

]

Number of employees by age group
RERABBEINET AR
Under 30

30BRA T

30-50

30-50%%

Over 50

505% A E

Number of employees by employment type
RESEABASINETAK
Full-time junior employees
ZRYKET

Full-time middle management
ERPRERE

Full-time senior management
ERERERE

Number of employees by geographical region
REETHWETAZ

Northern China

b 5

Western China

ERR

Eastern China

EREE
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UTRAFENH EHRBAHERREMNRBE

Unit
B
People
AE

People
N
People
A#

People
N
People
A
People

A

People
A
People
AR
People

A

People
AL
People
A
People

A

2024

2024 E

5,903

3,153

2,750

828

3,099

1,976

5,591

288

24

675

555

1,872
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Social area’ 2024
=g B 20245
Central China People 749
FErhRi AB

Southern China People 539
EhiRi A

Southwestern China People 1,513
i) =8 AB

Employee turnover rate’

B IRk

Total employee turmover rate % 36.70

BT #mAx

Employee turnover rate by gender

RUEBIE DB TRKLEE

Female % 34.99

g

Male % 38.56

EeRia

Employee turnover rate by age group

RERAFESHWE T RKLLE

Under 30 % 44.98

30BRIA N

30-50 % 31.36

30-505%

Over 50 % 40.23

5057 A £

° Data in the social area covers the entire Group ° HEEHNEEREEEH -

© The formula to calculate employee turnover rate is: Number of employees  ° BIRAXREOUFAEERNA  ZERRXE
who left in the category = (number of employees who left in the category + BAH- (ZERRKEE AB+ZERFK
number of employees at the end of the Year in the category) X 100% 1E 8 A0 x100%
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Social area’ 2024
=g 20245
Employee turnover rate by geographical region

RitBE DB TRALL =

Northern China % 37.44
FirRiE

Western China % 37.43
ERE

Eastern China % 39.73
ERERI

Central China % 41.12
EhR

Southern China % 29.36
EHR

Southwestern China % 31.82
i) s

Percentage of employees trained by gender’

BMBESHNZINETHAL

Female % 49.04
egi
Male % 50.96
B

Percentage of employees trained by employee category

RESERESNZIEIHIL

Full-time junior employees % 95.56
ERMRET

Full-time middle management % 412
TRAPRER

Full-time senior management % 0.32
EREREEE
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Social area’

=g

Average training hours completed per employee by gender®
BRI B S NZH 8 T Fi9EHIs8°

Female

ik

Male

S

Average training hours completed per employee by employee category’
REREDEAHZIE T FHEIRH

Full-time junior employees

ZRBORET

Full-time middle management

RAPRER

Full-time senior management

TRERER

Occupational health and safety

BERERZE

Number of work-related fatalities (2024, 2023 and 2022)
FE T A B (20244 [F ~ 20234 [€ [ 20224 [¥)
Rate of work-related fatalities (2024, 2023 and 2022)

F T T LK (20244 € ~ 20234 [€ 20224 %)
Lost days due to work injury

FAIBELTHER

The formula to calculate the percentage of employees trained is: Number of
employees trained in the category + total number of employees trained X
100%

The formula to calculate the hours of employees trained is: Number of
hours of employees trained in the category = total number of employees
trained in the category X 100%

The Group’s performance in environmental and social KPIs. Part of the
year-on-year changes may not be the same as the direct calculation results
of the figures presented because the data presented are rounded, but the
percentage changes are calculated based on the original data. In individual
cases, the sum of these percentage changes may not be 100%

2024

2024

Hour 34.76
N
Hour 37.53
N
Hour 36.77
N
Hour 23.85
N
Hour 22.34
N
People 0
A
0
%
Day 0
HE
! ZIEITBESLAEEAR  ZERFIET
+RHIE THEAEX100%
¢ ZIEIRHAETEA L ZEAZIEIH

H-ZERIZHE T ABX100%

° AEERRER L SHREBEFPORRA

MORLEEREMZINNOBFTEEAE

M AR

RUEE  EMZIERENERIA  BED

Lo B8 = AR I B R B - FEE RIS

R

ZEAOLEBE T 2 RFKRLAE100% ©
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R S RER/HKRE

(B HERE

AREESDRBR RS

APPENDIX II: INDEX OF ESG REPORTING GUIDE Bt % —
Indicators
BEERR
Environment area
RIBEE
A1: Emissions General Information relating to air and greenhouse gas
Disclosure emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste:
(@) the policies; and
(o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
Al BER) —RIXEE BRAERSORE R - MK R BT
FERBEEEMNELSN
@ B &
(b) BFEBEITABERTFENBBERLBRA -
A1 Types of emissions and respective emissions data.
Al.1 e e SR AR BE R -
A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and indirect (Scope 2) GHG

emissions (in tonnes) and, where applicable,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

A1.2 B (8EN) kEE (SBE2) )REREHNE (A
MEEtE) Kk (Em) BE (MABES S -
BEREE) ©

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

A1.3 EABEREEDESE (UBETE) & (W@Em)
HE(WMABESEN - BERMETH) -
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)

and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g., per unit of
production volume, per facility).

Al4 FRELBEEREYAEE CANEETE) & (ER)
HE(NASESBM  8ERMETE) -
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Corresponding section(s)

il

7. Green Development

7 AR BERR

7.1 GHG Emission Management
7TA1REREBHINER
7.1 GHG Emission Management

APPENDIX I: ENVIRONMENTAL
AND SOCIAL KPIS SUMMARY

71 REREHREE
FieE— : BREBIEREER

7.4 Waste Management

7TABERYER

7.4 Waste Management
APPENDIX I: ENVIRONMENTAL
AND SOCIAL KPIS SUMMARY

TABERYER
FisE— : BREBIEREER
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Indicators Corresponding section(s)
EERR HEEEH
Environment area
RER
A1.5 Description of the emission target(s) and steps 7.1 GHG Emission Management
taken to achieve them. 7.2 Green Office
A15 RPAET VBN E B iR ARERE L B RPN 1RERBHENRE
FRENEY HE o 72%@%&
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous 7.2 Green Office
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
A1.6 HERAEENBEEEEYMN AL - JERME] 728600
SH)BRE B AR M R E RIS L B AR P ERERE) 225K o
A2: Use of General Policies on the efficient use of resources, including 7. Green Development
Resources Disclosure energy, water and other raw materials.
A2 - BIRfEA —MRHEE BREABER(BEER KREMEMED S 7. %6%E
R e
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type 7.2 Green Office

(e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (KWh in '000s) and APPENDIX I: ENVIRONMENTAL
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per AND SOCIAL KPIS SUMMARY
facility).

A2.1 REARE D mﬁﬁﬁ/iﬁk ER(NE - |k 72&EHA
) RFEE ATETERGE) REE (AT WiE—  BRESIEREIER
EEEN  BHERMTE)

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per 7.3 Water Resources Management
unit of production volume, per facility) APPENDIX I: ENVIRONMENTAL
AND SOCIAL KPIS SUMMARY
A2.2 BFKEREE (MUASESEN - §ERE 73 KERER
#) - Mgk — : BARERIEREIRR
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and 7.2 Green Office
steps taken to achieve them.
A2.3 RAPAET MR RE ARG AR R BEREE 72460 A
B IR P ERER B 58K ©
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing 7. Green Development

water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) 7.3 Water Resources Management
set and steps taken to achieve them.

A2.4 el SREVE AR LA BERERE - IARMETL 7. e %R
RIS B AR MR ERE L B IZATERIN R - 7.3 KERE R
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Indicators Corresponding section(s)

EEAR B EH
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products  Not applicable to the Group’s
(in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per  business
unit produced.

A2.5 R MFTABREMB MBS (UNEEE) R (E AEEEBTER
R BEEEMGEE -
A3: The General Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact 7. Green Development
Environment and Disclosure on the environment and natural resources.
Natural Resources
A3 BRI R —MRHEE WEBETABRRELIRARNERENEATZEN 7. 86%R
RAREBIR B -
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities 7. Green Development
on the environment and natural resources and the
action taken to manage them.
A3.1 X RHHIRBERRABERNEATER 7.4C%E
ERNEBEUETENTE -
A4: Climate Change General Policies on identification and mitigation of significant 7.5 Coping with Climate Change
Disclosure climate-related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer.
A4 BIRE{L — MR BRAREHEERAIEEUETAEETZEN 75 BEREE L
BEARGHEBEEEOEE -
A4 Description of the significant climate-related issues 7.5 Coping with Climate Change
which have impacted, and those which may impact,
the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them
AdA MR GRTEEHBETAELHENEAR 75 BUHRBREL
EEREE - REHTH -
Social area
HERE
B1: Employment General Information relating to compensation and 6. Talent Management
Disclosure dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working 6.1 Employment
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare:
(@) the policies; and
(o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer.
Bl : Ef& — R EE ATk E  BEREA  ITERH - R 6 ATER
B FE#e 2ot REGUEE 6. 1E TIEE
o153 AR EY
@ B X

b) BFHEETABEAZENERERLAD
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Indicators Corresponding section(s)
EERR HEEEH
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type APPENDIX I: ENVIRONMENTAL
(for example, full-or part-time), age group and AND SOCIAL KPIS SUMMARY
geographical region
B1.1 RIER - BEER (N2 BEERE) - FEedRl M — BREUEREER
Ko [ Bl 55 ) 8 B A BN o
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and ~ APPENDIX I: ENVIRONMENTAL
geographical region AND SOCIAL KPIS SUMMARY
Bi1.2 RIER - FRRARI MR B DHEEMALLE - MiE—  BREMUEFREIEX
B2: Health and General Information relating to providing a safe working 6.2 Health and Safety
Safety Disclosure environment and protecting employees from

occupational hazards:

(@)  the policies; and

(o)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer.

B2 : f@fRE%R — R FERTLZE2TIERRIREEE#ERELE 62@RFELSE
EEH
@ BX: X
b) BTFHEHETABEAZENHEBEZLRD
BB R} o
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred  APPENDIX I: ENVIRONMENTAL
in each of the past three years including the AND SOCIAL KPIS SUMMARY
reporting year.
B2.1 BEA=F(BREERFE)SFRITHRAOAS  Mix— BARESUSZREIEER
Rt o
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. APPENDIX I: ENVIRONMENTAL
AND SOCIAL KPIS SUMMARY
B2.2 ETgIEk TIERS - MigE— : BIRERUR IR
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety 6.2 Health and Safety
measures adopted, and how they are implemented
and monitored.
B2.3 R PTERAN R R 21506 - ARMEER 6.2 @EEET S
TRERFE-
B3: Development General Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and 6.4 Vocational Training
and Training Disclosure skills for discharging duties at work. Description of

training activities.
3 BEREEN —MRIREE ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ@éﬁ“ﬂ’ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ EVAIE BB 6.4 B IE
o IR FIEE
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender APPENDIX I: ENVIRONMENTAL
and employee category (e.g. senior management,  AND SOCIAL KPIS SUMMARY
middle management).
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Indicators Corresponding section(s)
BEERAR HEEEH
B3.1 RURREERR (NERERERE PREEE) M—  BREMEZREIEXR
W EIEEB DL ©
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee  APPENDIX I: ENVIRONMENTAL
by gender and employee category. AND SOCIAL KPIS SUMMARY
B3.2 RURIREEERZED  BEEETAIIINT MiE—  BEREMIEREIEX
ERFEL o
B4: Labour General Information relating to preventing child and forced 6.1 Employment
Standards Disclosure labour:

(@  the policies; and
(o)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer.

B4 : 25 T AH| — R BRI IEE T Saah4 TH) 6.1 BIEME
@ B &
b) BFHETABEATENEBEELIRD
B -
B4 Description of measures to review employment 6.1 Employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.
B4.1 R REE IR EEAR R ET KARHST - 61 ETER
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such 6.1 Employment
practices when discovered.
B4.2 H AT ERISARBERARE MR 6.1 BIER
B5: Supply Chain General Policies on managing environmental and social risks 4.5 Supplier Management
Management Disclosure of the supply chain.
Bo: HEHER —REKE ERHEENREIEGRBBUR 45 HEMER
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 4.5 Supplier Management
B5.1 miRE D HIEREE - 45 HEMER
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging 4.5 Supplier Management

suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices
are being implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

B5.2 B EERAHERNED  mERITEAIBN 45 HEHERE
MEEEEE - URBBARITRERAE -
B5.3 Description of practices used to identify 4.5 Supplier Management

environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
B5.3 M BB HERGERINNRRELLER 45 HEHERE
B EVED] - A KRBT REER A ©
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Indicators Corresponding section(s)

EERAR HEBEE
B5.4 Description of practices used to promote 4.5 Supplier Management
environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored

B5.4 MAEREHERRREEZRARRERKRE 45 HEFER
BRI ARMBBERITRERTE -
B6: Product General Information relating to health and safety, advertising, 4.3 Information Security
Responsibility Disclosure labelling and privacy matters relating to products 4.1 Business Ethics

and services provided and methods of redress:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer.

B6: EmEE —MRAREE BRMEHERNBRBNEREZS BE R 43E58%%
HERALBETARERTER 41 EEBRE
@ B &
(o) BTFHEITABERZENRBERE LA
A o

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped The Group does not involve any
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons. product recall.

B6.1 EEIDEXERAHEPERL2ERERIERTN AEREEBTYREREBIR
ABH B DL

B6.2 Number of product and service related complaints 5.1 Customer Communication
received and how they are dealt with.

B6.2 EREANEMRRGOIRFEEURER L 51 BPER

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and 4.4 Protection of IPRs
protecting intellectual property rights.

B6.3 Tt B A T SRR AN E RS B B - 4.4 REMBERE

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall 5.2 Customer Services
procedures.

B6.4 S SR EREREREBIZT 52 B R

B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy 4.3 Information Security
policies, how they are implemented and monitored.

B6.5 HIUEBEERRERFLBEE - URMEEHT 4365852

MEEERTTE »
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Indicators Corresponding section(s)

EERAR HEEH

B7: Anti-corruption ~ General Information relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and 4.2 Integrity Building
Disclosure money laundering:

(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer.

B7 : RE)S —RWE BRI - B1R - BEFROAREN 42 BRRER
@ BZE: &
b) BTFHEHETABEAZENEBEZLRN
HE R} -
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding 4.2 Integrity Building

corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.

B7.1 RERARNEFTASHEEROTEELN 42 FRRER
BORRRMTNEE MFAER -
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and 4.2 Integrity Building

whistle-blowing procedures, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

B7.2 A A R B MR - LSBT RER 42 BRER
T
B7.3 Description of the anti-corruption training provided 4.2 Integrity Building
to directors and employees.
B7.3 ftmESR KRB TRHEMNRETE 42 BRRER
B8: Community General Policies on community engagement to understand 8. Contributing to Community
Disclosure the needs of the communities where the issuer

operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.

B8 : (EIKRE —RIXE B R2ERTHREEMELRFTENE 8 BRittE
REXB LB EEBHLENEOEE -
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, 8. Contributing to Community

environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport).

B8.1 EIERERE(WHE  BEFHE HIFK 8 HEuE
2 Xk - 88F) °

B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to focus 8. Contributing to Community
areas.

B8.2 EZETSHEMEAER (L EERE) - 8. ERttt=
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Independent Auditor’s Report

IBDO

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DOWELL SERVICE GROUP CO. LIMITED
(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dowell Service
Group Co. Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 173 to 292, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards
as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfiled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

5%41‘?%1%%’1*':

BRECARTELERBEBARGARDAZRR
(R A EHFNEE MK 8 H R F])

=R
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REEBRMDARAR(EAF]) REWB AR
(A IEEE]) HNFI7T3HEF202HLERE
B RKR - BIER2024F12 A31 B 4R A B 7k
MK REEZALFENSABEREMEE
sk AR RIGETESRER - MU
RIFAHERENT  BREERSTHRER -

BHRE  HEMERRCBERSSHAAT
(BREtmAg]) BnNEAM KRS EL S
FFERIAEE M 5 H R R E & B 712024512 A 31
BRGAEMBHKR  REEZEILFENLREHY
BEREREGEESRE  WEEREBQRIK
PINEBERTZARER

RRER

BRI EEEGHMASEMNE BRI ERE
TEZ - RPEZXFEN TRAENRTEARRS
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Assessing potential impairment of goodwill and customer
relationships

Refer to Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s goodwill and customer relationships,
which amounted to RMB212,068,000 and RMB61,365,000 respectively,
was allocated to the cash generating units (“CGUs”), representing
Hubei Zhonghe Century Property Management Co., Limited (“Hubei
Zhonghe”), Chongqging Shengdu Property Management Co., Ltd.
(“Chongqing Shengdu”), GSN Property Service Co., Ltd. (“GSN”),
Guangxi Dongyuan Shengkang Logistics Management Service Co., Ltd.
(“Guangxi Shengkang”), Mianyang Ruisheng Property Management Co.,
Ltd. (“Mianyang Ruisheng”), Hunan Jindian Property Management Co.,
Ltd. (“Hunan Jindian”), Zhejiang Zhongdu Property Management Co.,
Ltd. (“Zhejiang Zhongdu”), Shanghai Evergreen Social Care Enterprise
Development Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Evergreen”) and Chongging Bashu
Hospital Co., Ltd. (“Chongqing Bashu”).

Impairment assessment of goodwill and customer relationships are
performed by management. The recoverable amounts of the assets
allocated to the property management and related value-added businesses
operated by Hubei Zhonghe, Chongging Shengdu, GSN, Guangxi
Shengkang, Mianyang Ruisheng, Hunan Jindian, Zhejiang Zhongdu,
Shanghai Evergreen and Chongqging Bashu respectively are determined by
management based on value in use calculations.
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FAREZRSEE
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The value in use was estimated by preparing discounted cash flow forecasts.
The preparation of discounted cash flow forecasts involves the exercise
of significant management judgement, in particular in forecasting future
revenue, future gross profit margins and future operating and administrative
expenses and in determining the long-term growth rates and discounted
rates applied.

No impairment losses of goodwill and customer relationships were
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2024 as the recoverable
amounts of the CGUs as determined on the basis set out above were higher
than the carrying amounts.

We identified assessing potential impairment of goodwill and customer
relationships as a key audit matter because the impairment assessment
prepared by management is complex and involves a significant degree of
judgement in determining the assumptions, in particular the long term growth
rates and the discount rates applied, and could be subject to management
bias.

Our response

Qur procedures in relation to assess potential impairment of goodwill and
customer relationships included the following:

0] Evaluating management’s identification and key assumptions of
CGUs and the amount of goodwill, customer relationships and asset
allocated to the CGUSs;

(ii) Using our independent and qualified valuation specialists to assist
us in evaluating the methodology used by management in the
preparation of the discounted cash flow forecasts with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

ﬁ_ﬂ?%ﬁﬂﬁﬁ*‘:
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RITHRAXIARET AN RPERERER
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AR i A EBEFMIREEA BRI
SHESNREEE  WEZE2024F12A31H LFE
WEEREER TP BERNRERES -

BRI E R EPRENEERER S
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ﬁ_ﬂ?%ﬁﬁﬁi

(i)

i)

(vii)

Comparing the significant inputs used in the discounted cash flow
forecasts, including future revenue, future gross profit margins and
future operating and administrative expenses with the relevant data
in the financial budgets approved by the board of directors, industry
reports and agreements signed subsequent to the reporting date, if
any;

Comparing the significant inputs used in discounted cash flow
forecasts prepared in the prior year, if applicable, with the current
year’'s performance to assess how accurate the prior year’s
discounted cash flow forecasts were and making enquiries of
management as to the reasons for any significant variations identified;

Assessing the long-term growth rate and discount rate used in the
discounted cash flow forecasts by benchmarking against other similar
property management companies;

Obtaining sensitivity analysis of the key assumptions adopted in
the discounted cash flow forecasts prepared by management and
considering the resulting impact on the impairment charges for the
year and whether there were any indicators of management bias; and

Considering the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of the impairment assessment of goodwill and customer
relationships, including the key assumptions and sensitivities to
changes in such assumptions, with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards.
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(i)

)

(vi)

(vii
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Impairment assessment of trade receivables
Refer to Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2024, the gross amount of the Group’s trade
receivables totalled RMB713,636,000 against which a loss allowance of
RMB118,820,000 was made. The net carrying value of the Group’s trade
receivables represented approximately 40.1% of the total assets of the
Group as at 31 December 2024.

The Group’s loss allowance for trade receivables applies the simplified
approach to calculate expected credit losses (‘ECLs”), which is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. This approach is based
on management’s estimated loss rates for trade receivables. The estimated
loss rates take into account the aging of the trade receivables, overdue
balances and information regarding the ability and intent of the debtor to
pay and historical data on default rates and forward looking information.
In addition, trade receivables with significant outstanding balances are
assessed for ECLs individually, the estimated loss rates on overdue
balances, information regarding the ability and intent of the debtors to pay
and historical data on default rates and are adjusted for forward looking
information.

Management is required to apply judgement in assessing the loss allowance
for trade receivables under the ECLs model. The ability of the debtors to
repay the Group depends on credit risk characteristics of trade receivables
and market conditions which involves inherent uncertainty.

We identified the loss allowance for trade receivables as a key audit matter
because of the inherent uncertainty in assessing if trade receivables will be
recovered and because the assessment of the ECLs requires the exercise of
management judgement.
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Our response

Qur procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment on
trade receivables included the following:

U

(i)

(i)

)

Obtaining an understanding of and assessing management’s key
controls relating to credit control, debt collection and the calculation of
the ECLs;

Assessing the trade receivables ageing report based on credit risk
characteristics and the days past due by comparing the details of
individual items with underlying invoices on a sample basis;

Obtaining an understanding of the basis of management’s approach
to measuring ECLs of trade receivable balances and together with
our own external valuation specialists, where necessary, assessing
the reasonableness of management’s loss allowance estimates
by examining the information used by management to form such

judgements, including testing the accuracy of the historical default

data, evaluating whether the historical loss rates are appropriately
adjusted based on current economic conditions and forward-looking
information; and

Checking subsequent settlements of the trade receivables on
sampling basis to review the reasonableness of the ECLs.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibilities in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
units within the group as a basis for forming an opinion on the group
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and review of the work performed for the purposes of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chow Tak Sing, Peter

Practising Certificate Number PO4659

Hong Kong, 31 March 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GceBEmkEMEERER

H E2024F12 A31H LEF E For the year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
20244 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BT AR®T T ARBFT
(Restated,
Note 32(a))
(fe&E75) -
Bt 5E32(a))
Revenue & 7 1,530,201 1,528,257
Cost of sales SHE KA 7,8 (1,322,324) (1,315,379)
Gross profit E A 207,877 212,878
Selling and marketing expenses HE R HR 8 (35,367) (38,321)
Administrative expenses G 8 (168,991) (168,985)
Net impairment losses on financial assets TREEREBEFE 39(b) (79,275) (9,547)
Other income HAp A 10 8,247 9,613
Other (losses)/gains, net Hith (&518) WaF58 11 (149) 348
Operating (loss)/profit e (B1R),/FE (67,658) 5,986
Finance income BB WA 888 814
Finance costs BhE AR (6,761) (7,227)
Finance costs, net BhE R A F 5 12 (5,873) 6,413)
Share of results of investments accounted DRI R EARMNIZE
for using the equity method il 19 8,026 7,506
(Loss)/profit before income tax expense BR P15 B 6A S AT (B518),/F B (65,505) 7,079
Income tax credit/(expense) FTisgiEe,(Ax) 13 3,862 (3,645)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE), (61,643) 3,434
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive NN ATEIEFER (EE),
(expense)/income for the year MEkRE2E(FAX) Wag
attributable to: e
— Owners of the Company —ARREEE A (66,882) 2,529
— Non-controliing interests —FEPERR M A 5,239 905
(61,643) 3,434
RMB RMB
(Loss)/earnings per share attributable to RATHEE AELER
the owners of the Company (E518), /& F|
— Basic — HAK 14 (0.998) 0.038
— Diluted — s 14 (0.998) 0.038
2024 EWE RECHHTELREEBRBERLA
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE B R AR T 2R

R2024F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

2024 2023
20244 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B =E ARET T AREET T
(Restated,
Note 32(a))
(&Z&E5
B 3E32(a))
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI~ R KRR 16 50,349 59,814
Intangible assets mEEE 17 287,648 298,089
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 18 74,371 76,897
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTSTREE 31 23,991 20,496
Long-term prepayments R AT FIE 24 9,729 4,324
Contract costs BRI 7(e) 13,342 13,984
Investments accounted for using the equity BEREANERNIRE
method 19 24,642 20,705
484,072 494,309
Current assets REBEE
Contract assets BHEE 7(@) - 1,439
Dividend receivables FEUY AR B, 7,900 9,900
Trade, bills and other receivables B S5 EWNFIE -« EWEE
R B At FE Y 5RIE 22 642,374 688,596
Inventories FE 23 37,796 43,281
Prepayments TEfT IR 24 40,315 32,231
Current income tax receivables UL BNEAFT 1SR 7,295 1,735
Restricted cash Z R &R € 25 2,805 352
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEEY 25 261,696 256,597
1,000,181 1,034,131
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables Z e 3RIE 29 317,902 300,132
Borrowings (EE 30 - 9,262
Accruals and other payables FERTE AR I A FE ST 5RIE 29 303,474 293,864
Contract liabilities axaE 7(@) 336,384 295,657
Lease liabilities HEaE 18 11,815 16,760
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit 2 A FEF ABRA TR
or loss =N 39 1,200 1,000
Deferred revenue RIEW z 1,179 824
Current income tax liabilities BNHAFRS B & 4,378 4,646
976,332 922,145
Net current assets RBEEFE 23,849 111,986
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERRBERS 507,921 606,295
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R R

R2024%F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

2024 2023
20244 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BT AR¥ TR AREET T
(Restated,
Note 32(a))
€=riK
B 3E32(a))
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Lease liabilities HEBE 18 79,192 74,566
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit 2 AP EH ABZEH)
or loss TRBE 39 - 1,000
Deferred revenue PEIE Y =5 8,360 6,863
Deferred income tax liabilities BLEAMSTHARE 31 11,166 17,000
98,718 99,429
Net assets EEFE 409,203 506,366
Capital and reserves ERRGHEE
Share capital f&% 7R 27 66,991 66,991
Reserves ] 28 254,965 280,068
Retained earnings REEF 61,282 135,482
Equity attributable to owners of the RARHEEB AEEEZ
Company 383,238 482,541
Non-controlling interests JEFERERE = 33 25,965 24,325
Total equity DB 409,203 506,866

The consolidated financial statements on pages 173 to 292 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2025 and
are signed on its behalf by:

Zhang Aiming
REH
Director

EF

F173E E 52028 M 4r & B 5 R R B 1202543
A31REZEZSHERRETE  THTIES
RERES

Fan Dong
SER
Director
EBEF
20245 EHE RERCASTELRBEBRBERIA

175



Consolldated Statement of Changes in Equity

Y EL TR

H ZE2024%12831H ILF[Z For the year ended 31 December 2024

Attributable to owners of the Company

EATERNER
Non-
controlling
Share capital Reserves Retained interests Total
(Note 27) (Note 28) eamings Total (Note 33) equity
k& it FERER
(W) (Hfskos) RERF @it (333) BRaE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AREBTT  ARETRT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
Balanoe as at 31 December 2022, as 1025 12A31 AR (R 251)
previously reported 66,991 218427 177,123 462,541 21,120 483 661
Bushess combination under common conrol AEEHTHERAH - 59579 (04.286) 35203 (2882 P41
At1 Jenuary 2023 acusted) o031 1R (858) 66991 7806 108 d9Tg 1828 516072
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year ~~ ERFIER 2 EMALE - - 2529 2529 905 3434
Other transactions with non-controling interests HEERERNENR S - 8 - 8 89 =
Change in ownership inferests vithout chenge of -~ BAEEREBMAIERE
contol - 85%) - 85%) 538 B207)
Transfer fom retained eamings to statutory resene. ~ FIRBBFEEZ T R/E - 10512 (10512) = = =
Capital contrbuton from non-controling interests ~~ JEIERRIERTE - - - - 2986 2986
Dividend distrbution to the non-controling interests 3RS AR S - - - - (2.924) (2924
Dividend recogrised as distibution (Vora74) BREARORE (Wit1s) - - 9379 9379 = 0379
Acquisifon from non-controling interest FERERNE - 64 64 (64 -
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HHBAT - m 7 - (116) (116)
At 31 December 2023 (restated) and 1 January 2024 1202351231 8 (£ &31) R
024F1A1A 66,991 260,068 135,482 482,541 24,325 506,866
Loss and total comprehensive expense for theyear ~ FREBR2AR T2 - - (66,882) (66,882) 523 (61,643)
Transler from retained eamings to staiutory resene. IR BHERZZTRHIE - 3012 (3012 - - -
Capital contriouton for a subsifary from FERERR-HNEARTE
non-controling interests - - - - 915 915
Dividend distrbution to the non-controling interests —— FEEIRIER SRR S - - - - (4.514) (4.514)
Dividend recognised as distribution Abrer4) RENRORE Wit - - (4421 (442 - (4.421)
Busiess combination under common control AREHTOERGE W22g)
Note 22%) - (28,000) - (28,000) - (28,000)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAF - (115) 115 - - -
At 31 December 2024 R4 12331 R B9 254965 2 382 B 4093
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mERERER

H E2024F12 A31H LEF E For the year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
20244 20235
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BT AR®T T ARBFT
(Restated)
(Fe&E7)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHHBRSRE
ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations KEEANIEE 34(a) 95,732 92,431
Income tax paid, net BEARAEH - FEE (11,295) (12,516)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RETHHMBRSFHR
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 84,437 79,915
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZTHFBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment  EE W% « = MR E 16 (9,987) (17,200)
Purchases of intangible assets BEEMEE 17 (3,284) (6,090)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and  HE W - BE k& &
equipment FriSsk8 670 562
Proceeds from disposal of right-of-use assets & {5 A # & &= FT1S 5B 1,065 =
Proceeds from deregistration of a joint venture st 88 — A & D AMEHIA 19 450 =
Refund of capital contribution of a joint venture Ri&E — A EDERTE 19 2,400 =
Dividends received from joint ventures BRELETERS 3,239 3,699
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash ZERHIIRE (3G H0), 25 (2,453) 318
Interest received EHFE 888 814
Payment for contingent consideration for Bk B — PRI B B A B S A
acquisition of a subsidiary HARE (800) (2,000)
Prepayment for acquisition of an entity Wi — M E A Ta 5RIE 24 (5,950) =
Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries under ~ UsB& £ B4 T 2 I B A &)
common control ESf RN 32(a) (28,000) =
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING RETBHFAREEHE
ACTIVITIES (41,762) (19,897)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHFERERE
ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid to the shareholders BT RS (4,421) (9,379)
Proceeds from other loans HME B RIE 34(b) - 4,000
Repayment of other loans EEHMER 34(b) (4,000) =
Proceeds from a bank loan —IRIRITEFRFTEKIE 34(b) - 5,262
Repayment of a bank loan BE—1EIRITEMR 34(b) (5,262) (8,000)
Capital contribution for a subsidiary from FEFE AR A 2 [m) — R BT BB 22 A
non-controlling interests xE 915 2,986
Dividend paid to the non-controling interests & 15t B /B8 2 &) H JE#2 A 2
of subsidiaries ) (3,055) -
Interest paid BEAFE (230) (512)
Lease payments of principal elements REEDHEERNK 34(p) (15,052) (13,012)
Lease payments of interest elements FEHHWEER K 34(p) (6,531) 6,715)
Transactions with non-controling interests BRI ERNIR S - (3,207)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

SEHERER

H ZE2024%12831H ILF[Z For the year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
20244 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BT AR®T T AREET T
(Restated)
(Fe&E7)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING BEERETARSTFE
ACTIVITIES (37,636) (28,577)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRESEEYIEMNFE
EQUIVALENTS 5,039 31,441
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FUONERERESEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 256,597 225,387
EXCHANGE GAINS/(LOSSES)ONCASH HBe&RBESZEYNER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Wi (EE) 60 (231)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSATTHE FHRMNEBEERBEESZEY
END OF THE YEAR 261,696 256,597
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH BR&RBESZSEBYMNEERDHT:
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Cash at banks and on hand RITHERNMEFRE 25 261,696 256,597
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1.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

Dowell Service Group Co. Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) on 13 January 2015 as
a limited liability company. Upon approval by the shareholders’ general
meeting held on 13 December 2020, the Company was converted
into a joint stock company with limited liability under the Company
Law of the PRC and changed its registered name to “Dowell Service
Group Co. Limited (B8 R = ANk 138 & RIS L B AR 1D B R 2 &) “on
30 December 2020. Its H shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The address of the Company’s registered office and its principal place
of business address is Room 206, Commercial Building, B-1, No.
108, Baihe Road, Nanping Town, Nan’an District, Chongging, PRC.

The Company’s ultimate holding company is Dima Holdings Co., Ltd.
(“Dima Holdings” or “Dima”), a company established in the PRC
engaging in the real estate industry. The immediate holding company
of the Company is Tianjin Chengfang Corporate Management
Consultant Co. Ltd. (“Tianjin Chengfang”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Dima Holdings.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group acquired
90.73% of the equity interests of Shanghai Evergreen Social Care
Enterprise Development Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Evergreen”) from
Shanghai Dixuan Industries Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Dixuan”), which is
a subsidiary of Dima Holdings. The acquisition was accounted for as
business combination under common control (Note 32(a)).

The Company and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) are primarily
engaged in the provision of property management service and related
value-added services in the PRC.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”)

(@) Adoption of new or amendments to HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2024

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-Current

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements

and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 1

Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classiffication by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

Amendments to HK
Interpretation 5
(Revised)

None of these new or amendments to HKFRSs has a material
impact on the Group’s results and financial position for the
current or prior period. The Group has not early applied any
new or amended HKFRSs that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

(b) New or amendments to HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new or amendments to HKFRSs, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply
these changes on the date they become effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Amendments to HKAS 21
and HKFRS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 1,

HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 7

Amendments to HK
Interpretation 5

HKFRS 18

HKFRS 19

Amendment to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

2025.
2026.

2027.

Lack of exchangeability’

Classification and Measurement of
Financial Instruments®

Contracts Referencing
Nature-dependent Electricity®

Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Accounting Standards —
Volume 117

Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause’

Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements®

Subsidiaries without Public
Accountability: Disclosures®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

Effective date to be determined.
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Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7

The Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 clarify
the requirements related to the date of recognition and
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities, with an
exception for derecognition of financial liabilities settled via an
electronic transfer, the requirements for assessing contractual
cash flow characteristics of financial assets, with additional
guidance on assessment of contingent features, characteristics
of non-recourse loans and contractually linked instruments. The
Amendments also introduce additional disclosure requirements
for equity instruments classified as FVOCI and for financial
instruments with contingent features.

HKFRS 18

HKFRS 18 will have a significant effect on how entities present
their financial statements with emphasis on reporting of financial
performance. The areas that will be significantly affected include
categorization and subtotals in the statement of profit or loss,
aggregation/disaggregation and labelling of information, and
disclosure of management-defined performance measures.

The Group is currently analysing the new requirements and
assessing the impact of the amendments towards the Group’s
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(@)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “HKFRS” issued by Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules (“the Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except for the financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at fair value
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company. All values in the consolidated financial statements
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

(d)

Application of business combination under
common control

On 21 June 2024, the Group acquired 90.73% of the equity
interests of Shanghai Evergreen from Shanghai Dixuan, which
is a subsidiary of Dima Holdings, at a purchase consideration of
RMB28,000,000. The acquisition is considered as a business
combination involving entities under common control and has
been accounted for by using merger accounting method. As
a result, the comparative figures of the consolidated statement
of financial position, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
and related notes were restated using the principles of merger
accounting as prescribed in Hong Kong Accounting Guideline 5
“Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA"), as if Shanghai Evergreen had been combined with
the Group from the earliest date when Shanghai Evergreen first
came under the control of Dima Holdings.

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Basis of consolidation

Where the Company has control over an investee, it is classified
as a subsidiary. The Company controls an investee when it has
power over the investee, is exposed or has rights to variable
retumns from the investee, and has the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever
facts and circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date on which control
is obtained until the date on which control ceases.
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(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Business combination under common contro

The consolidated financial statements incorporates the financial
statement items of the entities of businesses in which the
common control combination occurs as if they had been
consolidated from the date when the entities of businesses first
came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from the controlling
party’s perspective. No amount is recognised in consideration
for goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value
of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of common control combination, to the
extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the common control, where this is
a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common control
combination.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by those entities.
All intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between combining entities or business are
eliminated on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR

R2024F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

(c)

Associates

Where the Group has the power to participate in (but not
control) the financial and operating policy decisions of another
entity, it is classified as an associate. Associates are initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost. Subsequently associates are accounted for using the
equity method, where the Group’s share of post-acquisition
profits and losses and other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income (except for losses in excess of the
Group’s investment in the associate unless there is an obligation
to make good those losses).

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group
and its associates are recognised only to the extent of unrelated
investors’ interests in the associate. The investor’s share in the
associate’s profits and losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the associate.

Where there is objective evidence that the investment in an
associate has been impaired, the carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in the same way as other
non-current financial assets.

Joint Ventures

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement when there is a
contractual arrangement that confers joint control over the
relevant activities of the arrangement to the Group and at least
one other party. Joint control is assessed under the same
principles as control over subsidiaries.

Where there is objective evidence that the investment in a
joint venture has been impaired, the carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in the same way as other
non-current financial assets.

The Group accounts for its interests in joint ventures in the same
manner as investments in associates (Note 4(c)).
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(e)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Foreign currency translation

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the entities
within the Group are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). Since all of the assets and operations
of the Group are located in the PRC, the consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s
functional currency and the Group’s presentation currency.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives or, in the case of
leasehold improvements, the shorter of useful life or lease term,
as follows:

Buildings 10 - 30 years
Electronic equipment 3-10 years
Fumniture and fixtures 3-10 years
Vehicles 5-10 years

Leasehold improvements Shorter of useful life or lease term

Property, plant and equipment arising from business acquisition
is depreciated over the remaining useful life.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting year.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 4(i)).

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
“Other gains/(losses) — net” in the consolidated statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR

R2024F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

(g) Intangible assets

@  Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in

intangible assets.

Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (“CGUs”) or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination
in which the goodwill arose. The goodwill is allocated and
monitored at subsidiary level which is under the operating

segment level.

The carrying value of the CGUs containing the goodwill
is compared with the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed (Note 4(h)).

(b)  Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. The contractual customer relations have a finite
useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the expected lives of 8 to 10
years for the customer relationships, which is determined
by considering to the existing conditions and possibilities
of renewal of the property management contracts by

reference with industry experiences.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(c) Software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives of 5 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets. Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR

R2024F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

() Financial assets

@  Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following

measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income (“OCI”)

or through profit or loss); and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows. For assets measured at fair value,
gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
OCI. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend
on the business model in which the investment is held.
For investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made
an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through

other comprehensive income (“FVOCI").

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets

changes.

(b)  Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks

and rewards of ownership.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL”), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether their
cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in “Other
gains/(losses), net” together with foreign exchange gains
and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate
line item in the statements of comprehensive income.

FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss
on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at
FVTPL is recognised in profit or loss and presented net
within “Other gains/(losses), net” in the period in which it
arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR

R2024F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value
in other comprehensive income. This election is made on
an investment-by-investment basis. Equity investments at
FVTOCI are measured at fair value. Dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend income
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified
to profit or loss. All other equity instruments are classified
as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value, dividends and
interest income are recognised in profit or loss.

(@  Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 39(b) details
how the Group determines whether there has been a

significant increase in credit risk.

For contract assets, trade and bills receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables, see Note 39(b)

for further details.

Impairment on other receivables is measured as either
12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected
credit loss, depending on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
If a significant increase in credit risk of a receivable has
occurred since initial recognition, then impairment is
measured as lifetime expected credit loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade and bills receivables are amounts due from customers
for services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade, bills and other receivables is expected in one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade, bills and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment. See
Note 22 for further information about the Group’s accounting
for trade, bills and other receivables and Note 39(b) for a
description of the Group’s impairment policies for trade, bills
and other receivables.

Inventories

Inventories refer to car parking spaces and consumables are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of
purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and
discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is
not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

E MR

R2024%F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

2024 F [E %

& 5 s - NS
R 2 i fE Lk 0E

BHRMFEARERERENAR
EB BT IR HRES M EWE P
HOSRIA o i TR A — F 2 IA A (3%
BE-—FEELELERAHA) KD
BHRWGR - BIRER R E M RER
FE - ARERBELBERRBEE
BRI AIZFIRIERBEE °

BHRNTIE - REFEREMEKR
RIBNF RN ERER  ERERE
BRABOR IR AR SR E R G
R AHAKEE SRR &
WEEREMERRBEAREZE
LEIEF 22 URBEAARE
B EZEWIE  BREE R EAME
Ui R TR R (B TR Y e 7 2 BB R
39(b) °

3]

FEEEBEA - MFEH AR AR 8]
BHFECREEIR BEFEN
BCARTIRORR M R IR EE - 7
FHFE/BEEBEEP MG
EEREERATEHENX

BEZ R HEMENKE

B 5 N EMENFIRE N R EE
ERAMARBERHEORNTRER
MRBzaE ZEHEBEM &
ZREMENKEDLZ2IRRDE
B BRIFEMNRER RS HR12(8A
AAREH - ZFHIENIENE R FE
MR HRRAERAN SORIZE K
AEtE -

RECARTELRBEEARGERAIT

193



194

(m) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at
amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income over the year of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all
of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the period
of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement of
financial position when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,
is recognised in profit or loss as “Other income” or “Finance
costs”.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences and to unused tax losses. Tax is
recognised in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
in OCI or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised
in OCI or directly in equity, respectively.

@

)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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R2024F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024
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Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Qutside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the
Group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only when there is an agreement
in place that gives the Group the ability to control the
reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable
future, deferred tax liability in relation to taxable temporary
differences arising from the associate’s undistributed
profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there
is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Employee benefits

Short-term obljgations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary
benefits and accumulating sick leave that are expected
to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service
are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to
the end of the reporting period and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are
settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations in the consolidated statement of
financial positions.

Pension obligations

The Group only operates defined contribution pension
plans. In accordance with the rules and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC based employees of the Group participate
in various defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by the relevant municipal and provincial
governments in the PRC under which the Group and the
PRC based employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a percentage
of the employees’ salaries. The municipal and provincial
governments undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired PRC based
employees’ payable under the plans described above.
Other than the monthly contributions, the Group has no
further obligation for the payment of retirement and other
post-retirement benefits of its employees. The assets of
these plans are held separately from those of the Group
in independently administrated funds managed by the
governments.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement scheme are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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R2024F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024
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Housing funds, medical insurances and other social
insurances

Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to
participate in various government-supervised housing
funds, medical insurances and other social insurance
plan. The Group contributes on a monthly basis to these
funds based on certain percentages of the salaries of the
employees, subject to certain ceiling. The Group’s liability
in respect of these funds is limited to the contributions
payable in each year. Contributions to the housing funds,
medical insurances and other social insurances are
expensed as incurred.

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonuses is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation for payment of bonus as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made. Liabilities for profit sharing and
bonus plans are expected to be settled within one year
and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when they are settled.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a)
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a
restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS 37 and
involves the payment of terminations benefits. In the case
of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the number
of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling
due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Provision

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue mainly comprises proceeds from property
management services, community value-added services, and
value-added services to non-property owners.

For better identification of the revenue, the Group uses
categories of city operations services, lifestyle services and
FATH and other comprehensive services to classify the property
management services, community value-added services, and
value-added services to non-property owners correspondingly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR

R2024F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the goods or
services is transferred to a customer. Depending on the terms
of the contract and the laws that apply to the contract, control
of the goods and services may be transferred over time or at a
point in time.

If contracts involve the sale of multiple services, the transaction
prices are allocated to each performance obligation based on
their relative stand-alone selling prices. If the stand-alone selling
prices are not directly observable, they are estimated based on
expected cost plus a margin or adjusted market assessment
approach, depending on the availability of observable
information.

@  City operations services

City operations services represented property
management services rendered to residential and
non-residential properties (other than those included in
FATH and other comprehensive services). Revenue from
city operation services is recognised in the accounting
period in which the services are rendered as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group when the Group performs.

For city operation services, the Group bills a fixed amount
for services provided on a monthly basis and recognises
as revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right
to invoice and that corresponds directly with the value of
performance completed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For city operation services income from properties
managed under lump sum basis, where the Group
is primarily responsible for providing the property
management services to the property owners, the
Group recognises the fee received or receivable from
property owners as its revenue and all related property
management costs as its cost of service.

For city operation services income from properties
managed under commission basis, where the Group
recognises the commission, which is calculated by certain
percentage of the total property management fee received
or receivable from the property units, as its revenue for
arranging and monitoring the services as provided by
other suppliers to the property owners.

Lifestyle services

Lifestyle services represented the community events
planning services, public resources management service,
management and agency services, and other lifestyle
related value-added services.

The Group provides community events planning services
for residents and property developers. The Group also
provides management and agency services, which mainly
include car parking spaces management services, car
parking spaces and property sales business, services
for property leasing and public resources management
services. Besides, the Group provides other lifestyle
related services such as utility maintenance services to the
resident and property owners.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR

R2024F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

The Group managed car parking spaces and collected
car parking fees on behalf of property developers and
related management services fees are recognised as
revenue on a net basis at a pre-determined percentage of
total parking fees collected that corresponds directly with
the value of performance completed.

The Group provides agency services for sale of car
parking spaces and properties to property developers.
The Group acts as an agent in the agency service as the
Group is not the primary obligor to provide the car parking
spaces and properties to the customers and the Group
has no inventory risk and pricing discretion in sales of car
parking spaces and properties. The Group recognises
commission fees on a net basis, which are calculated by
a percentage of the sales prices when the car parking
spaces and properties are delivered to the customers.

The Group also acts as a principal in sale of car parking
lots in certain territory, as the Group obtains control of
the car parking lots before transferring the control of car
parking lots to the end customers. Revenue is recognised
when the control of the car parking lot is transferred to
the customer. Revenue from community events planning
services is recognised on a gross basis when such
services are rendered.

The Group provides public resources management
services and event planning services, which mainly
including agent services for publishing advertisements,
leasing public facilities or areas to the property owners,
and organising the event. The Group acted as an
agency when providing the services and recognises the
commission fees on a net basis, which is calculated
by a portion of income earned by property owners in
accordance with an agreed-upon percentage when such
services are rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Group provides property agency services to property
developers in relation to the properties that involve
assisting in the searches for tenants, and coordination with
potential tenants. The Group recognises the commission
fees on a net basis at a fixed percentage of rental income
when such services are rendered.

Revenue from other lifestyle related services mainly
include: renovation management services, decoration
services, utility and maintenance services provided to
residents or tenants, and is charged for each services
provided and recognised when the relevant services are
rendered.

FATH and other comprehensive services

FATH and other comprehensive services represented the
foreign and medical services, sales assistance services,
preliminary planning services, digital and intelligent
technology services, maintenance and rectification
services, elderly care and hospital services and other
related comprehensive services. Foreign and medical
services represented property management services
rendered to non-residential properties for foreign-owned
enterprises, foreign embassies, international schools,
hospitals, and medical facilities.

Revenue from providing property management services
for foreign-owned enterprises, foreign embassies,
international schools, hospitals, and medical facilities
entities is recognised in the accounting period same as
the city operations service. The Group bills a fixed amount
for services provided on a monthly basis and recognises
as revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right
to invoice and that corresponds directly with the value of
performance completed.
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E MR

R2024F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

On-site sales assistance services mainly include: cleaning,
security, maintenance of display units, visitor management
and hospitality services provided to property developers
at an early stage of property development, which are
billed and settled monthly based on actual level of
services provided at pre-determined price and revenue
is recognised on a gross basis when such services are
provided.

The Group provides preliminary planning and delivery
assistance services to property developers before and
during the construction of the properties. The Group
provides pre-delivery consultancy and inspection services
to property developers when the construction has been
completed. The Group agrees the price for the services
with the customers upfront and recognises as revenue
on a gross basis in the amount to which the Group has
a right to invoice and that corresponds directly with the
value of performance completed.

The Group provides digital and intelligent technology
services, maintenance and rectification services to
property developers. The Group agrees the price for the
services with the customers upfront and recognises as
revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right to
invoice and that corresponds directly with the value of
performance completed.

The Group provides elderly care and hospital services
to customers. For elderly care services, the Group bills
a fixed amount for services provided on a monthly basis
and recognises as revenue in the amount to which the
Group has a right to invoice and that corresponds directly
with the value of performance completed. For the hospital
services, treatment fee is charged for service provided
and recognised when the relevant service is rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Other related comprehensive services to non-property
owners refer to other additional tailored services. The
Group recognised revenue when the relevant services are
rendered.

Rental incorme

Rental income from lease of apartments is recognised in
the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease (Note 4(s)).

Presentation of assets and liabilities related to
contracts with customers

When either party to a contract has performed, the Group
presents the contract in the statement of financial position
as a contract asset or a contract liability, depending on
the relationship between the Group’s performance and
the customer’s payment.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for services that the Group has transferred to a
customer.

If a customer pays consideration or the Group has a right
to an amount of consideration that is unconditional, before
the Group transfers services to the customer, the Group
presents the contract as a contract liability when the
payment is received or a receivable is recorded (whichever
is earlier). A contract liability is the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an
unconditional right to consideration. A right to
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is due.
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mE R R M EE

R2024F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

Incremental costs incurred to obtain a contact, if
recoverable, are capitalised and presented as assets
and subsequently amortised when the related revenue is
recognised. The Group applied the practical expedient to
recognise the incremental costs of obtaining a contract as
an expense immediately if the amortisation period is less
than 12 months.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVTPL is included in the
net fair value gains/(losses) on these assets. Interest income on
financial assets at amortised cost calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in profit or loss as part of “Other
income”.

Interest income is presented as “Finance income” where it is
earned from financial assets that are held for cash management
purposes. Any other interest income is included in “Other
income”.

Leases

The Group leases apartments as lessee and then lease out to
customers as lessor. The Group also lease office buildings and
other equipment for own use. Rental contracts for apartments
are typically made for fixed periods of 5 to 10 years. Rental
contracts for office buildings and equipment are typically made
for fixed periods of 2 to 3 years. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability; and

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received;

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of
low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term, typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 2 years (Note
4(q)-
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72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

(t) Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

(u) Related parties
(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:
0] has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of key management personnel of the

Group or the Company’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

DOWELL SERVICE GROUP CO. LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

B R RG

FERERERERFHAAERNE
BB EMA MG RIBRAAHERL
AE R FERER °

B A 7 AR B B9 IR A G o TR B S
RV ZHRBNER AR SRS
ARG B EL B AR (8 2 X AR AR TG -

AT

@ MW—BALHZALHEIRK
FERK BT & AT 6 fh - B H
REEF B

() HASEERZHEX
SRR

i) HAEBBEEARZES:
13

iy RAKERARAFR
AIMETRERAS -

b A A TERGRS - BIER
SRR SR B B

0 ZEBEAEEH[RFR-—
SEKERE (NS &
NI N =N IR R
BB~ R Rtk 2 R A R

=
pil
i
&
30

\

i
fiE

o
o> 5

»
ol
SEI_
> m D
| i}
A
e
B mE R

iy MEEBHYAFA-—F=
FEORERE -



(vi)

(vil

(viil)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)() has significant influence
over the entity or is @ member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or the Group’s parent.
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72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions in preparation of the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(@)

Allowance on doubtful receivables

The Group makes allowances for receivables based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group used judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs for the impairment calculation, based on
the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of trade, bills
and other receivables and related impairment losses in the
periods in which such estimate has been changed. For details
of the key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in Note
39(b).

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the PRC.
Judgement is required in determining the amount of the
provision for taxation and the timing of payment of the related
taxations. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses can be
utilised. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the recognition of deferred
income tax assets and taxation in the periods in which such
estimate is changed.

Impairment of goodwill and customer
relationships (under intangible assets)

The Group tests annually whether goodwill and customer
relationships (under intangible assets) has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policies stated
in Note 4(g)(a) and Note 4(g)(b), where the recoverable amounts
of the CGUs is determined based on value-in-use (“VIU”)
calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates.
Details of impairment assessment, key assumptions and impact
of possible changes in key assumptions are disclosed in Note
17.

Estimation of the useful life of customer
relationships

Customer relationships identified on respective acquisition
dates are recognised as intangible assets (Note 17). Customer
relationships primarily related to the existing contracts of
acquirees on the acquisition date. The Group estimates
the useful life and determines the amortisation period of the
customer relationships to be 8 to 10 years based on the
expected contract periods (including renewal) for property
management services with customers based on the historical
renewal pattern and the industry practice.
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E MR

R2024F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

However, the actual useful life may be shorter or longer than
estimate, depending on acquirees’ ability to secure its contracts
and relationship with property developers or renew the contracts
with property owners’ associations in the future. Where the
actual contract periods are different from the original estimates,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of the intangible
asset of customer relationships and the amortisation expenses
in the periods in which such estimate has been changed.

Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the Group’s
financial statements require measurement at, and/or disclosure
of, fair value. The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market observable
inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs used in determining
fair value measurements are categorised into different levels
based on how observable the inputs used in the valuation
technique utilised are (the “fair value hierarchy”):

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical items
(unadjusted);

Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other than
Level 1 inputs; and

Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from market

data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is based on
the lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant effect
on the fair value measurement of the item. Transfers of items
between levels are recognised in the period as they occur.

At each reporting date, the Group measures financial liabilities at
FVTPL (Note 39).

For more detailed information in relation to the fair value
measurement of the item above, please refer to the applicable
notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Estimated useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and residual values for its property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives. It will write off or write down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual
economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives; actual
residual values may differ from estimated residual values.
Periodic view could result in a change in depreciable lives and
residual values and therefore depreciation in the future periods.

Estimated incremental borrowing rate for leases

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in
a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate to
measure lease liabilities. The incremental borrowing rate is the
rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over
a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment. The incremental borrowing rate
therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are available or
when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions
of the lease. The Group estimates the incremental borrowing
rate using observable inputs (such as market interest rates)
when available and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).
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72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

(h)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment, and right-of-use assets are
tested for impairment when indicators exist. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which an asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount being fair value less
costs of disposal or value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows.

Net realisable value of inventories

The Group’s management reviews the inventory ageing analysis
periodically, and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for sales.

The Group carries out an inventory review on a
product-by-product basis at the end of each reporting period
and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving items
through management’s estimation of the net realisable value for
such obsolete and slow-moving items based primarily on the
latest invoice prices and current market conditions. Additional
write down of inventories might be necessary when the actual
movement in inventories and selling prices is lower than
anticipated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM”).
The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the
executive Directors.

For better identification of the revenue, the Group uses categories
of city operations services, lifestyle services and FATH and other
comprehensive services to classify the property management
services, community value-added services, value-added services to
non-property owners and other services correspondingly.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of city operations
services, lifestyle services, and FATH and other comprehensive
services. Management reviews the operating results of the business
as one operating segment to make decisions about resources to be
allocated. Therefore, the CODM of the Company regards that there is
only one segment which is used to make strategic decisions.

The principal operating entity of the Group is domiciled in the PRC.
Accordingly, all of the Group’s revenue were derived in the PRC
during the year.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, all of the assets of the Group
were located in the PRC.

E MR

R2024%F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

6. DEBEFR

2024 F [E %
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR E

R2024F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

2

a2
7. REVENUE 7. W=
Revenue mainly comprises proceeds from the 3 categories of Wz EOIEMERTRE - EFEER
city operations services, lifestyle services and FATH and other BRFHN BB BRSEERB=ZHER
comprehensive services. An analysis of the Group’s revenue by &) BT 15 70 IE - & 220244 N2023F 124
category for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are as JINBILFE  AEBZREEDHKED
follows: W :
2024 2024 2023 2023
20244 20244 2023%F 2023%F
Cost of Cost of
Revenue sales Revenue sales
W 2= SHER A Wz SHE RN
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR¥TR ARETT AREKTT
(Restated) (Restated)
(K &%) (geE5)
Revenue from customers BERFEERNE S R
recognised over time
City operations services 1) ZE 350 7 AR 75 879,487 773,697 872,149 767,858
Lifestyle services U EE Hlﬁk 143,104 112,643 146,893 114,896
FATH and other comprehensive 9 ~ BHE - BEEE4R
services & MR 422,611 368,694 417,960 361,037
1,445,202 1,255,034 1,437,002 1,243,791
Revenue from customers RE-RBHEEINE
recognised at point in time F Wz
Lifestyle services EETE H&ﬂ‘k 70,489 55,567 75,135 59,062
FATH and other comprehensive ~ #9h ~ BH « B4R
services & R% 14,510 11,723 16,120 12,536
84,999 67,290 91,255 71,588
1,530,201 1,322,324 1,528,257 1,315,379
Revenue recognised on gross  REAFEEYE REE%E
basis/net basis: RS
Revenue recognised on gross LR AR WS
basis 1,511,445 1,305,968 1,507,132 1,294,354
Revenue recognised on net basis %5 58 F E FER A I 25 18,756 16,356 21,125 21,025
1,530,201 1,322,324 1,528,257 1,315,379

DOWELL SERVICE GROUP CO. LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Information about major customers

Revenue from major customers, each of whom accounted for 10% or
more of the total revenue is set out as below:

E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

ERTERFHNEHR

REEERFFHRA (BUEFEBIRAK
10%3 A £) #Han T -

2024 2023
2024% 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTFIT

(Restated)

(F&&E75)

Customer A =PA N/A ~E A 154,887

Customer A presents entities controlled by Dima Holdings and joint
ventures and associates of Dima Holdings which accounted for 10%
or more the Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31 December
2023. None of the customers contributed 10% or more of the Group’s
revenue during the year ended 31 December 2024.

(@) Contract assets and liabilities

The Group has recognised the following revenue-related

EPARKHRBSEEITHME BN R
BEENEGELERBERT  HEHZE
2023F12A81H IEFE AR AREE R A
B910%38% LA £ o & £2024%12 318 |E
B BEaAEPEREE KGN ERE
ZH0%3L A £ ©

@ BREERERE

AEBEERBATRAEBENHAE D

contract assets and liabilities: BEEKEE:

2024 2023
20245 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFTT

Contract assets BEHNEE
— FATH and other comprehensive services = B BERESEA RS - 1,439
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREF T
(Restated)
(BE7)

Contract liabilties EHAaE
— City operations services — YW TR 272,906 239,294
— Lifestyle services — R EERS 40,592 36,205
— FATH and other comprehensive services —Hoh s B - BESERARE 22,386 20,158
336,384 295,657

2024 F [E %

RECARTELRBEEARGERAIT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

(b) Changes in contract assets and liabilities

Contract assets of the Group mainly arise from the unbilled
work in progress where payment is not due. Contract liabilities
of the Group mainly arise from the advance payments made
by customers while the underlying services are yet to be
provided. The assets decreased as a result of the unbilled work
in progress decreased. The liabilities increased as a result of the
change in payment policy.

Revenue recognised in relation to contract
liabilities

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised

BHEEREEBNEE

AEENANEETIRELARRA
EMERTRE (RRHEAREH) - K
SENANBEIEELARPE
HEVER TR - AR ARG MR Rt - B
REERNASERARNERZTR
WA mA PR - MAEREERNK
BERE T A FTIEA o

PVOY LT

TRINFRABEHMALEE LD

in the current reporting period relates to brought-forward BEERNK=SE -
contract liabilities.
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR AREET T
(Restated)
(gE5)
Revenue recognised that was included in PRk E GTASHAESF
the balance of contract liabilities at the EEeR)
beginning of the year
— City operations services — WD ZE T AR 239,294 181,906
— Lifestyle services —E AR 36,205 42,856
- FATH and other comprehensive services = - B - BEZRE
PR 5 20,158 14,829
295,657 239,591
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Unsatisfied performance obligations

The following table shows unsatisfied performance obligations
of pre-delivery services under FATH and other comprehensive
services resulting from related fixed-price long-term contracts:

E MR

R2024%F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

0 REBEITHBNEE

TRIFHEEEEERRYPANE
BHEHEIN B BRESARKA
TRNARBAEENRBEITHE

WEME -
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Aggregate amount of the transaction price D EEEZBH K EEBREITH
allocated to long-term pre-delivery services ~ REFXZ T RIIRFGHIZ 5B
that are partially or fully unsatisfied IR IBEE 8,506 17,569

The maturity date of unsatisfied performance obligations is
analysed as follows:

ABTEOEENZHADHAT

2024 2023
2024F 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR®BTR ARETT AREKTET
Less than 1 year DI1E 7,986 94% 16,437 94%
1 to 2 years 1226 520 6% 1,132 6%
8,506 17,569
For city operations services, the Group recognises revenue HRMERTRGETE  AEEE AR
in the amount that equals to the right to invoice which RN ECEENEEAARER
corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the S HEAEEZSHIENEOY
Group’s performance to date, on a monthly basis. The Group REFHEEERHE AEEEE
has elected the practical expedient to not disclose the remaining BATHRE 2 UWRBEREZS
performance obligations for these types of contracts. The HASONRSRBLAORLE - KW
majority of city operations services contracts do not have a fixed ST RS S 4930 45 [ 7 AARR o
term.
For lifestyle services, they are rendered in a short period of MEMFEFRBME - ZFRBE IR
time, which is generally less than a year, and the Group has RE(—RIR—F) RRHE r&%
elected the practical expedient not to disclose the remaining BEEEEAITHE 2 - URBEE
performance obligations for these types of contracts. BRZERAAHNFIREOERT -
2024 EHWE RECHABTELRBEERGERAAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

(e) Contract costs (€)
Assets recognised from incremental costs to obtain contracts
During the year, the Group has recognised assets from

incremental costs to obtain long-term city operations services
contracts, as set out below:

BRI
AERA NN EERARRNEE

R AEEEBESREMERT
RIEEHHIZERNEREENT

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBT T
Assets recognised from incremental costs BEBRE M8 E K AR
to obtain a contract HWEE 13,342 13,984
Amortisation recognised as cost of providing & 72 72 H2 4 AR 745 B AR Y 8 6
services 11,584 7,811

The incremental costs capitalised as assets mainly refers to
the commission fees or consulting fees paid for obtaining the
contracts. The assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the terms of the specific contracts the costs relate to, consistent
with the pattern of recognition of the associated revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Profit before income tax expense is arrived at after charging the

E MR

R2024%F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

8. BMESTENER

BRATS B A A AMBER MG TS HERE
e

following: :
2024 2023
2024% 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTFTT
(Restated)
(Fg&E5)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 77) WL AERE (Wit17) 13,725 13,284
Auditors’ remuneration 1% B BT 37
— Audit services — iR 1,850 1,800
Bank charges R1TEBH 2,942 2,952
Cleaning costs BRE R 180,418 179,976
Community activity expense tLEEEF S 8,918 5,426
Cost of inventories recognized as expenses RAERYNFERA 51,697 55,381
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ - BiE N R E T E (H17716)

(Note 16) 18,616 20,805
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 18) EREEENE (Hit18) 16,175 14,028
Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) BB RF X (#it9) 735,230 740,990
Greening and gardening costs gL REZEER 22,315 19,897
Maintenance costs HiEBH 79,360 98,550
Office expenses WAEEH 17,486 12,562
Other expenses EFEY 54,597 51,258
Other taxes HEbFiIA 6,050 5,767
Professional expenses HEEH 30,435 30,912
Promotion expenses HEMY 3,112 6,930
Provision for impairment on inventories GFERERE (Hi723)

(Note 23) 2,077 1,333
Security costs ZIRE A 198,297 175,366
Short-term lease expenses (Note 18) RAEER S (#i218) 6,415 7,818
Travel and entertainment expenses EZIRMBEERH 14,521 14,066
Utilities NES 62,446 63,584

1,526,682 1,622,685

2024 F [E %
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

9. BERAIBX

2024 2023

20244 2023

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT

(Restated)

(F&&E5)

Wages and salaries TEEE® 606,449 602,006

Bonuses TEAL - =
Pensions, housing funds, medical insurances ~ &X% - FEAES - BEERR

and other social insurances (a) RE Mt gREE) 87,988 88,059

Other employee benefits (b) HihiEBERHb 40,793 48,316

735,230 740,990

Employees in the Company and the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
are required to participate in a defined contribution retirement
scheme and housing funds, medical insurances and other
social insurance plans administrated and operated by the local
municipal government. The Company and the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries contribute funds which are calculated on certain
percentage of the average employee salary as agreed by local
municipal government to the scheme to fund the retirement
benefits, housing funds, medical insurances and other social
insurances of the employees.

Other employee benefits mainly include meal, traveling,
transportation allowances and other allowances.

DOWELL SERVICE GROUP CO. LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group include Mr. Zhang Aiming and Mr. Fan Dong, directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in
Note 37 for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023,
respectively. Details of the remunerations of the remaining
highest paid non-director individuals during the year are set out
as below:

E MR

R2024%F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

hE&E=HFMAL

AEERHEeSEENARATEES
EREFHILARBRLE (KIS S
B [z BR A BT 5237 AT £ 71| B &, 222024
F K2023F12A31H IEFE R 4T
) AFEE - FRIEZHREFH
ATHEFBEFEES AT -

2024 2023

20244 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBFIT

Wages, salaries ITE %% 2,702 4,042

Bonuses TE4L - =
Pensions, housing funds, medical insurances HZ4 - FEAES - BE

and other social insurances R R H A &R 383 332

3,085 4,374

The emoluments of the highest paid non-director individuals fell
within the following band:

FEEZERFTHA LM BN IA
TEE :

2024 2023
20244 20234
Emolument bands B & &8
HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 500,001t &
1,000,000/ 7T 2 =
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,0018 T E
1,500,000/ 7T 1 2
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ L&
2,000,000/ 7T - 1
3 3

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, none of
the five highest paid individuals waived or has agreed to waive
any emoluments, and none of the five highest paid individuals
received emoluments from the Group as inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

2024 F [E %

H £20244F %2023412A318 I
B AdERaFMATHEREXE
AIENETMNME - TEEAREBERK
BEMBE - {EAIMAREB KN
AR B IR - SVERRERRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

10. OTHER INCOME 10. HEfUg A
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
(Restated)
(re&E7)
Government subsidies BT aL 8,247 9,613
Government subsidies represented mainly rewards from local BT 8 B = 23T M B & HBUT UL
government without attached conditions. HR ) 228 -
11. OTHER (LOSS)/GAINS, NET 1. Hth (BB) W= F5E
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFIT
(Restated)
(igeE7)
Net (losses)/gain from disposal of property, HEME - BEKREN (BiB),/
plant and equipment W e 58 (166) 51
Net losses from disposal of right-of-use assets & F FEE EHEEFEE (19) (13)
Net exchange gains/(losses) [ 5 st (Bs518) #58 60 231)
Others Hh (24 541
(149) 348
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. FINANCE COSTS, NET

13.

E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

12. BE A

2024 2023
20244 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBET T
(Restated)
(r==E:75))
Finance income: BEEUA
— Bank interest income —RITF BUA 888 814
Finance cost: BhE R -
— Interest expenses on borrowings —ERBFEFEZ (197) 351)
— Interest expenses on factoring —RIEBLZHRHEMAX
arrangements (83) (161)
— Interest expenses on lease liabilities - HEAGENMNERX
(Note 18) (#tet18) (6,531) (6,715)
(6,761) (7,227)
Finance costs, net BB PR A F B (5,873) 6,413)

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

13. FRfE8 (B R), X

The amount of income tax (credit)/expense in the consolidated REEEEREMEEKERFHMER (K
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income %),/ FHAXEEE:
represents:
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREET T
(Restated)
(ie&E5)
Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax BNEATR I8 — BB E 1S
(the “PRC EIT”) ((HhBEEMRBH])
— For the year —AREE 10,205 6,710
— (Oven)/under-provision in prior year — AR FE (B B
= (4,509) 1,068
5,696 7,778
Deferred income tax (Note 37) RIEFTSEL (H12231)
— Credited for the year —RARFEREEA (9,558) (4,133)
Income tax (credit)/expense FTiSf (%), FHx (3,862) 3,645
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR

R2024F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

The taxation on the Group’s (loss)/profit before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of PRC,
the principal place of the Group’s operations, as follows:

NEBBRETE R AT (B18), /7| ik +
(REEFELLHE) 2 RERFE 2 ER
HEEZENOT -

2024 2023
20244 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
(Restated)
(r=E:7))
(Loss)/profit before income tax expense BrET{S TR S A1 (B518),/FE (65,503) 7,079
Less: Share of results of investments accounted &, : D IR EZIAABR 2R E %
for using the equity method, net of tax 48 HBRTIA (8,026) (7,506)
(73,529) (427)
Tax charge at effective rate applicable to profits 1% & FA (b 3 AT S FR K ) B B
in the corporate income tax REFEMFIEAY (18,382) (107)
Tax effects of: AT B IR BORE
— Effect of preferential tax rate of certain —E oM B ARRERT XM
subsidiaries ga (4,554) (3,846)
— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes — A AENBNREX 3,320 1,160
— Income not deductible for tax purposes — AT (189) =
— Write-down of deferred tax assets — IR I8 & EE I SH 9,055 =
— Tax effect of temporary differences not —REREREENTBTE
recognised 11,397 5,370
— (Over)/under-provision in prior years — A FE (BRERE) B
T2 (4,509) 1,068
Income tax (credit)/expense FTS® (%) B (3,862) 3,645

Income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations in the
PRC has been calculated at the applicable tax rate on the estimated
assessable profits for the year, based on the existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

The general corporate income tax rate in the PRC is 25%. Certain
subsidiaries of the Group located in western cities in the PRC are
subject to a preferential income tax rate of 15%. Certain subsidiaries
of the Group are small and micro enterprises, and are subject to a
preferential tax rate of 20% or 10%, with a deemed preferential profit
rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@)

Basic

The basic (loss)/earmings per share is calculated by dividing the
(loss)/profit attributable to shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used to
calculate the basic (loss)/earnings per share amounts for the
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 was based on
66,990,867 ordinary shares of the Company issued throughout
the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

14. B8R (&8) BF

@

BEx

BREX (BR), BMRFEANRLDF
W R e (B1R), MR A A
EFHBEHE

A 5T B 20244 202312 A
HILFEERERN () BFE
HRETEBRNEESETEREAR
A A & 220244 202312 A31H
IEFE 25 B 817 #966,990,867/% &
AR o

2024 2023
20245 20234
(Restated)
(F&&E5)
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity owners of  ANRA BI#EZSHER AE(G (B
the Company (RMB’000) B),/ FIBAREFT) (66,882) 2,529
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 397 & i A% &9 14 F 3T L
in issue (in thousands) (F8) 66,991 66,991
Basic (loss)/earnings per share for profit FRNRARE=ER AEG
attributable to equity owners of the MENTREN (BB) /&
Company during the year (expressed in FUAGRARETERTR)
RMB per share) (0.998) 0.038
Diluted b) #8

Diluted (loss)/earmings per share amount is the same as basic
(loss)/earnings per share amount as there were no potential
dilutive ordinary shares outstanding for the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2028.

2024 F [E %

A B 20244 K% 2023F 12 A431H
IEFEWED FITETE ST AR
HEREE (B8), /AR EBERER
(&518) BF®OSEMER -
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E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

15. DIVIDENDS 15. R &
2024 2023
20244 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥ETTT
Dividend recognised as distribution during FRABR B RS -
the year:
Final dividend paid, RMB0.030 for 2023 ERTARERE - R2023F TR A
(2022: RMBO.14) per share R ¥0.0307T (2022FF : AR
0.147%) 2,010 9,379
Interim dividend paid, RMB0.036 (2023: Nil) BERFHRE - SR AKRE0.036
per share 7T (20234 : 4#) 2,411 =
4,421 9,379

The final dividend of RMB0.030 in respect of the year ended
31 December 2024 (2023: RMB0.03) per share, amounting to
approximately RMB2,010,000 (2023: RMB2,010,000) has been
recommended by the Board and will be subject to the approval of
the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, there was no dividend payable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

16. 1% - WE RRE

Electronic  Furniture and Leasehold
Buildings  equipment fixtures Vehicles improvements Total
BT ETRf GEREE B AEEE @t
RMBOOO  RMB000  RMBO000  RMBOO0O  RMBO00  RMBIOOO
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR AR®TR ARETR
Cost KA
At 1 January 2023 (Restated) 202351 A1 (B E51) 643 35,229 8,667 6,134 48992 99,665
Additions (Restated) NE (BE5) = 4,369 1,269 2,788 8,937 17,363
Disposals/written-off (Restated) HE /i (B E5) = (2,194) (133) (268) = (2,595)
At 31 December 2023 (Restated) 20235124318 (F&3]) 643 37,404 9,803 8,654 57,929 114,433
Addtions #E = 1,708 1,808 135 6,336 9,987
Disposals/written-off HE /s - (2,265) (173) (744) = (3182
At 31 December 2024 20245124318 643 36,847 11,438 8,045 64,265 121,238
Depreciation and impairment FERAE
At 1 January 2023 (Restated) 202351 A18 (B E5) 143 22,068 3,711 907 8,902 35,731
Provided for the year (Restated) FREE(EES) 21 4,794 1561 1,151 13278 20,805
Bliminated on disposaliwritten-off (Restated) %,/ 585 £144 (1 &£51)) - (1,654) (123) (140) = (1917)
At 31 December 2023 (Restated) 20238127318 (B E5) 164 25,208 5,149 1918 22,180 54619
Provided for the year FREE 20 433 1,632 1,265 11,363 18,616
Eliminated on disposaliwritten-off HE /1585 148 = (1983 (49) (314) = (2,346)
At 31 December 2024 20245128318 184 27 561 6,732 2,869 33543 70,889
Camying values REE
At 31 December 2024 20245126318 459 9,286 4,706 5,176 30,722 50,349
At 31 December 2023 (Restated) 120235128318 (BE5) 479 12,196 4654 6,736 35,749 50,814
2024FEHE RECABRTELREEERAERAT
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E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

Depreciation expenses were charged to the following categories in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income (Note 8):

FEEARGEBEaREME2EKERN
TERRIRMER (M EE8)

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2024 2023
20244 20234F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
(Restated)
(#==E:7))
Cost of sales HER AR 17,739 17,127
Administrative expenses THAX 830 2,782
Selling and marketing expenses SHE R IHRFRSZ 47 896
18,616 20,805

No property, plant and equipment were restricted or pledged for the
Group’s borrowings as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE
Customer
Software relationships Goodwill Total
BH EFER& (kS st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR%®TRT ARETT AR%TR
(Note a) (Note b)
(FftFa) (Fft o)

Cost 5N

At 1 January 2023 (Restated) #2023@1 A18 (8 E351) 13,124 97,105 212,068 302,297
Additions (Restated) & (&E7) 6,090 - - 6,090
At 31 December 2023 (Restated) 73(\\2023¢1 2A318 (i8E7) 19,214 97,105 212,068 328,387
Additions INE 3,284 — - 3,284
At 31 December 2024 2024128318 22,498 97,105 212,068 331,671
Depreciation and impairment HERAEE

At 1 January 2023 (Restated) #2023F1 A18 (KE5) 3,489 13,525 - 17,014
Provided for the year (Restated) FRREE(KE) 2,177 11,107 = 13,284
At 31 December 2023 (Restated) 20235128318 (K E51) 5,666 24,632 - 30,298
Provided for the year FREE 2,617 11,108 = 13,725
At 31 December 2024 20245128318 8,283 35,740 - 44,023
Carrying values REE

At 31 December 2024 120245128318 14,215 61,365 212,068 287,648
At 31 December 2023 (Restated) 20235124318 (K E51) 13,548 72,473 212,068 298,089
Amortisation expenses of the intangible assets of RMB13,725,000 B 20244 N2023F12AG1H L FE - &
and RMB13,284,000 were charged to “Administration expenses” FWEAE#IEER AR13,7250007T & A
and “Cost of sales” in the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 R #13,284,0007T 7 RN 4r & 18 2 I H Al
respectively in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other EEREROTTRASZ ] RHEXA]F
comprehensive income (Note 8). ek (i EE8) ©
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E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

(a) Customer relationships @ EFFBER
2024 2023
20244 20234F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBTIT
(Restated)
(FzE:75))

Hubei Zhonghe Century Property LR Rt EEERBR

Management Co., Ltd. (‘Hubei Zhonghe”) A& ([#dtH R ]) 596 731
Chongaing Shengdu Property Management  BEE XA MEEIEAR

Co., Ltd. (“Chongqing Shengdu”) nal((EERH]) 1 1
GSN Property Service Co., Ltd. (“GSN”) HHAYEERREER

NCIQR: 2: (TN 12,350 15,438
Guangxi Dongyuan Shengkang Logistics [ 78 3R IR 2% B 1% BB 1R AR 7S

Management Service Co., Ltd. ERAA((ERRE]

(“Guangxi Shengkang”) 6,500 8,126
Mianyang Ruisheng w5t 5,626 6,402
Hunan Jindian il 12,495 14,766
Zhejiang Zhongdu ST A &R 22,950 26,010
Shanghai Evergreen EEEET 847 999

61,365 72,473

DOWELL SERVICE GROUP CO. LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024



(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Impairment tests for goodwill arising from

business

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, goodwill were allocated to

the following CGUs for impairment testing:

E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

b) =BAEEHENRE

il

20244 20235124318 » i&EE
DEETNNRSELBEMETHE

Al
2024 2023
2024% 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTFIT
(Restated)
(re571))
Chongaing Shengdu BERE 1,031 1,031
GSN BEHTA 62,273 62,273
Guangxi Shengkang J& P B R 13,425 13,425
Mianyang Ruisheng by 6,472 6,472
Hunan Jindian S B 41,041 41,041
Zhejiang Zhongdu T AR 64,665 64,665
Shanghai Evergreen EEEE 17,787 17,787
Chongaing Bashu BERE 5,374 5,374
212,068 212,068

The management performed an impairment assessment on the
goodwill. The recoverable amount of the property management
business and related value-added businesses operated by the
CGUs were assessed by the management and determined
based on VIU calculation, using management’s cash flow

projections for a five-year period.

EEEHEEET TRERNG - Re
ELXEMNEENMEEEXE LM
RIBEXRBNAKRESEEERE
EBHHEEREEREEFE  ERAE
EENDFHRRESRERAETE -

2024 e RECARHTELREEERDBERAF
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mE R R M EE

R2024F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

Management has determined the values assigned to each of
the above key assumptions as follows:

Compound annual
growth rate of
revenue
projection period

Gross margin
(% of revenue)

Long-term
growth rate

Pre-tax
discount rate

Average annual growth rate over the
five-year during the forecast period;
based on past performance and
management’s expectations of market
development.

Based on past performance and
management’s expectations for the
future.

This is the weighted average growth
rate used to extrapolate cash flows
beyond the budget period. The rates
are consistent with forecasts included
in industry reports.

Reflect specific risks relating to the
relevant entities.

The following table sets forth each key assumption adopted
by the management in its cash flow projections to undertake

ERERBATEEORT LR
TEERAIE

FAHRK AFERHEN TS
sNEE  FERXR RES
FiREER (ERANEEEY

ISR RATAY -
ERM= RIEBERRLER
(e B ARRATAL
B
REEER HIIARNEEEES
SNR & 7 & B DA
FigigRE - HH
e REITRBEFT
IR -

BAEFTRE RRBEERNSE
Rk

TR E Y E R ER20245F12A31H
ETHEREIAKENRERE

impairment testing of goodwill as at 31 December 2024: FTANSEEE/RE -
Chongaing Guangxi  Mianyang Hunan  Zhejang ~ Shanghai  Chongging
31 December 2024 20245128318 Shengdu GSN  Shengkang  Ruisheng Jindian ~ Zhongdu  Evergreen Bashu
EREY KEn  EEER SRR HEEE  RIME  LEEE EECE
Compound annual growth rate of - BB RENEA S
revenue during the projection~~ SERE
period 4,00% 8.46% 8.00% 500% 10.20% 1.00% 9.37% 11.57%
Grossmargin (o of revenue)  EFIE (FH&E D) 4.84% 15.39% 12.30% 10.70% 16.86% 1049%  252%  2886%
Long-tem growth rate REERE 202% 202% 200% 202% 200% 202% 200% 202%
Pre-tax discount rate RATR® 1482%  18%5%  1496%  3B8%  1595%  1295%  1216%  1343%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As at 31 December 2024, the recoverable amount of
RMB1,400,000, RMB77,900,000, RMB61,400,000,
RMB50,100,000, RMB75,800,000, RMB101,800,000,
RMB66,442,000 and RMB36,714,000 of Chongqging Shengdu,
GSN, Guangxi Shengkang, Mianyang Ruisheng, Hunan Jindian,
Zhejiang Zhongdu, Shanghai Evergreen and Chongging
Bashu based on VIU calculation exceeded their carrying
value of RMB1,047,000, RMB76,466,000, RMB22,724,000,
RMB12,927,000, RMB58,171,000, RMB89,292,000,
RMB52,188,000 and RMB14,430,000 by RMB353,000,
RMB1,434,000, RMB38,676,000, RMB37,173,000,
RMB17,629,000, RMB12,508,000, RMB14,254,000 and
RMB22,284,000 respectively.

Management has undertaken sensitivity analysis on the
impairment test of goodwill. The following table sets forth all
possible changes to the key assumptions of the impairment
test and the changes taken in isolation in the VIU calculations
that would remove the remaining headroom as at 31 December
2024:

R RRME

R2024%F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

R2024% 128318 - REBEFHEE
AECEERES BEHAEAR
ST R Ba R REa el B DA
#H LB EFHEREEREMNHATK
o] & % & A R #1,400,00070 * AR
#77,900,0007T + A K #61,400,000
7T~ AR #50,100,0007T « A R #
75,800,0007T * A & #101,800,000
7T - AR #66,442,0007C & A R #
36,714,0007T - EEMEAARE
1,047,0007T ~ A K #76,466,000
I~ AR #22,724,0007C - AR ¥
12,927,0007T * A & #58,171,000
7T~ AR #89,292,0007T + AR ¥
52,188,0007T & A R 14,430,000
o Atk E BB EEREE
K #5 9 Bl A A R¥353,0007T © A
R #1,434,0007T + A K #38,676,000
JT - AR #37,173,0007T - AR ¥
17,629,0007T + A R #12,508,000
JT - AR #14,254,0007T & A R #
22,284,0007T °

EIREC BB R E R S T e
EPHT - FNREIIMN2024512431H
WEBIFEENEZBEAFTE A s
HREBAFERAEENE (kA8
) W&

Chongging Guangxi  Mianyang Hunan  Zhejang  Shanghai  Chongging

31 December 2024 20245128318 Shengdu GSN  Shengkang  Ruisheng Jindian ~ Zhongdu  Evergreen Bashu

LR KEn  EEER SRR MEEE  FIME  LEEE EECE

Annual revenue growth rate ERERE -113% -007% -405%  -17.83% -275% -1.38% B73%  -17.04%

Grossmargin (o of revenue) — EFIE (FH&B D) S506%  -1531%  837%  -181%  -1460%  O11%  2100%  -1808%

Pre-tax discount rate RATRE 9% H021%  2171%  450430%  4324%  +183%  +83%  +21.15%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR

R2024F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

The following table sets forth each key assumption adopted
by the management in its cash flow projections to undertake

TR EH Y EE B R2023F12A318
ETHEREIAKEEIRERE

impairment testing of goodwill as at 31 December 2023: FrABEEEEM/E -
Chongging Guangxi  Mianyang Hunan  Zhejang  Shanghai  Chongging
31 December 2023 2023F12831H Shengdu GSN  Shengkang  Ruisheng Jindian  Zhongdu  Evergreen Bashu
L BEn  RAEE SRR HEeR  WIME LERE ERCS
Compound annual growth rate of - BEIERAERIEAF
revenue duing the projecton SR X
period 10.00% 15.00% 16.00% 9.29% 1.00% 11.10% 8.98%
Grossmargin (o of revenue) ~ EFIE (FH&EAM) 16.00% 1200%  2060% 16.58% 1400%  2838%  2031%
Long-term growth rate RiERE 2.02% 2.02% 2.00% 2.00% 2.20% 202% 2.02%
Pre-tax discount rate RATRE 20.15% 7% 3008%  1300%  1434%  1167%  1407%

As at 31 December 2023, the recoverable amount of
RMB1,800,000, RMB105,500,000, RMB68,300,000,
RMB41,000,000, RMB79,300,000, RMB123,600,000,
RMB99,110,000 and RMB23,870,000 of Chongqging Shengdu,
GSN, Guangxi Shengkang, Mianyang Ruisheng, Hunan Jindian,
Zhejiang Zhongdu, Shanghai Evergreen and Chongging
Bashu based on VIU calculation exceeded their carrying
value of RMB1,072,000, RMB80,845,000, RMB24,283,000,
RMB13,369,000, RMB62,158,000, RMB91,339,000,
RMB51,855,000 and RMB15,225,000 by RMB728,000,
RMB24,655,000, RMB44,017,000, RMB27,631,000,
RMB17,142,000, RMB32,261,000, RMB47,255,000 and

RMB8,645,000 respectively.
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R2023F12A318 - REBEFRHEE
e EERE BEHAEAR
SR B Bl Rk S DAL
#H LS EFHEREEREMNHATR
[ & % A A R 1,800,000 * AR
#£105,500,0007T * A R #68,300,000
7T+ AR #41,000,0007C « A R ¥
79,300,0007T * A & 123,600,000
7T - AR #99,110,0007T & A R #&
23,870,000 ERHEEAARE
1,072,0007T * A K #80,845,000
JC + AR #24,283,0007C « A R ¥
13,369,0007T * A & #62,158,000
JC + AR #091,339,0007C «+ A R ¥
51,855,0007T & A & #15,225,000
70 BTSRRI EEEEN
o n Rl A ARE728,0007T - AR
#24,655,0007T * A K #44,017,000
7T~ AR #27,631,0007T + AR ¥
17,142,0007T + A R #32,261,000
7T+ AR #47,255,0007T & A R ¥
8,645,0007T °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management has undertaken sensitivity analysis on the
impairment test of goodwill. The following table sets forth all
possible changes to the key assumptions of the impairment
test and the changes taken in isolation in the VIU calculations
that would remove the remaining headroom as at 31 December
2023:

E MR

R2024%F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

EIEEC B BRE ST
EAHT o TRHFHIN2023F12A431H
BER A EZEREA A A e
BREBNEREENE (BhEH
) M EE)

Chongging Guangsi  Mianyang Hunan  Zhejang ~ Shanghai  Chongging
31 December 2023 2023F12831H Shengdu GSN  Shengkang  Ruisheng Jindian  Zhongdu  Evergreen Bashu
EEE EEA  BERE  SRREA HEed  WIME  LEEE EEDE
Annual revenue growth rate FhEERE 100%  046%  -133%  601%  068%  -104%  -1248%  -957%
Gossmagn (% of revenvg)— ERIE(FREEAR) 380%  -182%  473%  -1588%  235%  404%  -335%  -2840%
Pre-tax discount rate RaRE 550 +446%  42098%  +1238%  +335%  +537%  +258%  +686%

Based on the headroom of the impairment assessments of
goodwill as at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the directors of
the Company believed that any reasonably possible change in
any of the key assumptions would not result in an impairment
provision of goodwiill.

2024 F [E %

1R 15 20244 202345128318 %
AEREELFETE  ARAE
EHREHRBRENTMAEREE
TS EHmBRERE -

RECARTELRBEEARGERAIT
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E MR

72024512 A31H As at 31 December 2024

18. LEASES

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated

statement of financial position

The consolidated statement of financial position shows the

following amounts relating to leases:

18. #HE
mg%%%%ﬁ%ﬁ%

REMBARKRBRIATRAEES

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFIT
(Restated)
(re&E7)

Right-of-use assets EREEE
Office buildings Ei /N 74,023 76,749
Equipment and others S N A 348 148
74,371 76,897

Lease liabilities HEAE

Current D 11,815 16,760
Non-current IERED 79,192 74,566
91,007 91,326
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement‘s
e B R M EE

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated b RESEZEREMERE
statement of profit or loss and other KimRBERANESHE
comprehensive income
The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other FeBnkHEM2EKE KBTI
comprehensive income show the following amounts relating to THEEEENESHE
leases:

2024 2023
20244 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTIT
(Restated)
(rzE:75))
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FRABEEENEER (#iZs8)
assets (Note 8)
Office buildings BN 15,906 13,828
Equipment and others S A A 269 200
16,175 14,028
Interest expense (Note 12) FMERXZ (Fat12) 6,531 6,715
Expense relating to short-term leases B EREMNFX
(included in cost of sales and (G ASHER AR RITHAX)
administrative expenses) (Note 8) (K77£8) 6,415 7,818
Amounts recognised in the consolidated € MEERSRERER
statement of cash flows W&
The total cash outflow for principal element of lease payments H E20244F K2023%F12A31H IE £
in the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 was B HEMNFAILHHBES R LR
RMB15,052,000 and RMB13,012,000, respectively. o R A AR 15,052,000t R AR

#43,012,0007T ©

2024 e RECARHTELREEERDBERAF
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E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

19. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 19. IBEREARNIKRE

EQUITY METHOD
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTTT
Beginning of the year F1 20,705 19,774
Deregistration of a joint venture FHE—HEeEhE (450) =
Share of post-tax profits of joint ventures and ~ FE(E & & 1> 2 R B & A 71 HY
associates Fi1& FHE 8,026 7,506
Dividends distribution 85K (1,239) (6,575)
Refund of capital contribution REEE (2,400) -
End of the year FAR 24,642 20,705
The joint ventures and associates as listed below have share capital T3 RHE &5 R E QAR E
consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the BELER BRAEBRERES -
Group.
Nature of investment in joint ventures and associates as at 31 G & (b 2 I A B 20244 K 2023512
December 2024 and 2023: A31HRZREME :
Place of business/country
Name of Entity Note  ofincorporation % of ownership interest ~~ Nature of the relationship ~ Measurement method
EREE Wi EERY/HRALER RERREL BENNE HRAE
2024 2023
N4F 2A003F
Chengau Jiulian Property Management Co., Ltd. a Sichuan/PRC 51% 51%  Joint Venture Equity
(‘Chengdu Jiulian”)
RANBE R ERRHERAR ([ KEAH]) )l /e BELE R
Chengdu Longxing Dowell Property Services Co., b Sichuan/PRC 51% 51% Joint Venture Equity
Ltd. {‘Chengdu Longxing’)
RBRRERNERBARLA ((RHHER]) il %8 BERF B
Chongaing Xuyuan Tiancheng Property Management ® Chongaing/PRC 49% 49%  Joint Venture Equity
Co., Ltd. (Xuyuan Tiancheng’)
ERRRRENFERARAR (BRXE]) B/ BELE BRE
Kunming Gaoxin Dongyuan Smart City Senvice Co., d Yunnan/PRC 48% 48%  Associate Equity
Ltd. (‘Kunming Dongyuan’)
ERRARRE RN REERAA ([ BARE)) 2f/ME Bana B
Shandong Dongyuan Smart Gty Senice Co., Ltd. e Shandong/PRC - 51%  Joint Venture Equity
(‘Shandong Dongyuan’)
WREREZHHREER A (LRER]) R /HE BELE Rt
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Note a:  Chengdu Jiulian was established by the Company’s subsidiary,
Chongging Xindongyuan, and an external third party, Chengdu
Haike Property Management Co., Ltd. in October 2021.

Note b:  Chengdu Longxing was established by the Company’s subsidiary,
Chongging Xindongyuan, and an external third party, Chengdu
Mengjiang Investment Group Co., Ltd. in March 2022.

Note c:  Xuyuan Tiancheng was established by the Company and
an independent third party, Shanghai Yongsheng Property
Management Co., Ltd. in March 2016.

Note d:  Kunming Dongyuan was established by the Company’s
subsidiary, Chongging Xindongyuan, and an external third party,
Kunming Gaoxin Industrial Development Co., Ltd. in December
2021.

Note e:  Shandong Dongyuan was established by the Company’s
subsidiary, Chongging Xindongyuan, and external third parties,
Weihai Qidun Security Service Co., Ltd. and Changjiang Xietong
Innovation Technology Research Institution in November 2021. It
was formerly deregistered in September 2024.

All joint ventures and associates are mainly engaged in providing city
operations services.

There are no commitment or contingent liabilities relating to the
Group’s interests in its joint ventures and associates as at 31
December 2024 and 2023.

Summarised financial information for material joint
ventures and associates

Set out below are the summarised financial information of joint
ventures and associates as at 31 December 2024 and 2023, which
are accounted for using the equity method.

E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

fitta : MEBNLBAARRAFAMBRREENER
RENBE=TRBENEEERSE
PR A A R2021F10 A KL °

Biso - EREEm A AR NE AR EEHE
FENBE= SRS TREAEES
FR A RIR2022F3 A A 37 ©

Mizkc: MRABHAARKBIE=HLE
XAWEER B R A A K20165F3A
FRAL e

fiztd - ERREARARAMBRREENER
RESNBE=TTEASHMEZXEREA
PR A A R2021F12 A KL °

Mide: LRRREBAARMBAREENR
FREINE=FBETEERETRY
AR R A REIHREAFEHRAER
(M) B R A RIR2021F11 AL ©
HR2024F9 A IEFESH -

ERELEMBENRH T ERERH
YT ARF -

R20244F 2023512 A31H » i A&
EREAEDEREE QAR A BE A&
EskARBE -

ABEASECERBEAD
A BENBE
TXERINRBEREARN S & 1% K

2N B R20244F 12023912 A31 8 B B 75
BEREE -

2024 e RECARHTELREEERDBERAF
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E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

(a)

Y

Summarised financial information of material @ EREEQATAREEDR
associates and joint ventures: EZHBERBE :
Xuyuan Tiancheng 0 JBRXE
2024 2023
202445 20234F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%¥TR ARMBFTT
Current assets MENVE B 89,869 83,208
Non-current assets EMEEE 2,008 1,927
Current liability mBaE (60,602) (63,732)
Net assets BEFE 31,275 21,403
Net assets at beginning of the year FINEEFE 21,403 22,189
Profit for the year FRFE 9,872 10,349
Dividend distribution f% 27K - (11,135)
Net assets at end of the year FRNWEEFE 31,275 21,403
Group’s share in (%) A& B 5 15(%) 49% 49%
Group’s share in (@amount) REBSE(£F) 15,325 10,487
Carrying amount REE 15,325 10,487
Revenue g 64,865 62,914
Post-tax profit for the year FRHEFHE 9,872 10,349
Other comprehensive income for the year R H 2 kS 9,872 10,349
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(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(i) Chengadu Jiulian

E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

(i) BEES

2024 2023

20244 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AREETFTT

Current assets RENEE 28,782 18,990
Non-current assets IERBEE 3,218 2,699

Current liability mBaE (19,649) (11,748)
Net assets BEFE 12,351 9,941
Net assets at beginning of the year FONEETFE 9,941 9,437
Profit for the year FERFE 4,837 2,698

Dividend distribution B 5K (2,427) (2,194)
Net assets at end of the year FRNEETFE 12,351 9,941
Group’s share in (%) REB D 1H(%) 51% 51%
Group’s share in (@mount) rEBH L (£5) 6,298 5,070
Carrying amount REE 6,298 5,070
Revenue g 22,856 20,852
Post-tax profit for the year FAFIEFE 4,837 2,698
Other comprehensive income for the year FARAEMEEIE 4,837 2,698

Summarised financial information for b ERIFEEAREEQTR
individually immaterial associates and joint BELEMKEERE
=

ventures

In addition to the interests in assets and joint ventures disclosed
above, the Group also has interests in several individually
immaterial associates and joint ventures that are accounted for

BREXBEEARLELERMNERNE
BN - KB IR T 8B I E A
ERBAIRAELETHERAES

using the equity method. ENRE RS ©
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBFIT
Aggregate carrying amount of individually AR A B RS ER R AVE B I
immaterial associates and joint ventures in FERANBEARREGED
the consolidated financial statements EMAAREE 3,019 5,148
Aggregate financial information of the Group’s ZAANEEE B & R FI K& &%
associates and joint ventures A& TS E R
— Net assets —BEFE 5,924 5,363
— Revenue — = 28,539 28,258
— Post-tax profit for the year —FAKREEFE 1,564 2,126
— Total comprehensive income —2HE AR 1,564 2,126
2024 EWE RECHHTELREEBRBERLA
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E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

20. SUBSIDIARIES 20. Y A 7]

7R £ B JA20244F K2023F 12 A3TH T &
MWBAREHST :

The Group’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2024 and 2023
are set out below:

Country/Place and Paid up/  Proportion of issued share capital/
date of incorporation or Registered  Registered capital held by the
Entity name* establishment capital Company Principal activities Place of Operation
e LR A L ARARKERIRE/
BREw 8%/ 4%RA% MR /ERER &L IEXH Y
RMB'000 2024 2028
ARETT 024% 3%
% %
Directly held by the Company:
HANRERRE
Chongaing Dongwei Construction Engineering PRC/Chongaing, 1/7/2019 500/10,000 100 100 Construction engineering ~ Chongaing, PRC
Gonsuting Co., Ltd. consuing services
ERREREIRANARLA hE/EE 17712019 BETRINRE hEER
Chongaing Dongyuan Chengzhen E-Commerce PRC/Chongaing, 6/9/2022 /1,000 100 100 E-commerce senices Chongaing, PRC
Co,, Ltd.
EERRREETARARAA hE /B 6/02022 BT ERRE GEET
Chongaing Qicheng Information Technology PRC/Chongaing, 11/3/2020 3,000/5,000 100 100 Information technology Chongaing, PRC
Co, Ltd senvices
ERRRESNEARAA hE/EE - 11/3/2020 fE BRI GEET
Chongaing Xindongyuan Property Management PRC/Chongaing, 24/9/2003  100,000/100,000 100 100 Property management Chongaing, PRC
Co,, Ltd. senices
ERNERNEERERAT tE /B 2419/2008 NEERRY hHEE
Chongaing Zhonghang Shijia Real Estate PRC/Chongaing, 12/3/2019 /5,000 100 100 Real estate marketing Chongaing, PRC
Brokerage Co. Ltd. services
ERPAt ZRMERLER AR RE/EE - 12/3/2019 FhEEHRS HEER
Shanghai Yuanjl Cutiure Development Co., Ltd. PRC/Shanghai, 26/9/2017 1,000110,010 100 100 Cutture development Shanghai, PRC
senices
HERE XN ERERAR 8/ L 26/9/2017 XL ER RS hELE
Shanghai Chengfang Property Senices Co., Ltd. PRC/Shanghai, 18/5/2015 3,000/3,000 100 100 Property management Shanghai, PRC
services
HEETDERERRAA RE/ H§ 13502015 NxERRH L
Shanghai Evergreen Social Care Enterprise PRC/Shanghai 28/4/2020  60,000/60,000 9 91 Communty Senvice Shanghai, PRC
Development Co., Ltd.
LEEEHRRCRERERAT R/ L 28412020 HERE hE L
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR

R2024%F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

Country/Place and Paid up/  Proportion of issued share capital/
date of incorporation or Registered  Registered capital held by the
Entity name* establishment capital Company Principal activities Place of Operation
B MET AL ALARBERARE/
ERaE B%/HYRAH MR /ifEs ERERLH IBEH XY
RMB'000 2024 2023
NS N24F A03F
% %
Indirectly held by the Company:
HALIEEES
Chengdu Evergreen Xinhong Eldery Care Sevice  PRC/Sichuan, 8/8/2019 -/30,000 91 91 Gommunily senvices Sichuan, PRC
Co., Ltd
RBREEEZRERRAT hE/ )l 8/8/2019 HERE )|
Chongaing Evergreen Kaler Eldery Apartment PRC/Chongaing 30/1/2008  12,759/20,000 91 91 Communtty services Chongaing, PRC
Group Co. Ltd (formerly known as Chongoing
Kaler Elderly Apartment Management Co, Ltd)
ERR AL LBEEERAA B/ ER - 301/2008 Bk TEHER
(FIRERIBZFARERERAR)
Chongaing Weiyuan Yuedong Enterprise PRC/Chongaing 5/8/2024 /1,000 100 - Enterprise management Chongaing, PRC
Management Consutting Co., Ltd senvices
ERfI AR F ERAARAR hE/ B 5/82024 PEERRE hEEE
Chongaing Mengajan Culture Development PRC/Chongaing 11/8/2021 /1,000 100 100 Culture development Chongaing, PRC
Co, Ltd. senices
ERBAIERERAA RE/EE - 11/8/2021 R R TEHER
GSN (Shangha) Enterprise Management Services  PRG/Shangha, 27/5/1996 7,120/50,000 100 100 Property management Shanghai, PRC
Co, Ltd. senvices
BHM (LB A EERRBARAA 8/ L 21/5/19% NEERRY hELE
Guangxi Dowel Shengkang Logistics Menagement  PRC/Guangx, 13/5/2009 2,000/2,000 51 51 Hospital management Guangyi, PRG
Senice Co., Ltd. senices
ERRRERGDERREERAR /T 13/5/2009 BhERRE hEER
Guangx Xiangwei Hospital Management PRC/Guangxi, 29/7/2017 855/3,000 51 51 Hospital management Guangx, PRC
Co, Lid. senvices
BERERRERERAA R/ 29712017 ERERRH hERER
Hunan Jindian Property Management Co., Ltd. PRC/Hunan, 27/3/2002 10,000/10,000 80 80 Properly management Hunan, PRC
senvices
e ANFERERAR BB/ 27/32002 NEERR REHE
Kunming Yuanji Community Sewvice Co., Lid. PRC/Yunnan, 18/12/2019 1,00011,000 100 100 Communtty senvices Yunnan, PRC
ERREHBREARAA RE /2 18122019 HERHE HEZH
2024 EhE RECHBTELRBEEERGERLA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

Country/Place and Paid up/  Proportion of issued share capital/
date of incorporation or Registered  Registered capital held by the
Entity name* establishment capital Company Principal activities Place of Operation
AR AL ARAFKERIRA/
ERaE CEVELYVEEL: HR/ERmER ERERLH EE 3ty
RMB'000 2024 2023
NS N24F A03F
% %
Indirectly held by the Company - continued:
BANEEERE-&:
Shanghai Xuanhai Technology Co., Lid. PRC/Shanghai, 23/12/2019  6,106/10,000 100 100 Information technology Shanghai, PRC
(‘Shanghai Xuanhai') services
LEEEREBRAR( LERE)) B/ Hi 281202019 EERRRE hE LS
Sichuan Xindongyuan Property Senvice Co., Lid. PRC/Sichuan, 12/5/2010 13,000/13,000 100 100 Property management Sichuan, PRC
services
BIFRENEREERAA R E/TI - 12152010 NEERRS mEm/l
Zhejiang Zhongalu Property Management PRC/Zhejang, 6/9/2000 5,000/50,000 100 100 Property management Zhejiang, PRC
Co, Ltd. senices
WIhBNEERARAA E/HT - 6/9/2000 nxERRS REHIL
Zhejang Dowell Renzhi Urban Operation PRC/Zhejang, 71012022 3,450/10,000 65 65 Property management Zhejiang, PRC
Senvice Co,, Ltd. services
HIRRC TR REERAR /T 7/10/2022 NEERR il il
* The English names of certain subsidiaries referred to above represent * bt T KB A A A AR A E R B
the best effort made by management of the Company to directly XEH EENEBAARNAEEER
translate the Chinese names as they have not registered any official BEARZNEEBEREATE -

English names.

Note: MEsE -

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion FRANEAARTEERAYAEELEXNEE
of the directors of the Company, principally affect the results or assets of BEEZEFENARRIZHBAR - EERAF
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the FIEMHBARMERESERBRITE -

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

All the principal subsidiaries mentioned in above are registered as limited LA LErai e EZ B R A JIREPBAET
liability companies under the law of PRC. MAEEREEAR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

1. BERESHNERMT A

2024 2023
20244 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBET T
(Restated)
(F&&E5)
Financial assets tRMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost N SER AT EN S REE
— Trade, bills and other receivables (Note 22) —E S RWGIAE - EREER
H b FE MR IE (H7722) 642,374 688,596
— Dividends receivables — U B 7,900 9,900
— Cash and cash equivalents (Note 25) -Re KB EEY (Kites) 261,696 256,597
911,970 955,093
Financial liabilities eRas
Financial liabilities at amortised cost N ERAGTENSREE
— Trade payables (Note 29) —B PN RIE (K17#29) 317,902 300,132
— Accruals and other payables (excluding —EFT B R R E M EN FRIE
non-financial liabilities) (Note 29) (TBEESREE)
(Ht5£29) 303,474 293,864
— Borrowings (Note 30) — &R (H1a230) - 9,262
~ Lease liabilities (Note 18) —MHEaE#Z18) 91,007 91,326
712,383 694,584
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Note 39) BAFEFABENESRHEE
(#t5239) 1,200 2,000
713,583 696,584

2024 F [E %

RECARTELRBEEARGERAIT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

22. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2 BSEWNIE  BIRE
1 & H b FE UL T8

2024 2023
20244 20234
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BT ARET T AREEF T
(Restated)
(re=751)
Trade and bills receivables ESEWREREKEE
Trade receivables due from related FE UL EA S 7 02 5 e UK R IR 36(d)
parties 248,983 305,529
Trade receivables due from third parties JEU S =75 #9825 e W 718 464,653 374,749
Bills receivables due from third parties U EE = 757 R fE UK Z= 1% 186
713,822 680,278
Less: Provision for impairment of trade & : & 5 JE UK IE & JIE Uk 39(b)
and bills receivables FRRERE (118,820) (43,477)
595,002 636,801
Other receivables Hib e FRE
Other receivables due from related JE Ui B G 77 e LA R UK R IR 36(d)
parties 2,878 18,147
Other receivables due from third parties &4k 55 = J7 &9 H 4th jig U 5k 18
— Payments on behalf of property —REERMFK
owners 1,093 4,459
— Deposits —%% 26,893 22,260
- Advances to employees —[M{E B EH B8R 8,450 6,341
— Others —HAtb 12,084 7,009
51,398 53,216
Less: Provision for impairment of other & : - & Uk 3% 78 e {8 4 45 39(b)
receivables (4,026) (1,421)
47,372 51,795
642,374 688,596

The Group’s trade, bills and other receivables at respective balance
sheet dates were denominated in RMB.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

0] The aging analysis of trade and bills receivables, based on the
invoice date as of the end of the reporting period is as follows:

R RRME

R2024%F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

) HEREHR EREREHNES
FEUGRIE & R R IR RO RRER AN T

2024 2023
20244 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBFIT

(Restated)

(ie&E7)

Less than 1 year 1EAR 555,961 419,737
110 2 years 1524 87,255 202,985
2 to 3 years 2E3F 52,636 41,354
Over 3 years 3ELE 17,970 16,202
713,822 680,278

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk was the carrying value of each class of trade, bills and other
receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral
or repossessed properties as security.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk was the carrying value of each class of trade, bills and other
receivables mentioned above less than RMB59,090,000 of trade
receivables secured by certain of commercial properties pledged
by a related party. In respect of the secured trade receivables with
the carrying amount of RMB59,090,000, the fair value of collateral
of such trade receivables could be objectively ascertained to cover
the outstanding amount of balances based on market value of
collateral. Management requested additional collateral as appropriate
and monitors the market value of collateral during its review of
the adequacy of the impairment allowance. The amount and type
of collateral required depend on an assessment of the credit risk
of the customer or counterparty. Estimates of the fair value of
collateral were based on the market value for the corresponding
assets at the time of pledged. It was the Group’s policy to dispose
of repossessed properties. The proceeds were used to reduce or
repay the outstanding balances. In general, the Group does not retain
repossessed properties for business purposes. As at 31 December
2023, the Group did not hold any repossessed properties. The Group
was entitled to sell or repledge collateral when there was default by
the customers. There had not been any significant changes in the
quality of collateral held for trade and bills receivables. The main type
of collateral obtained was the commercial properties located in the
PRC. The impairment provision had taken into account the credit
quality of the underlying assets, the financial strength of the borrowers
as well as collateral and other credit enhancements.

2024F12A31H - AEBEAZZERR
WERAREA NS EESRWGIE B
WEEREMEWRFENEDE - X&EH
WA AR RSB IEBER -

M2028F12A310 - AL B HEBEMN R AE
BREkA NS EESHEKGRIE  BRE
B REMEUGRIENREEERE LB
EROETRHEDEEERNE S EKK
18 A R #59,090,0007T ° SEEEE A AR
59,090,0007C K B I HE 5 R IEM F -
ZEE S RUGREERRN AT ETRE
ERmOTETERET  NBEERERE
Ho-TERENRIBERERS ZHE
CRIBEREIMNEIRR - WEIE KR
ME- IHRERNSERERRURR S
BEPIEFHEERBRAGTME - HIERR
A EOGEF HIRIEEEEENE TR
MEFE AEENERELEEREY
¥ - FISERARRL S EEREELS -
—MmME  AEEWERBD LY EE
B A% - N2023F12A31H  AEE I
EREEMNEKREYME - ERFELNN
AEEBERLEXFERKFR -HEH
U FEREREEFENEFRNRE
WEECMWERNEE - TMENEZEAR
BRAABMNTENEENE - REREE
ZEHBEENGEEESR BRANYH
BEHURERRREMEERAEE -

2024FEHE RECARTELRBEBROGBRIA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the fair values of short-term trade
and other receivables approximated their carrying amounts due to

20244 2023512 A31H - A E| EAEA[R
B8R NPESREMERFENAFE

their short-term maturities. B L7 REERES -
A
23. INVENTORIES 23. 78
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBET T
(Restated)
(r=E:75))
Parking spaces FEAL 39,743 39,940
Consumables SHFEMS 6,777 9,988
46,520 49,928
Less: Provision for impairment of parking B S EEALRE B
spaces (8,724) (6,647)
37,796 43,281
xh
24. PREPAYMENTS 24, FE{FRIE
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBET T
(Restated)
(r=E:75))
Prepayments to related parties B S R RIE
— Prepaid utility expenses — BN AREXER 65 261
— Prepaid for acquisition of an entity (Note 40) ~ —UREE — M E EE M TEN ZB
(Ht5t40) 5,950 -
Prepayments to third parties BE=FHEMNRE
— Prepaid other taxes — AN AT 22,414 9,061
— Prepaid utility expenses — BN AREXER 7,016 6,222
— Prepaid other operating expenses —TATEMEER T 14,599 21,011
50,044 36,555
Less: Non-current portion of prepayments B B RIERIERBE (9,729) (4,324)
40,315 32,231
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement‘s
e B R M EE

M2024F12 318 As at 31 December 2024

I~
25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25 RERBREEEY
2024 2023
20244 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREET T
(Restated)
(F&&E5)
Cash at banks RITFER 264,017 256,318
Cash on hand EfFHe 484 631
Less: Restricted cash B ZBREIRE (2,805) 352)
261,696 256,597
Cash and cash equivalents of the Group were denominated in RMB REEMBEeRASFEVIHINUARER
and HK$. EHEETHE -
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group’s maximum exposure R20244F 202312 A31H * A& B M &
to credit risk was the carrying value of cash at banks mentioned KNEER MO A LM RITEROREE -
above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

26. HOLDING COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

26. IR 1 B B # AR R AR

2024 2023
20244 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M5 AR®T T ARBFIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI RE LR 148 84
Right-of-use assets FREEE 7,336 9,360
Intangible assets B EE 169 287
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTREE 4,547 8,886
Investments accounted for using the IR EZAABRNRE
equity method 15,325 11,023
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR E 20 85,083 57,903
112,608 87,543
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 9 29
Trade and other receivables B 5 R HAbFEW IR 63,823 306,472
Amounts due from subsidiaries el NGRS 537,404 197,237
Dividends receivables JE W A% B 84,000 97,000
Prepayments SN 950 288
Current income tax receivable FEU BN ERFR 1SR 52 =
Restricted cash ZRHIRE - 2
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEEY 8,060 11,492
694,298 612,520
Current liabilities REBEE
Borrowings (EEA - 262
Trade payables B S FIA 3,914 5,089
Accruals and other payables JEETE A R HE A E R 6,345 7,657
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFTIS R & & - 199
Lease liabilities HEBE 2,085 2,359
Amounts due to subsidiaries BB B AR FIE 465,594 347,025
477,938 362,591
Net current assets REBEETRE 216,360 249,929
Total assets less current liabilities EEHEBRARBERS 328,968 337,472
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 5,372 6,944
Deferred income tax liabilities FIESHEE - 2,340
5,372 9,284
Net assets BEEFE 323,596 328,188
Capital and reserves ERR#EE
Share capital iz 27 66,991 66,991
Reserves e 28 133,858 133,858
Retained earnings R & F 122,747 127,339
Total equity A 323,596 328,188
Zhang Aiming Fan Dong
REH BR
Director Director
o EE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

27. SHARE CAPITAL AND PAID-IN CAPITAL 27. BARAREHER
At 31 December 2024 At 31 December 2023
7A2024512831H 202312 A31H
Number Amount Number Amount
2B S5 A k|
‘000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB’000
TR AR%®Tx T ARETFT
Shares &
H shares of RMB1 each FRARBATHHR 66,991 66,991 66,991 66,991
Movements in the issued share capital during the year were as follows: FANEEITRAZEEOT :
Number Amount
2 K-
‘000 RMB’000

TR ARETT

As at 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023 and 72202391 A1H * 2023F &
2024 202412 A31H 66,991 66,991
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E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

28. RESERVES 28. fE1E
Share-
based
Merger  Statutory payment Capital Share Other
The Group vy reserve (@) reserve (b) reserve reserve premium reserve Total
SRR B ER
AifBQ ETREOD) NAREE  EARE  ROBE  HoRE b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARETT AR®TR ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2023 (restated) 20231 A1R
(s E51) 12,817 51,488 2,578 3,271 107,852 - 278,006
Other transactions with BIRE RN
non-controling interests R % 89 - - - - - 89
Change in ownership interests REREREDMm
without change of control g g (8.59) = = = = = (8.59)
Transfer from retained eamingsto ~ HRBAFERZE
statutory reserve EERE = 10512 = = = = 10512
Acquisifon fom non-controling ~ WeEE— B A A
interests for a subsidlary R ER = = = = = 64 64
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-FHRBAR - ") = = = = ")
At 31 December 2023(restated) and  72023%51231A
1 January 2024 (BE) ko024
1A1R 104,310 61,993 25718 3,271 107,852 64 280,068
Business combination under HEESTEBAH
common control(Note 32(a)) (Fi3¥32@) (28,000) - - - - - (28,000)
Transfer from retained eamingsto ~ BRAAFERZE
statutory reserve AT i - 3,102 - - - - 3,102
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAA - (115) - - - - (115)
At 31 December 2024 004128318 310 64890 2578 32 107852 64 254965
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR

R2024%F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

Share-
based
Statutory payment Capital Share
The Company b O reserve (b) reserve reserve premium Total
NRBRER
EERED HERRE EXfiE BB EE b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETR ARETR ARET:R
As 1 January 2023 R2023F151A 16,494 2,185 2,834 107,852 129,365
Transfer from retained eamings 1o statutory RRARFERZETRE
reserve 4,493 = = = 4,493
At 31 December 2023 #2023%F12A31A 20,987 2,185 2,834 107,852 133,858
Transfer from retained eamings 1o statutory BRERFER T LT RE
reserve - - - - -

At 31 December 2024 R2024512A31A 20,987 2,185 2,834 107,852 133,858

a) The merger reserve represents the difference between paid-in a) AU REEEEHE RN KRES T3
capital contributed and the purchase consideration paid for business BEHZIANMBEEREZEANESE -
combinations under common control.

b) In accordance with relevant rules and regulations in the PRC, the b) WIEFBEEAERER  PREEE
PRC Group entities are required to transfer 10% of their profit after BAKEBRBERPEGHRTERERFE
taxation calculated under PRC accounting rules and regulations to ZBENEMOI0%REBELTHES
the statutory reserve fund, until the accumulated total of the fund BEEZLEREBES R LEEINHIME
reaches 50% of their registered capital. The statutory reserve fund REB50% AL c EERESETLHER
can only be used, upon approval by the relevant authority, to offset HAREZEZAREEATFEAENE
losses carried forward from previous years or to increase capital of BRAREMEREEEENER -
the respective Group entities.

2024 EHWE RECHABTELRBEERGERAAF
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E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

29. TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER 29. EZEFE - BEHE

PAYABLES ARk H A RIE
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
(Restated)
(F2E:75))
Trade payables EZENRIE
Trade payables due to related parties FEEEE 5 B 5 N RUR
(Note 36(d)) (K1:236(c)) 14,612 8,510
Trade payables due to third parties BRE=FBZENRIE
— Payables for labour costs —JER S TR 239,453 213,126
— Payables for construction costs —FEfHER SRR AR 38,500 25,739
— Payables for consumables — B FR 25,337 52,757
317,902 300,132
Accruals and other payables FESHE AR H R RKR
Accruals and other payables due to related FET AR T R EET B A R E e
parties (Note 36(c) RFFRIE (H17236(c))
- Others —H At 16,574 23,771
Accruals and other payables due to third parties JEN S = HfEHE B KR H A JE
~NFRIA
— Outstanding cash consideration payable for ~ — Rt #7554 G BIAR 218
business combinations eRE - 5
— Employee benefit payables — BT R BEF 75,816 83,712
— Deposits —%& 67,198 57,360
— Temporary receipts from property owners — KRB EEHERFIA 21,880 27,391
— Other taxes payables —H M ENBIE 26,027 29,859
— Dividend payable to the non-controlling — T — P B A R e AR A
interest of a subsidiary =HIRLE 7,598 6,139
— Cash collected on behalf of property —REEFWEARE
owners 74,258 51,595
— Accrued operating expenses — BRI ERY 12,217 11,880
- Others —HAftb 1,906 2,152
303,474 293,864
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the ageing analysis of the trade
payables of the Group based on invoice date is as follows:

E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

R20244F 2023512 A31H » KEE B 5
FEM FUBEEEZ A MR DT T

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
(Restated)
(&=E=71))
Less than 1 year 1FELAR 258,151 240,592
1to 2 years 1524 34,666 37,721
2to 3 years 25 3F 15,694 17,347
Over 3 years 3FLE 9,391 4,472
317,902 300,132
I+t =&,

BORROWINGS 30. &K
2024 2023
20244 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M5 ARET T AREFIT
Bank loan, secured IRITER - B @) = 5,262
Other loans, unsecured HaER - EEIF (o) - 4,000
- 9,262
Effective interest rate per annum BERFER = N/AFREA 3.35%105.5%

Note: B 5E

(a) The bank loan was secured by the corporate guarantee of the
Company and denominated in RMB.

(b) The other loans were unsecured and denominated in RMB.

(@ RITERURRFNDAEREER  LAA

R¥WHE -

(o) EHMERSEEMREAAREE -

2024 e RECARHTELREEERDBERAF
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E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

At the end of the reporting period, total current borrowings were R|EBRR - TEEENRBERERD
scheduled to be repaid as follows: N
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
On demand or within one year BERe—FAN - 9,262
3 /8 > ==
31. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND N EEMBHEERAE
LIABILITIES
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and liabilities is as follows: BIEFTSHEERBBENSTOT
2024 2023
202445 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETTT
(Restated)
(&=z:751))
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTSHERE 32,743 22,571
Net-off with deferred tax liabilities MBRIEEFSHAaE (8,752 (2,075)
23,991 20,496
Deferred income tax liabilities RLEFSTHAE (19,918) (19,075)
Net-off with deferred tax assets HBREEMEHEE 8,752 2,075
(11,166) (17,000)
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e B R M EE

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

The net movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities is as BEAMSHEERBENFEEOT
follows:
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
(Restated)
(&=E=71))
At the beginning of the year F1 3,496 637)
Credited to the consolidated statements STAGE B EMEERER
of profit or loss and other comprehensive (B17£13)
income (Note 13) 9,558 4133
Disposal of subsidiaries HEH B AR (229) =
At the end of the year FR 12,825 3,496
Deferred income tax assets EERBHEE
Share-based Impairment
payments Tax losses losses Leases Total
UG AER
LR HEESR HEEE HE @it

RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBI000
ARETL  ARBTT ARBTL ARETR  ARETR

At 1 January 2023 (restated) R202351A18 (I8 E51) 6,488 1916 8,528 34 16,966
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated statement (IR B)/3 A& ABER

of profit or loss and other comprehensive A2ENER

income - (657) 2,318 3,844 5,605
At 31 December 2023 (restated) 120235128310 (& 5‘]) 6,488 1,359 10,846 33878 22,571
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated statement (IR E)/Ff AR B

of profit or loss and other comprehensive A2ENER

income (6,489 (1,299 14,8684 3317 10,401
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - - (229) - (229)
At 31 December 2024 1202412 A31H - 67 25,481 7,195 32,743
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

Deferred income tax liabilities

ELEFFEHER

Accelerated Intangible

tax depreciation assets Leases Total

MERERE BREE HE Eh

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTR ARETT ARBTT

At 1 January 2023 (restated) 202351 A1 (E51) (2,068) (15,535) = (17,603)
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated statement (1B E),/ 3t ASRA B R

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income £t 2 EME X 320 2,109 (3901) (1479)

At 31 December 2023 (restated) 20235128318 (BE75) (1,748) (13,426) (3901) (19,075)
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated statement ~ (FIBR )/t A%RA B R

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income £t 2 EME X 280 2,261 (3384) (843)

At 31 Decerber 2024 o004 12831A (1,469) (11,165) (7,285) (19918)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through
future taxable profits is probable.

The unused tax losses of the Group’s companies for which no
deferred tax asset has been recognised have the following expiry

BIEFTIS T A BTN R AT 82 3R B R R E AR A
a IR AR IAN S AR IR
1BHER -

AERBECHRAEENAEEE TRFR
PRARERENERBWT

dates:

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBFT
(Restated)
(gE7))

Year of expiry [Epe )
2024 20244 - 349
2025 20254 1,937 1,072
2026 2026%F 8,535 11,077
2027 20274 13,163 15,092
2028 2028%F 30,382 32,540
2029 20294 42,759 -
96,776 60,130
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E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

32. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS UNDER COMMON 32. HEEHI THERS G

CONTROL
(a) Transaction for the year ended 31 December @ EZE2024F12H31H IEF
2024 ENR S

On 21 June 2024 the Group acquired 90.73% of the equity
interests of Shanghai Evergreen from Shanghai Dixuan, which
is a subsidiary of Dima Holdings, at a purchase consideration of
RMB28,000,000.

The acquisition is considered as a business combination
involving entities under common control and has been
accounted for by using merger accounting method. As a
result, the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2023 and the consolidated statements of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2023 have been restated to
include the results of the acquired entity during that period.

The adoption of merger accounting for the year ended 31
December 2023 has resulted in a decrease in the Group’s total
comprehensive income and profit attributable to the owners
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023 by
RMB18,488,000 and RMB16,438,000 respectively.

2024 F [E %

R2024F6A21H  AEBERBMEE
ENMBAR LBBRWE LSS
FH0.73%MHE - MERERAR
#28,000,0007T °

IR BE WA B R RIS E 5
MEBAH YEHERBAHEHEA
BE o itk - 72023F12 A31B 4R &
B 75k L R B £2023F 12 A31H
LEFENFREBREREMEE K
K REESEPDRRGARERE
RELEY] LA IEE BN Z
AR SEAE -

HE2023F12A831B ILFEEHAA
P et B BN &£ B H £2023F12 A
JIELEFERNZEREEBER AR
AEAAEEFBES RS ARE
18,488,0007T &2 A R #16,438,0007T °

RECARTELRBEEARGERAIT
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The effect of merger accounting restatement described
above on the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2023

by line items is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR E

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

it & R E ) EE £2023F 12
A31B I FEMNGEEREREZEK
HRBSEENTZENT :

Merger

31 December accounting 31 December

2023 adjustment 2023

2023F12A318  AGIERER  2023F12A831H

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARBTT

(Restated)

(&%)

Revenue gy 1,483,834 44,423 1,628,257

Cost of sales HEKK (1,272,057) (43,322) (1,315,379)

Gross prof EF) 211,777 1,101 212,878

Seling and marketing expenses HEREHEAT (37,026) (1,295) (38,321)

Administrative expenses THRZ (154,771) (14,214) (168,985)

Net impairment losses on financial assets SREERESBETER (9,248 (299) (9,547)

Other income Hh A 7,461 2,152 9,613

Other (losses)/gains, net Hiv (B18) /W FE (927) 1,275 348

Operating profit/(loss) BEFE/(B1R) 17,266 (11,280) 5,986

Finance income RMERA 789 25 814

Finance costs HEKA (840) (6,387) (7,227)

Finance income/(costs) - net BEBWA/(KK) 58 (51) (6,362) 6,413

Share of reslts of investments accounted for - A IRIER A AR E£E

using the equity method 7,506 - 7,506

Profit/{loss) before income tax expense BB AT,/ (&) 24,721 (17,642) 7,079

Income tax expense FEHAY (2,799) (846) (3,645)

Profit/(loss) for the year FRHE/(B1B) 21,922 (18,488) 3,434
Profit/{loss) and total comprehensive income ~ JA T A L IEIEERFIE,/ (E1E)

for the year attrioutable to: LEEKHBE -

Owner of the Company ARAEAA 18,967 (16,438) 2,529

Non-controlling interests P 2,955 2,050) 905

21,922 (18,488) 3,434

Earnings per share - Basic and diluted (RMB) &R 2 FI|l— B A L #58 (AR T) 0.283 0.038
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The effect of merger accounting restatement described above

E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

L& e E Y $2023F 12 A31

on the consolidation of statement of financial position as at 31 HH MBRARSEHENTE
December 2023 by line items is as follows: NN
As at Merger As at
31 December accounting 31 December
2023 adjustment 2023
20235127318 AHfEHARE  M2023%F12A31A
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETTL ARETTL AREFT
(Restated)
)
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER T E 30,993 28,821 50,814
Intangible assets BREE 273498 24,591 298,089
Right-of-use assets FAEEE 15,471 61426 76,807
Deferred income tax assets ERFEREE 19,560 936 20,496
Long-term prepayments REENTE 4,324 - 4,304
Contract costs BHKA 13,984 - 13,984
Investments accounted for using the equty method  #RIEZ A ABRRIIRE 20,705 = 20,705
378,535 115,774 494309
Current assets REBEE
Contract assets AHBE 1,439 = 1,439
Dividend receivables fElkRR 8 9,900 - 9,900
Trade, bills and other receivables BHRMGR  BHEER
et e v 674,529 14,067 688,596
Inventories FE 43046 235 43,281
Prepayments R 30,590 1,641 32,231
Current income tax receivables WA 1,372 363 1,735
Restricted cash FRERE 362 - 352
Cash and cash equivalents BehReSEY 255,368 1,229 256,597
1016,596 1753 1,034,131
Current liabiliies REBAR
Trade payables ESEEATA 292,664 7,468 300,132
Borowings Bk 9,262 - 9,262
Accruals and other payables JEST B REMENTIR 280,575 13,289 293,864
Contract liabilties BHaRE 280,579 15,078 295,657
Lease liabilties HEARE 5,967 10,793 16,760
Financial fiabilties at fair value through profitorloss ~ JAAFE ABHE S BA & 1,000 = 1,000
Deferred revenue A - 824 824
Current income tax liabilties MEFEHAR 4514 182 4,646
874,561 47,584 922,145
Net current assets RBEEFR 142,035 (80,049 111,986
Total assets less current liabilties BEERRBEE 520,570 85,725 606,295

2024 F [E %
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR E

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

F

As at Merger Asat
31 December accounting 31 December
2023 adjustment 2023
P2023F12A31A  APFE R H20235F12H31R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETFT
(Restated)
(mE5))
Non-current liabilities FREBEME
Lease liabilities HEaE 9,495 65,071 74,566
Financial liabilities at fair value BAFEFTABER
through profit or loss SEAaE 1,000 = 1,000
Deferred revenue BE M - 6,863 6,863
Deferred income tax liabilities BEREFEHAE 16,636 364 17,000
27,131 72,298 99,429
Net assets BEEFE 493,439 13,427 506,866
Capital and reserves EARR#FE
Share capital %N 66,991 - 66,991
Reserves G 229,085 50,983 280,068
Retained earnings RE B 176,206 (40,724) 135,482
Equity attributable to owners of the AN BB AFE(LHERS
Company 472,282 10,259 482,541
Non-controlling interests FEFE R = 21,157 3,168 24,325
Total equity XA 493,439 13427 506,366

Transaction for the year ended 31 December

2023

On 31 January 2023, the Group acquired 99% of the equity
interests of Shanghai Xuanhai from Shenzhen Dirui Smart
Technology Co., Ltd., which is a subsidiary of Dima Holdings, at

a purchase consideration of RMB1.

The acquisition is considered as a business combination
involving entities under common control and has been
accounted for by using merger accounting method. The
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022 included in Annual Report 2023 had been

restated to include the results of the acquired entity.
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ENXRS

R2023F1A31H  REBRBEE

XM B RRIRYE

EREREA

RAa Wi EEEREREARA R
HI00% M HE - BEREAARKT

WHEEEEK AL R LRIZEH EE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Guangxi Shengkang, a 51% (2023: 51%) owned subsidiary of the
Company, Mianyang Ruisheng, a 50% owned subsidiary (2023: 50%)
of the Company, Hunan Jindian, a 80% owned subsidiary of the
Company and Shanghai Evergreen, a 90.73% owned subsidiary of
the Company has material non-controlling interest (“NCI”). The NCI
of all other subsidiaries that are not 100% owned by the Group are
considered not to be material.

Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI of Guangxi
Shengkang, Mianyang Ruisheng and Hunan Jindian, Shanghai
Evergreen before intra-group eliminations, is presented below:

E MR

R2024%F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

33. FFiERHERE

AN B A51% (20234F : 51% ) #E 2 H Bt
BN A BT RER - AR A B50%E i /Y
BB A &) (20234 : 50%) &5 - AR
AIEBSONESMIE AR HE S HEEA
NAHEAN.73%ERNMNBE AR LEES
HEBEARIEZERER ((FERER]) -
It JE i 7N 5= (B 78 5 100% 25 89 BT A = 4 Bt
BRRIRFEERERE R AL TEKX -

REBARARBEFER  ARERER -
MERT NP RR ESEFENIE
BEEHNHEERBEZ2500T

Guangxi Shengkang Mianyang Ruisheng Hunan Jindian Shanghai Evergreen
BEER BEEA HEes LE%%
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

2004 20235 20245
RMB0O0  RMBOO0O  RMB000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETR

203 0245 2003 20245 2023
RMBOOO ~ RMBIOO0  RMBOOO  RMBIO00  RMBOQO
ARETT  AR®Tn  ARETr AR%Tn  ARETR

Summarised statementof 2 EREXME
comprehensive income

Revenue ey 100,625 97,234 58,486 3,82 59,747 75,002 58,360 44,956
Proft for the year ERFE 983 1,110 6,164 3815 3,059 1417 (12319 (18517)
Other comprehensiveincome 2t 2 & - - - - - - - -
Totdl comprehensive income. - 2EWH 4% 93 1,10 6,164 3815 3,059 1417 (12319) (18517)
Proft alocated to NCI DRZEERERNNE 48 544 3,082 1,907 612 283 (1,142 {1,717
Dividend paic to NC| BfHERERRE 1,666 1470 2,500 704 - 750 - =
Summarised cashflows BERENE
Cash flows from/{used n) meEgmnE/ (R

operating acthities Bens 2622 3,079 (602) 8,857 2,586 (1,925) (1,386) [7,631)
Cash flows from/{used in) REEBAGE/(FR)

investing actities Reig - 1367 - (44 () (50) (180) (4807
Cash flows (used nyfrom RERY(HR)/5E

financing actties BinE (4272) {8430 2807 349) 2,157) 3704 732 10,020
Net cash inflows BERAFE (1,650) 12 2,205 7,965 423 1729 5,757 P418)

Summarised statementof ~ BEMREHE
financial position

Curent assets MEEE 75,050 94830 49,002 3197 53927 60,548 63,107 66,330
Non-current assets EEE S 5536 6,050 1,567 1,444 4950 6,067 133,269 136,140
Curent fabilties REEE (72,153) 01470 (39,339) (07476) (34,161) (47289 (92328) (102099
Non-current fabiltes EECNS (163) (350) (124) - - - (82,489) (66,650)
Net assets BEEE 8,270 9,060 11,106 9165 24,716 19,332 21,560 3727
Accumulated non-contioling B3R iER

interests 6,332 7516 7979 7397 6,387 5775 2027 3169

2024FEHE RECARTELRBEBROGBRIA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

34. CASH FLOW INFORMATION

4. BWEREERE

(a) Cash generated from operations @ RERBRE
2024 2023
20245 2023%
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
iR ARET T ARETTL
(Restated)
(mE5)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTVITIES ~ £&ZBFiEREHE
(Loss)/profit before income tax expense BRETEHEZ A (BB)/FE (65,505) 7,079
Adjustments for: HEER
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 0% BELRRENE 16 18,616 20,805
— Amortisation of intangible assets -BYEESH 17 13,725 13,284
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets -FREEENE 18 16,175 14,028
— Losses/[gains) on disposal of property, plant -LENE  BEREEL i
and equipment B/ (&) 166 (51)
- Losses on disposal of right-of-use assets -MERAREELEE 11 19 13
— Provision for impaimment of trade and bill -BARUFEREUER
receivables HEEE 75,343 9312
— Provision for impairment of other receivables —E iU E R 2,605 237
— Provision for impairment of inventories -FERERE 8 2,077 1,333
- Interest income —FEKA (888) (814)
- Interest expense on short-term borrowings —RHEFNFER 12 197 31
- Interest expense on factoring arangements ~RERHNFIERY 12 3 161
~ Interest expense on lease liabilties -HEAEMFETH 12 6,531 6,715
— Net exchange (gains)/losses -EX &)/ BRFE (60) 231
— Share of results of investment in joint ventures -AERErERBE AT 19
and associates L (8,026) (7,506)
Operating profit before changes in working EEESBBANSERNT:
capital: 61,008 65,178
Changes in working capital 2EAGEY
~ Increase in trade, bills and other receivables -BIRIGE  BURER
Eth B (81,726) (10,007)
- Increase in prepayments —~BRFEEm (7,539) (@112
- Decrease/{increase) in contract costs ~BBRARD,/(10) 642 (2,165)
- Decrease in contract assefs -RHEERYD 1,439 093
- Decrease/(increase) in inventories ~FERD/ (M) 3,408 (3.99)
- Increase in trade payables - BB ENTEEM 17,770 33,066
~ Increase/(decrease) in deferred revenue —EREEm/ () 1,852 (824)
~ Increase/(decrease) in accruals and other -RHEAREMENTE
payables i/ (RD) 8,151 (41,769)
- Increase in contract liabilties —&HaEEm 40,727 56,066
Cash generated from operations REmERE 95,732 92,431
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b)

financing activities

RMETHELEAG2H

N

Borrowings Lease liabilities
(Note 30) (Note 18)
EEN HEAE
(K1:230) (K77£18)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
As at 1 January 2024 (restated) 202451 A18 (& E5)) 9,262 91,326
Changes from cash flow: HEeneEdy) :
Repayment of a bank loan BE—HRITEXK (5,262) =
Repayment of other loans BEEEMER (4,000) =
Interest paid B E (197) (6,531)
Repayment of principal elements BEEXEIH S - (15,052)
(9,459) (21,583)
Other changes: H &g -
Commencement of leases HEMKBH - 14,733
Interest expenses (Note 12) MEBRZ (Ki7F12) 197 =
Interest incurred on lease payments MENREENNE (HiF12)
(Note 12) - 6,531
197 21,264
As at 31 December 2024 F2024F12 A31H - 91,007
As at 1 January 2023 (restated) P2023F1 A18 (&K E5) - 86,166
Changes from cash flow: B neEdg) :
Proceeds from a bank loan RITERAEFE 5,262 =
Proceeds from other loans H i ERATEHIE 4,000 =
Interest paid EfTHE (351) 6,715)
Repayment of principal elements EEXESH S - (13,012)
8,911 (19,727)
Other changes: H &g -
Early termination of leases RARIERE - (333)
Commencement of leases HEMKBH - 18,505
Interest expenses (Note 12) MEFZ (Bit12) 351 =
Interest incurred on lease payments MENREENNE (HiF12)
(Note 12) - 6,715
351 24,887
As at 31 December 2023 (restated) 72023F12A31H (&L E7)) 9,262 91,326

2024 F [E %
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

35. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The future aggregate minimum lease payments related to short term
leases or leases of low-valued assets under non-cancellable operating

b, REFHEKIE

REFAATHHEREHESHEEHHEER
EEEEEHENARINZREBEN

leases are as follows: REBTELT ¢
2024 2023
20244 20234F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Less than 1 year 1F AR 188 613
36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BB AR S
(@) Names and relationships with related parties @ EAEES B K EEEREE A
The following companies and individuals are related parties of IR E] R AE A B AN 5 B Y A B
the Group that had balances and/or transactions with the Group REBEBEHRK XX HHEHT o
for the year.
Name of related parties Notes Relationship with the Group

B BB Mzt BEAREBEHEE

Dima Group ii Ultimate holding company and its
subsidiaries

HEEE BRI B R ELBfT B A&

Chongaing Chengfang Home Decoration Engineering Co., Ltd.

BEEBARERNHIIZARLDA

Chengdu Dexin Dongyi Real Estate Co., Ltd.

R ERREXAR LA

Chengdu Wangpu Licheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

KEEHEKEEREFTR AR

Chongaing Dongbo Zhihe Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

EREREEAFEMEREERAA

Chongqging Dongyinyuan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

BEERRBREMEREARADA

Chongging Dongyu Jin Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

ERRGEEHEREERAR]

Chongqing Li Dong Integration Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd.

EEBMREFMEREER AR
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Subsidiary/subsidiary of the ult|mate
holding company
MIB R, SRR A BRI E A
Associate of Dima Holdings
MEEENEE AR
Associate of Dima Holdings
MEEENEE QT
Associate of Dima Holdings
MEEENEE QA
Associate of Dima Holdings
HEEEMNEZE QT
Associate of Dima Holdings
BEEXENEE QT

Associate of Dima Holdings



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R RRME

R2024%F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

Name of related parties

BB B8

Chongging Nanan District Bihe Yuan Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.

BEETHFEREENREHEREARAD

Chongqging Rongchuang Dongli Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd.

EERAIRBEHEREFR LA

Chongging Shengdong Junhe Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd.

BEERRBNEHERZEER AR

Chongaing Shengzi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

EEREAFHERBERRAR

Chongzhou Zhongye Ruixing Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

SN E I B ERE B R AR

Dongyuan Zhixin (Shanghai) Urban Renewal Construction
Co., Ltd.

REZEH (L8) B EMEREGRA

Hangzhou Nanguang Real Estate Co., Ltd.

MMEREEBERAG

Hangzhou Ruicheng Real Estate Co., Ltd.

MINBEKFEHEREBR AR

Hefei HIG Ausdin Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd.

BERIDETEEMRERA

Henan Rongtian Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

AERAEMEREZEGRAR

Mianyang Hongyuan Lingyue Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

BEERENEHEREERAF

Nanjing Junyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd.

AR REMERZEBRAR]

Shanghai Dizhi Enterprise Development Co., Ltd.

FEBBECEERAR AR

Shanghai Lizhi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

LEEREEREERAR

Sichuan Shuangma Mianyang New Materials Co., Ltd.

)| & FEEEFME AR AR

Suzhou Dongli Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

NN E I EREBRAR

Suzhou Ruisheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

HMNEAFEHERERFR AR

Chengdu Jiulian Dongyuan Urban Management Services
Co., Ltd.

BXER SUBSE SR R T B IR ARTS B IR A A

2024 F [E %

Relationship with the Group

BEZ 5 W B9 B 13

Associate of Dima Holdings

BEEXNEERT

Associate of Dima Holdings

MEEENEEANR
Associate of Dima Holdings

BEERNEEAR
Associate of Dima Holdings
BEERNEEAF
Associate of Dima Holdings
BEEENEE QA
Associate of Dima Holdings

MEEENEENT
Associate of Dima Holdings
BEEERNEE QR
Associate of Dima Holdings
BEEXNEE QT
Associate of Dima Holdings
MEEENEE QT
Associate of Dima Holdings
BEERNEEAF
Associate of Dima Holdings
BEEENEE QA
Associate of Dima Holdings
MEEXENEE QT
Associate of Dima Holdings
BEERNEEAF
Associate of Dima Holdings
BEEENBEAF
Associate of Dima Holdings
BEEXENEE QT
Associate of Dima Holdings
MEEENEE LA
Associate of Dima Holdings
BEEERNEE QR

Joint ventures of the Group

AEENGEDRE

RECARTEERBEBARDARLA
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E MR

R2024F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

Name of related parties

BT &R

Chengdu Longxing Dowell Property Services Co., Ltd.

PR EPBE BUR IR E BRI AR A F)

Xuyuan Tiancheng

BRXZ

Kunming Dongyuan

ERARIR

Chongging Baoxu Commercial Management Co., Ltd.

EFEEREERERAR

Chongging Dongjin Commercial Management Co., Ltd.

ERFRBAEERAERAA

Chongaging Dongyin Holding Group Co., Ltd.

EERREREEGRAA

Chongging Shengdong Chunjing Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.

EERREEEHEREERAA

Jiangdong Intelligent Manufacturing Technology Co., Ltd.

IBHEERIBREEAA

Jiangsu Jiangdong Group Import and Export Co., Ltd.

AE IS EEELABRAR

Jiangsu Jianghuai Power Co., Ltd.

TERDES W AR AR

Jiangsu Nonghua Wisdom Agricultural Technology Co., Ltd.

IHBRERERERMERMNABR AR
Wuhan Dima Lizhi Industrial Co., Ltd.
REHMEEAREERRAR

Note:

(i) These companies are ultimately controlled by Chongging

(i)

(il)

Dongyin Holding Group Co., Ltd. which is a substantial
shareholder of Dima Holdings.

The company was originally a subsidiary of Group and
became a subsidiary of the ultimate holding company on 28
June 2024.

These subsidiaries are registered as limited liability companies
under the law of PRC.
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Relationship with the Group
BEAEEHEEFR

Joint ventures of the Group
REBBNGERE

Joint ventures of the Group
REBEMEERE
Associate of the Group
RNEE M QA
Other related party

H th BB

Other related party

H th 8 B

Other related party

H A B EsE 75

Other related party

H th B B

Other related party
H {th AR 5
Other related party
H A B EsE 75
Other related party
H th BB

Other related party
H th A B

Other related party
H A B HsE 75

BYEE

(i) ZERAHAFEENTIERR

(ii)

(il

EERBEREBEARAARR
-

ZARBRVBAEENKBAR
R2024F6 8280 K A& & R IE K
NRINKB AR -

ZEM B ARE P BEUAE M
REREERA -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR

R2024%F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

(b) Significant transactions with related parties (b)

During the year, the Group had the following other significant

transactions with related parties.

BEREBAINEARS

AEE  ARBEEEBTETTIAT

HppEARS -

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
(Restated)
(F&&E75)
City operations services Y T AR %
— Dima Group —#E55 26,692 52,162
— Joint ventures and associates of Dima —HSEENEGELER
Holdings A=W/ 537 3,147
— Joint ventures and associates of the —REENEGEDRER
Group /NG 420 1,958
— Other related parties — i [ Bge 2,244 3,590
29,893 60,857
Lifestyle services X HERE
— Dima Group —HES 5,167 20,680
— Joint ventures and associates of Dima —HEEENEEDLER
Holdings /NG 1,617 1,260
— Joint ventures and associates of the —FEENEGEPER
Group /NG (30) 210
— Other related parties —H b R 75 10 15
6,764 22,165
FATH and other comprehensive services #5h « Bl - BEZHESRE
— Dima Group —HEEE 28,112 69,006
— Joint ventures and associates of Dima —HMEEENGEDLER
Holdings /NS 1,863 4,837
— Joint ventures and associates of the —AEENEEDLER
Group AN 12,752 1,624
— Other related parties —E b B 5 - 40
42,727 75,507

All of the transactions above were carried out in the normal
course of the Group’s business and on terms as agreed

between the transacting parties.

2024 F [E %

LHFFBERZEINAEBN —RE
BB R ILRAR 5 & 77 1 E 0 5K

R °

RECARTELRBEEARGERAIT
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E MR

MR2024F12 318 As at 31 December 2024

(c) Key management compensation 0 FEEBAEME

Key management compensation for the year, other than those REEMFEEREASME (M
relating to the emoluments of directors and supervisors being BPEENHEEEREFTMNEH

disclosed in Note 38, are set out below: B HTEHER SN # P a0
2024 2023
2024F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARBFT
Wages and salaries TERF® 844 1,200
Bonuses b - _

Social insurance expense and housing HtEREERAREEREF

benefits 144 140
988 1,340
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e B R M EE

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

(d) Balances with related parties — trade d EEHEEBEINESR-E3
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEF T
(Restated)
(re=51)
Trade and bills receivables (Note 22) B 5 W IE & R E R
(Hfst22)
— Dima Group —HEEE 228,283 284,428
— Joint ventures and associates of Dima — B EENGERENRE
Holdings /NG| 18,236 19,195
— Joint ventures of the Group —REENEEE 2,215 1,568
— Other related parties —E b B 5 249 338
248,983 305,529
Contract assets BHEE
— Dima Group —BEEE - 1,439
Other receivables (Note 22) H b e W sk IE (B 7t22)
— Dima Group —mEEE 2,526 12,376
— Joint ventures and associates of Dima —HEEENGEDERE
Holdings =WNG) 40 46
— Joint ventures of the Group —AEEMNEEDRE 266 725
— Other related parties — b [ g 46 =
2,878 13,147
Contract liabilities aHaE
— Dima Group —HEE 6,405 4,013
— Joint ventures and associates of Dima —BMEEENEGEDERE
Holdings /NG 175 176
— Joint ventures of the Group —AEENEEDRE 63 -
— Other related parties — b A B 161 -
6,804 4,189
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E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024
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2024 2023
20244 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
(Restated)
(#=E7)
Trade payables (Note 29) B 5 e 5RIA (f12229)
— Dima Group —HmEEE 11,400 8,510
— Joint ventures and associates of Dima —HMEEENGEDERE
Holdings =N 76 _
— Joint ventures of the Group —REERNGEDE 552 -
— Other related parties — E fth B 2,584 -
14,612 8,510
Other payables (Note 29) E S SRR (H2229)
— Dima Group —HBEEE 16,400 21,146
— Joint ventures and associates of Dima —mEEENEEDERE
Holdings NS 70 70
— Joint ventures of the Group —AEENEEDLE 100 2,541
— Other related parties —HE bR 5 4 14
16,574 23,771
Balances with related parties — non-trade e EEEEBEAHMGEER—HFES
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTIT
(Restated)
(g=E7))
Dividend receivables PR 2
~ Joint ventures of the Group —ASKERNGERR 7,900 9,900
Balances with related parties — non-trade ) EEEBAMEER—FES
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBEFIT
Prepayment AT B
— Dima Group —mEE 6,015 261




37. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUPERVISORS

(a)

Directors’ and Supervisors’ emoluments

The directors and supervisors received emoluments from the

Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 as follows:

E MR

M2024F12 318 As at 31 December 2024

@ EERESHH

7. BEREBHRIBAE
m

HE2024F12A31HILFE - BER

EERAEBWIMOZFMMOT

Pensions,
housing
funds,
medical
insurances
Employee  and other Other
restricted social  employee
Name of Directors EEES Note Fees  Salaries Bonus shares  insurances  benefits Total
LR
fEED
EE2 B2 BR
SRE  RRREM 2t
(i ik ié 4 kH  weRk  EEEA gt
RVB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RVMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000
ARETTE ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
Executive Directors: HIEE:
Mr. Fan Dong BEREE 284 1,560 - - o - 1,888
. Zheng AiMing FROLL 234 3600 - - 1 - 3978
Non-executiie Directors: FHIEE:
M. YiLin iives 24 - - - - - 24
s, Luo Shao Ying gt 234 - - - - = 234
Indoendnt Non-executiie BUHRTEE
Directors:
Ms. Cai Ying BEQT 234 - - - - - 234
Mr. Wang Susheng IHELE 234 - - - - - 234
M. Sung Defang AEZLE 234 - - - - - 234
Sypervisars: EZ:
M. Yang Guang Y it 0 = = = = = = =
Mr. Mao Dun IERA = = = = = = =
Ms. Ten Liang BRat - 210 - - 28 - 238
1638 5310 - - 266 -
2024 EWE RECHHTELREEBRBERLA
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E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

Annual director fee of each independent non-executive director BASBRBBHIMEMUR &
is HK$250,000 since the Group listed on HKEX. During the BUNTEETNEFEEFHEER
year ended 31 December 2024, the independent non-executive 250,000/ 7T ° # £2024F12 H31H
directors received emoluments from the Group are HK$750,000 IEFE  BYERTEEEARAERR
(equivalent to RMB702,000) (2023: HK$750,000 (equivalent to B2 B A750,0008 7T (FHE R AR
RMB681,000)). #702,0007T) (20234 : 750,000/ 7T
(EE R ARE81,0007T)) °
The directors and supervisors received emoluments from the B E2023F12A31BLEFE " EF R
Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 as follows: EEAASEREAEMAT
Pensions,
housing
funds,
medical
insurances
Employee  and other Other
restricted social  employee
Name of Directors 3024 Note Fees  Salaries Bonus shares insurances  benefits Total
2%
fEED
EE B2 EBR

2RH RRREAM
iE: fig #e fEAL Bf  HeRE HRtESER it
RVBOOD ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOD
ARRTRL ARMTL ARMTL ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR

Evecutive Directors: HTEE
Mr. Fan Dong BEREE 151 2,600 - - 4 49 2,341
Mr. Zhang AiMing REWLE 151 3840 - - 140 49 4180
Non-executiie Dictors: FifiEE
M. YiLin L L 151 - - - - - 151
Ms. Luo Shao Ying Bomat 151 - - - - = 151
Indoendnt Non-executiie BUFHGES:

Dirctors:
Ms. Cal Ying EENT 21 - - - - = 27
Mr. Wang Susheng TEHELE 27 - - - - = 07
M. Sung Deliang REREE 21 - - - - = 0
Suypervisars: £Z:
M. Wang Jun IHAEH i = = = = = = =
M. Yang Guang i 0 = = = = = = =
M. Mao Dun IERE - - - - - - -
Ms. Ten Liang Ernt = 180 = = % 7 213

1280 6,620 = = 207 105 8217
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(i) Mr. Yang Guang was appointed as supervisor of the Company
on 13 December 2023.

(if) Mr. Wang Jun retired as supervisor of the Company on 13
December 2023.

Directors’ retirement benefits

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2024, there
were no additional retirement benefit received by the directors
except for the contribution to defined contribution retirement
scheme administration and operated by the local municipal
government in accordance with the rules and regulations in the
PRC.

Directors’ termination benefits

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2024, there
were no termination benefits received by the directors.

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, no
consideration was provided to or receivable third parties for
making available directors’ services.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate and connected entities with such
directors

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, there
were no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate and connected entities.

E MR

72024512 A31H As at 31 December 2024

2024 FEE

0) 55 & £ R2023F12 A13A B &
FEAKRARES -

(i) EHILAER2023F12A130 BHE
RARESE -

ESRAER

H 20234 R20245F12A31H |[F £
[ BRE T BUTRE S BEAR AR IR
Il 18 R 48 & 1) B JE i 5OR IR ET 2l
BRI EEW REBBINEARE
F o

ESRBERN

#H E20234F K2024F12A31H 14
B BEUTKRESEERER -

MBS E S IR P
=HRHEZNE

#H T2024%F K2023F12A31H 1L 4
B BERESEEREMME=S

Rt 7 R -
HZEEEEHEoZE
HEERBESRER
LESE  ZESMEGNE
AI%& {HAEERA
RATED  EERR
Angzﬁﬂ

#H E2024%F K2023%F12A318 IE 4
B BIEEMNES  ZEZAEL
EAEREREBEERASZTAZ
B EERREMRS -

RECARTELRBEEARGERAIT
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E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

38.

39.

(f) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Except for mentioned above, there were no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during the years ended
31 December 2024 and 2023.

CONTINGENCIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilites as at 31
December 2024 and 2023.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial Risk Factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk. The overall risk management program of the Group
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on financial performance of the
Group.

@  Market risk
i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group is engaged in the provision of city operation
services and lifestyle services and FATH and other
comprehensive services in the PRC with almost all the
transactions denominated and settled in RMB, which
is the functional currency of the group companies.
Therefore, its foreign exchange risk is limited. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy, and manages its foreign currency risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates.
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HAREIE
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E MR

R2024%F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, foreign currency risk
arises from the Group’s assets, which were denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency at the end
of the reporting period are as follows:

R20244F 202312 4318 -
REBERRE RN LT
LGN E BB E EE A
HNEER\ BRI T -

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBEFIT

Denominated in HKD LB TTETE
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREeEEY 4,975 5,664
Overall net exposure R FRE 4,975 5,664

The following table indicates the approximate effect
on the profit after income tax expense in response to
reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange
rates, with all other variables held constant, to which the
Group has significant exposure at the end of the reporting
period. The appreciation and depreciation of 1% in RMB
exchange rate against HKD represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in currency
exchange rate over the reporting period.

Effect on profit after income tax

HEREHRAFNBNZE

TRINTRBERR £
HpB2as T ZaERT
7 £2 B T B KRR B ) B K
REMREFHRAEHAX
BABENMOTE - ARER
BTEXFERZEI%RER
& 4 ¥l &5 B A PE R 5 38 F] g
By R o

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

HKD to RMB BTAARE
Appreciation by 1% FHE1%
Depreciation by 1% B2 E1%

37 42
(37) (42)

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group had
no material foreign currency denominated assets and
liabilities. Therefore, the Group did not have any significant
foreign exchange risk.

2024 F [E %

R20244F [ 2023F12 H31H -
REEWEAINESEHNEKXR
BERAGB Al AEET
EAMERINER R -

RECARTEERBEBARDARLA
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E MR

R2024F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

(i)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Borrowings were issued at fixed rates which expose the
Group to fair value interest-rate risk. The Group has no
cash flow interest-rate risk as there are no borrowings
which bear floating interest rates. The Group has not used
any financial instruments to hedge potential fluctuations in

interest rates.

The interest rates and terms of repayment of the Group’s

borrowings are disclosed in Note 30.

(b)  Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its trade
and bills receivables, contract assets, other receivables and
cash deposits at banks. The carrying amount of each class of
the above financial assets represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to the corresponding class of

financial assets.

0] Cash deposits at banks

To manage this risk, cash deposits at banks are
mainly placed with state-owned and reputable financial
institutions in the PRC. There has been no recent
history of default in relation to these financial institutions.
These instruments are considered to have low credit
risk because they have a low risk of default and the
counterparty has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term. The identified credit

losses are immaterial.
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Contract assets, trade and bills receivables

The Group has policies in place to ensure that contract
assets, trade and bills receivables with credit terms are
made to counterparties with an appropriate credit history
and management performs ongoing credit evaluations of
the counterparties.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all contract assets, trade and
bills receivables.

The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress
where the payment is not due, therefore the expected
loss rate of contract assets is assessed to be minimal.

Trade and bills receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due,
to measure the expected credit losses.

In addition, trade and bills receivables relating to significant
balances with related parties are assessed individually for
provision for impairment allowance.

The expected loss rates of trade and bills receivables are
based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of
36 months before each year end and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this period.
The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current
and forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables.

2024 F [E %

R RRME

R2024%F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

(i)

BHEE BHRYERE
LES

AREBEE B EBRAERE(E
EHNANEE EHRKK
ERERRETEEELEZ
ENXSHTET MEEE
SHXGHFETHBEREE
ity o

AEBEREEV B REER
FORBE T A ERMER
BiE - HMAEAMNEE B
HRMFBERERZERA T
BRI R IR -

BRBEESRARENEZT
2 (R AREH) - E &8
BENBRHBRXFIGATE
% o

BHREFBERERZERD IR
HAREERRSHRAHREK
EITDHE - U EEHEES
o

SN - EREREE T B AN BRA
EENCE YA EOEN A E S
BIEEITRI (A - AR IR IBUE B
i o

B 5 RYGAR BB RIENTE
HIB 1R X T BN S 5 E R AT
3618 A 5 1Y $5 & 5 SRAB S IA
Ko % 5 6 P P 3 AR 0 AR B R S
FEEER BLEBEBRXCIEH
B URBREZERFENE
WHRBENNEZERERZS
BNIRA MR IEER
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E MR

R2024F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

(i)

Other receivables

Other receivables have been assessed for impairment
on a collective basis based on different credit risk
characteristics. The management makes periodic
collective assessments as well as individual assessment
on the recoverability of other receivables based on
historical settlement records, past experience, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. The directors believe
that there is no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding balance of other receivables.

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as
at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date
of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

o internal credit rating;

o external credit rating;

o actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligations;

o actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the debtor; and

° significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the debtor, including changes in
the payment status of counter party and changes in
the operating results of the debtor.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Macroeconomic information is incorporated as part of the
internal rating model.

The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately
providing for expected credit losses on a timely basis.
In calculating the expected credit loss rates, the Group
considers historical loss rates for each category of
receivables and adjusts for forward looking information on
macroeconomic factors.

Impairment of financial assets
Measurement of expected credit loss on individual basis

Trade and bills receivables relating to significant balances
with related parties and certain third parties are assessed
individually for provision for impairment allowance. As at
31 December 2024, the balances of such individually
assessed trade and bills receivables related to related
parties and third parties are RMB248,983,000 and
RMB16,296,000 (2023: RMB305,529,000 and Nil)
and the loss allowance in respect of these receivables
are RMB81,322,000 and RMB16,110,000 (2023:
RMB18,075,000 and Nil).

Other receivables relating to significant balances with
certain third parties are assessed individually for provision
for impairment allowance. As at 31 December 2024, the
balance of such individually assessed other receivables
are RMB2,141,000 (2023: Nil) and the loss allowance in
respect of these receivables on RMB2,141,000 (2023:
Nil).

R RRME

R2024%F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

2024 F [E %

EMAZRIEEARHE AR
RO —H5 -

A& BB MR E S TR
FEBERBEEMESEGEER
AR - StEAHEEBEX
B AEEEEEREEIA
MESLEBERE YHBERLE
REEZOATIE I EREL T

o

EREERE

RERELEG ERHEERE

HEABIRETE=ZFMNE
REHBHANE S EKKRIE
MW =R B (TR
LA 5T 32 8 (B #E 8 - 120244
12A818 » % % @ Al FF & /Y
HEBIRETE=ZFTNE
SR IE K& EWRZ &L 6
B A R #248,983,0007T M A
R #16,296,0007T ( 20234 :
A R #305,529,0007T & )
MZzERBFIENBEREEA
A R #:81,322,0007T & A R #
16,110,0007T (20234 : AR
18,075,0007T & ) o

METFE=ZFNEREHEH
Y E fth B UK SR TH BB 1T AT
fly  DART $2 R0 (B B 45 - 722024
F12A8318 » ZE@EFIFER
HEmERFBEHRABARE
2,141,0007T (20234 : £) « M
ZERBFBENBBEREEAA
R¥2,141,0007T (20234F : &) -
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Measurement of expected credit loss on collective basis

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the loss allowance
provision for the trade receivables due from third parties

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR E

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

RERLEGERHMEERE

P20244F %2023 12318 -
FEWE =77 & 5 e WK IR K 6

measured on collective basis was determined as follow. EREETNT -
Less than 1t02 2t03 Over3
1 year years years years Total
1EHUR 122 PEXES 3ENE Hit
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
As 31 December 2024 R2024%F12A31R
Gross carmying amount BEEE
- third party trade receivables Vote 29)  —E=H B S E (Hii222) 402,745 33,188 9,423 3,187 448,543
Expected loss rate EHERE 2.21% 15,71% 53.52% 61.81%
Loss alowance BiEEE 9,162 5,213 5,043 1,970 21,388
Less than 1102 2103 QOver 3
1 year years years years Total
A 120 2Z3F 3ENE @z
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTR AREFT ARETR ARBT:
As 31 December 2023 (Restated) 120235128318 (BE3)
Gross carrying amount BEAE
~third party trade receivables (Note 22)  —E=F B BRUFEHH22) 297,135 47718 18,949 10,047 374,749
Expected loss rate EHERE 20% 1.7% 35.9% 61.5%
Loss allowance EEAE 6,008 5,769 6,802 6,733 25,402
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As of 31 December 2024 and 2023, the loss allowance
provision for other receivables measured on collective
basis was determined as follow:

E MR

R2024%F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

H £2024% K%2023F12 A31
A REBEEEGSHMER
RIEREEREBETNOT ¢

202 2023 Restated)
N4E 20235 (5 &7
Gross Gross
Expected canying Loss  Expected carying Loss
Other receivable Hth NS lossrate ~ amount  alowance  lossrate amount alowance
BHEEE SFEE  FREG ROFEx  4BEE  FBAE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000
ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
Due from related parties B R R 2252% 2878 648 262% 13148 34
Due from third parties ERE=FE
~ Payments on behaf of property owner ~REEHH 267% 1,003 % 269% 4459 120
- Deposts -k% 267% 26,183 699 2.69% 22,261 598
- Advance to employees -RESEHRNER 267% 8450 205 269% 6,341 171
- Others -£ft 267% 10,653 284 2.69% 7,007 188
49,257 1,885 53216 142
The loss allowances for trade, bills and other receivables 20244 }2023%F 12 431 H &Y
as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 reconcile to the HESEWHIE BREREBERA
opening loss allowances as follows: b JE M5 R TE 1 S 1R 1 B EF )
EIERELROT
Trade Bills Other
receivables receivables  receivables Total
EAEW HitfEw
HIE EhRE HE Eh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR
As 1 January 2023 (Restated) 4202351 B1A (B E5)) 34,138 2 1,185 35,351
Increase n loss alowance recognised in the  FARGA BE R EM 2 ANERRE
consolidated statements of profit orloss ) EEAEIL M
and other comprehensive income during
the year 9,339 (28) 236 9,547
As 31 December 2023 (Restated) 120235128318 (ZE5) 43477 - 1,421 44,898
Increase n loss alowance recognised in the FRRGA B R EM 2 AMERE
consolidated statements of profit orloss R ETE A /BIE N
and other comprehensive income during
the year 76.670 - 2,605 79,275
Written-off of loss allowances EER BN (1327) = = (1327)
As 31 December 2024 R2024%12A31A 118,820 - 4,026 122,846
2024 EWE RECHHTELREEBRBERLA
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mE R R M EE

R2024F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

©

DOWELL SERVICE GROUP CO. LIMITED

Liquidity risk © REBEZEE

To manage the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains AEEBRDECRR  AEBEEER
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the HFBEEESARTHANEREERRS
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the ZEYKTE  LATEENEERH
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Be WRERSRSRDHFE -

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into TRAMAEERENGEEANF
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at HEIRZ 5 AR B R RIEE R E A
the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The MR D ENECRIBE - RAFMEEN
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted SHEARMBENRERE - BRF
cash flows. The interests on borrowings are calculated based B Ty iR 4% & £20244F }2023%12 A
on borrowings held as of 31 December 2024 and 2023 without TAF/ENEREGTE (W EET R ER
taking into account any subsequent changes in the amount of THENEMNREZS) -

borrowings.

Weighted Total
average contractual
effective Caming  Lessthan 1o 2t Over  undiscounted

interest rate amount 1 year 2 years 5years Syears  cash flows
SHORER
nETH BenE

- FIES REf 1EMR 1208 2555 SENL 4%

% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARETn ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR  ARETR
As 31 December 2024 RN24E128318
Liase s BEAf 447 91,007 17913 13528 30,348 86855 148645
Trade payables Motz 29) BRENAWH) NATER 317902 253,151 34,666 25,085 - NI
Accruals and other payables (excluding EABRAREMENTE (A aE
non-inancia abltes) Vot 29) FERER) (W) NAFER 303474 304474 - - - 3034
Finencil i at FVTPL BATEAREMEHAE  NATER 1200 1,200 - - - 1,200
Total 5t 713,853 580,738 4819 55,433 86,855 .21

Weighted Totd
average contractual
ffective Less than 1o 210 Over  undliscounted

interest rate  Camying amount 1year 2 years 5years Syeas  cashflows

AURER

T Reing

Lyl FEE  1ENA 150 0EE SENE g8
% RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMBI000
% ARETT ARETT ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
As 31 December 2023 R2023E12318

Lease liabilties REaf 483 91,326 18,638 14673 27,98 92699 163,947
Trade payables Motz 29) BRENAWH9) NATER 30132 20592 37721 21819 - 01
Bonwings fast 502 9,262 447 - = = 9447

Accruals and other payables (excluding EABRARAMENTE (A EE
non-fenci i) Mote 29 FERAR) (Hi2) NATEE 2084 293864 - - - 098
Finencil e at FVTPL BATEAREMEMAR  NATER 2000 1000 1,000 - - 2000
Total Bt 696,584 563,541 5334 49757 9,699 74943
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Capital Management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
retums for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio (net). This
ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total equity. Total debt is
calculated as the aggregate of total borrowings and lease liabilities.
Total equity is as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 were as
follows:

E MR

R2024%F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

EXRERE

AEEEREANBE RN RAREASERN
FEKZERE N B RRRERE R E
HBENGZBEMALTIS  ARERR
BB EARREE - URIEE AR -

REFLFHBERRRE  AEE A #HEIR
NFERROKESHE RARRFEEAN
BITHBROIEEEENRDELE -

AEBABEERBIL R (FLLR) EREE
BARMELE « Z B T ROF BT R A B4R
mat o FEFKRBERLEERENR
MEtE - BRI A MBHRKRAR

20244 K2023F 12 AIEMEEEREL
EWT :

2024 2023

20244 20234F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTT ARBTTT

(Restated)

(F=%1))

Total debt BIE 91,007 100,588
Total equity HarEL 409,203 506,866
Gearing ratio BEBARLE 22.2% 19.8%

2024 e RECARHTELREEERDBERAF
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e MR E

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

Fair Value Estimation

@  Fair value hierarchy

F

AFEME

@

Financial instruments carried at fair value or where fair value
was disclosed can be categorised by levels of the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The inputs
are categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as

follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)

(level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level

3).

The following table presents the Group’s liabilities that are
measured at fair value at 31 December 2024 and 2023:

RFEER

BAFEIERIBEELAFENSH
TAAKEARFEAFENGE
Rt ABIREBRETOR - AR
BEANHEBRT Y R T = AR :

s HRBEXRREERETSN
WECREHAR) (F1ER) -

o  BREIBRMBRENREN Z
BEEXABTEE AER) X
R (BR B ER) B A
g (24 -

s EESARIFKREABEED
BEENE ABE BT A8
R ARE) (FIEAR) -

T & 25| 7N & B 1020244 [ 2023F
12A31B A EFENAE :

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FIBR Epl=Ee FIBHK “sr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR AR%Tx
As 31 December 2024 2024128311
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BATEGIAEZNERAE - - 1,200 1,200
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1BHR FERMG FEIER st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETR
As 31 December 2023 72023128311
Financial liabilties at FVTPL BATEGIAEZNERAE - = 2,000 2,000

There were no transfers among levels of the fair value hierarchy

during the year.

DOWELL SERVICE GROUP CO. LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Pursuant to the Sales and Purchase agreement (the
“Agreement”) dated 30 December 2020, entered into between
the Group and a third party, the Group acquired 51% of the
shares of the target company — Guangxi Shengkang. Under
the Agreement, the Group would be liable to contingent
consideration if Guangxi Shengkang achieved the revenue
growth rate of 10% for each of the four years ended 31
December 2021 to 2024. the amount of the additional
considerations are described as below:

R RRME

R2024%F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

©

EHEXT A B A 5T
BENFE(E3ER)

BAFEFABRENERAE

BEAEBEE=ZFTIVAHA
2020F12 A30H W B & e ([Z&
B AEBKEBZEAREAKRE
1% D  IRIRZ Hhaz - W E PO %
R 220214 220245612 A31H
LEMEFE S FEIR10%MH g &
= REEGEERARE - BIME
BESEHMMT

Year ending Target revenue Contingent consideration Status
BZEUTHHLEEE B &= RAEEEE R &

31 December 2021 RMB33,000,000 RMB2,000,000 Achieved
2021412 A318 A R #33,000,0007T A R #2,000,0007T 2ER
31 December 2022 RMB36,300,000 RMB2,000,000 Achieved
2022412 A31H A K #36,300,0007T A R #2,000,0007C BEER
31 December 2023 RMB39,930,000 RMB1,000,000 Achieved
2023512 A31H AR #39,930,0007T A R #1,000,0007T BEEIHR
31 December 2024 RMB43,920,000 RMB1,000,000 Achieved
2024512 A31H AR #43,920,0007C A R #1,000,0007T 2ER

Further pursuant to the Agreement, if the net profit margin
of Guangxi Shengkang achieved 8% for each of the four
years ending 31 December 2021 to 2024, the contingent
consideration will be reduced under an agreed formula

calculation.

2024 F [E %

BEAN - IRIRFZ i - e PO B B AN A
£20214F £2024F 12 A31H 1E Y &
FESFMMAEFEEDL% AR
EBRREHBENARGTERD -

RECARTEERBEBARDARLA
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E MR

R2024F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

Trigger deduction of

Year ended Net profit margin rate contingent consideration Status
BEUTHAHLEEE R = BERIARARE kR

31 December 2021 8% No Unachieved
20214 12A31H B REZ

31 December 2022 8% No Unachieved
202212 A31H B RiEE

31 December 2023 8% No Unachieved
2023F 12 A31H B REZ

31 December 2024 8% No Unachieved
2024412 A31H B REF|

The potential undiscounted consideration amount payable
under the Agreement would range from Nil to RMB6,000,000
depending on the actual target revenue achievement and actual
deduction of contingent consideration if triggers for each of the
four years ended 31 December 2024.

By referring to the past financial performance of the Guangxi
Shengkang, it has achieved the target revenue for the years
ended 31 December 2021 to 2024 (2023: 2021 to 2023)
and deduction of contingent consideration is not triggered for
the years ended 31 December 2021 to 2024 (2023: 2021
to 2023). As of 31 December 2023, the management of the
Group foresaw the target revenue of RMB43,920,000 for
the year ending 31 December 2024 of Guangxi Shengkang
was very likely to be achieved and deduction of contingent
consideration for the year ending 31 December 2024 was very
unlikely triggered. As of 31 December 2024, the management
of the Group achieved the target revenue of RMB43,920,000
for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2022: years ended 31
December 2023 to 2024) of Guangxi Shengkang and deduction
of contingent consideration for the year ended 31 December
2024 was not triggered.

DOWELL SERVICE GROUP CO. LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

FZHEETEMNNEBERERRE
SFHEN T Z = A KEB6,000,0007T
58 £2024F12 A31H 1+ U & 4
ESFHNERBRKEEKREBERK
FAREHNERTRIB R (WBEE
%) e

LB2EZRMBRBENBAMIBEERE
H P B E 20214 20244 (2023
F : 20214 £20234F) 128318 IH 4
ERBEKZE  BREE2021FE
20244 (20234 : 20214 F2023F)
128318 IEFE I EBHEHNBEA
RIB - # E2023F12A31H * K&EE
BIRERG - BEERRNEE2024F
12A31BIEFEMERBEARE
43,920,0007L1% B AJ B - B K
A BE 8 3% & £2024F 128318 1L
E®ARER - # 2202412
B3R  AEEEREDERERR
FRELE£2024F12 431 B IEF E (2022
F : B £ 2023F &2024F 128318 1-
FE) KB ERE A R#43,920,000
JT) + B 3 % 5 3 8 £2024F 12 A31
H it FERSARBIR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group has
paid out partial consideration that was contingent on the 2023
(2023: 2021 and 2022) revenue targets and continues to believe
with a high level of certainty that the remaining amounts will be
paid out in relation to the 2024 (2023: 2023 and 2024) revenue
targets.

40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 20 November 2024, Chongaing Dowell Enterprise Management
Consultation Co., Ltd, (“Chongqing Dowell”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as purchaser and Chengdu Dowell
Haina Zhiye Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Dima, as
vendor, entered into an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which
Chongaing Dowell conditionally agreed to acquire the entire equity
interest in the Chengdu Dongyuhong Commercial Management Co.,
Ltd. (“Chengdu Dongyuhong”), a subsidiary of Chengdu Dowell
Haina Zhiye Co., Ltd., at the consideration of RMB59,500,000 (Note
24).

Chengdu Dongyuhong is principally engaged in business management
and real estate consulting. It holds approximately 83.48% ownership
of 3rd to 11th floor of a building situated in Chengdu City. The
property has a gross area of approximately 8,474.10 square metres,
and was used as an elderly care centre. Since the operation of
Chengdu Dongyuhong does not constitute a business, the Group
identifies and recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to financial
assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining
balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the other identifiable
assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date
of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or
bargain purchase gain.

The acquisition of Chengdu Dongyuhong has been accounted for as
acquisition of assets.

R RRME

40.

2024 F [E %

R2024%F12 H31H As at 31 December 2024

RE E2024F12A31B LFE - &
£ B B N EURP20234F (20234 ¢
20214F K20224 ) W zk B IZM 8o K
B - WHE S 1 E ] 20244
(20234 : 20234 k20245 ) Wz B
EERNBRT SR -

BREMRER

M2024F11 A20H * AR A2 & WB A A
BEERRCANGCETEARNERARA(E
BRE| (FREFH) REFE2EMNB AT
RERFBMEXBRAR ERER)ET
UREE RS Bl EEREBENY
FAERBEKBRESNEEER AR ZH
BRAKSRELHEETEBRAR (K
HREE) W2 HBERE REAARE
59,500,0007T (MF5E24) °

KEBREREERELEETEREHER
o HBBARPEKESHT —HREFHE
ZEE+—BHI83A8NHI T HE c XM E
BB RMIEL A8 ATAN0F K - Wik ARE
EREEER - HRKBRERHNZEET
BREY AEEKEABESANAT
BEEBEEEIETECREE SRaE
REBEEEEOFHRBRBRIEELBERN
BEASMNATESIRE FEMAIHMANEE
KBE ZERXRSGTEELHENEER

B e o

WK RERD ARINERBEE -

RECARTEERBEBARDARLA
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E MR

72024F12 A31H As at 31 December 2024

The effect of the acquisition is summarised as follows:

Wiz FEBRIT

RMB’'000
ARETT

Cash consideration ReRE

59,500

The acquisition-related costs are insignificant and are included in other

U BB AR BB I N EE R SA R Et A EAB B 52

expenses.
RMB’000
ARBTTT
Assets acquired at the date of acquisition RUWEREB BB EE
Property, plant and equipment (Buildings) YIE - BB R (EF) 34,736
Right-of-use assets (Land use right) fEAEEE (TR 24,764
59,500

The acquisition was approved by the extraordinary general meeting of
the Company on 22 January 2025. Further details are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 20 November 2024 and 22
January 2025 and the circular of the Company dated 6 January 2025.

DOWELL SERVICE GROUP CO. LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Five-Year Financial Summary

AFH ﬁﬁﬂig

2020 2021 2022 2023° 2024
20204 20214F 20224 ! 20234 * 20244
(Restated) (Restated)
(1B E5) (gs5)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT AREFTT ARBTT AR®TR
Revenue g 766,802 1,193,423 1,349,412 1,528,257 1,530,201
Gross profit EH 215,989 308,923 278,512 212,878 207,877
Profit and total RRRHEE AELS
comprehensive income MEREEER
for the year attributable to ~ EI U4 A 4458
owners of the Company 84,714 128,720 88,514 2,529 (66,882)
Total assets BEE 785,007 964,007 1,270,774 1,528,440 1,484,253
Total liabilities BEE 619,597 705,955 787,113 1,021,574 1,075,050
Equity attrioutable to owners AN B %A A JE(L
of the Company B 158,835 249,222 462,541 482,541 383,238
Total equity BEs 165,500 258,052 483,661 506,366 409,203
Notes: B -

On 31 January 2023, the Company acquired 99% equity interests in
Shanghai Xuanhai Technology Co., Ltd.* through business combination
involving entities under common control, and retrospectively restated the
financial data of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022.
Please refer to the interim results announcement of the Company dated 18
August 2023 and annual results announcement of the Company dated 20

March 2024 for details.

On 21 June 2024, the Company acquired approximately 90.73% equity
interests in Shanghai Evergreen Social Care Enterprise Development Co.,
Ltd.*, and retrospectively restated the financial data of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2023. Please refer to the interim results
announcement of the Company dated 22 August 2024 and the annual
results announcement of the Company dated 31 March 2025 for details.

2024 F [E %

720231 A318 + ANQ A)iE B H E i 88
WEBEHIE LFRERER AR A F199%A%
o WHARAEHE2022F12A431BEFEZ
MEERETEHNES - FBEBFL2HMALAAE
B /202348 A18H MR A B N E RA QA
HE B2024F3A20A M FEEBE RS ©

R2024F6A218  AARIWE LG FHE
EPEZERBR A AL0.73% #E - I A
A A B E2023F 128318 IEFE /B 15 & B
EITEWEY - FBEFL2EARARAER2024
FAZAMAPHMEBELNERARAAABRA
2025F3ASIAMFEEBE NS -

RECARTEERBEBARDARLA
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Definitions

£

“Affiliated Companies”

R

“Articles of Association”

[ASERA[ ]

“AGM”
[FERRAE]

“associate(s)”

[BEA

“Audit Committee”

[BEREEE]

“Board”

[EEg]
“Board Committees”
[EEZEE

“City Operations Services”
[ ¥ 330 T AR 75

“CG Code”
[{EEE<FAl]

“Chairman” or “Chairlady”

[EFE]

companies that engaged the Group to provide services and are (i) formed by Dima
Group (including the Group) and independent third party(ies) in which Dima Group
does not hold any controlling interests and are not consolidated entities of Dima
Group; and (i) held directly by Mr. Lo And His Associates (other than the Group and
Dima Group)

ZEASERERERIEEER (BREARE) BBEVE=7 CAFEERHE
R EEAEMERER) RYNAR - WIHEFEEENGSER RiIBE
FERHEBMEAMFAEE L EEEEEZFENERRMARHRENA
=

the articles of association of the Company currently in force

ANNTE B ATER A ERADR

the 2024 annual general meeting of the Company

KRTB2024FHFERERE

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

BB LA A TR R E

the Audit Committee of the Board
EEEEREES

the board of Directors

BExg

collectively, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee
EREZEE FHNZEERREREEZESNRE

property management services to residential and local non-residential properties,
including security services, cleaning services, gardening services, facility
management services and maintenance services
FETREMIFETYEREMEERRY - SRERRRE  BERE  EZ
BRTS - %t B2 AR 1% B e i AR 7S

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules

LR BIMERCIFE M B RE AR

the chairman or chairlady of the Board
EEEERE

DOWELL SERVICE GROUP CO. LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024



“Chongqing Dongyuan”

[EERE]

“Chongqing Doyen”

[EERR]

“Chongqing Shuorun”

[EEEE]

“Company”

[A2F]

“Comprehensive Elderly Care
Services”

[BEHRERE]

“Community Events Planning
Services”

[+ &% Bp 5% 81 AR 3%

“connected person(s)”

[BAE AL

“connected transaction(s)”
[EERS ]

“Companies Ordinance”

PSS

Definitions

BE

Chongging Xin Dongyuan Property Management Company Limited* (previously
known as Chongging Dongyuan Jiahemei Property Management Company
Limited®), a limited liability company established in the PRC and a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

EETRRVEEEBRAR FIMEERRZEEMETEBRAR)  —
FRABIKZHBRAGT  RERAREEEZENE QT

Chongging Doyen Holdings Group Co., Ltd.* (previously known as Chongging
Doyen Industry (Group) Company Limited*), a limited company established in the
PRC and a connected person of the Group for the purpose of the Listing Rules
ERERBAEREEERAR (FIBERRBEX (KE)BRAF)  —KRAF
BRI ERAR - BB EWHRNAREENBEAL

Chongging Shuorun Petrochemical Company Limited* (previously known as
Chongging Shuorun Trading Company Limited®), a limited company established in
the PRC and a connected person of the Group for the purpose of the Listing Rules
EEEBALCERECATRAIBEEBEBESEREMTART)  —RRFP
R BBRAR - B ETRAAREENMEALT

DOWELL SERVICE GROUP CO. LIMITED*, a joint stock company incorporated in
the PRC with limited liability, the H Shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange

RRCHEMELRBEEERNERAT - —ERPEFMA ARG ER
AR BEHRREERZ P EIR =T

provision of comprehensive elderly care services, including medical and health care
services in home communities, elderly care institutions, nursing and rehabilitation
institutions and specialist institutions

RERZHERYE  BREFHE  ZZHE ZEFRERBLRIEMHRENE
&R EERY

organising events for residents and property developers
RIEFPRYERBEREREH

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

BB LR AR T AR E

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules
AR AR TR eRE

the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BB ED F622F A FHERD

2024FEHE RECARTELRBEBROGBRIA
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Definitions

£

“Co-CEOQ”
[ Bt FE 1T IR AR B

“Dimal!
i i
“Dima Group”

3 55 &= M B

“Dima Ruisheng”

FEEEFH B
“Directors”
[E%] B

“Dongyuan Real Estate”

[REFEFEME ] B

“FATH and Other Comprehensive
Services”

o B BRSGARK! B

“Final Dividend”

(RIS ] B

the co-chief executive officer of the Company
RNAEIBEEITI AR

Dima Holdings Co., Ltd.*, a limited liability company established in the PRC on 9
October 1997, a substantial shareholder of the Company and a connected person
of the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules
BEEMHBSEERMARAR - M1997F10A9B EF BRI ZERAA] « 5t
FHARAITME  RARRINEERRREAEAL

Dima together with its subsidiaries
S REME AR

Chongging Dima Ruisheng Co. Ltd.*, a limited liability company established in the
PRC on 2 April 2018, which is wholly-owned by Dima and a substantial shareholder
of the Company and a connected person of the Company for the purpose of the
Listing Rules

EERHSEABEARAR  R2018F4A2BEHBKZ 2 BRAF - HES
2EHA B ETRAME  BRARBNFEREREEALT

the directors of the Company

RRAES

Dongyuan Property Development Group Company Limited* (previously known
as Chongging Dongyuan Property Development Group Company Limited*), a
limited liability company established in the PRC on 15 September 1999, which is a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of Dima

RREHERZEEEBRAR (FIBRERRREHMEREEEERAA)
199959 A16B R B 2 BR AR - REBFHIEZEH BN R

services provided to foreign-owned enterprises, foreign embassies, international
schools, hospitals and medical facilities, as well as other comprehensive services,
including, among others, Foreign and Medical Related Services, Sales Assistance
Services, Preliminary Planning Services, digital and intelligent technology services,
maintenance and rectification services, Comprehensive Elderly Care Services and
other related comprehensive services

RANE R - HNEIR(EEE - BIFR 2R - BFr M B R SR p iR (O AR TS - DA R oAt
el BE (R eiE) i BERE - HiERS - slBR RS  &#F
bR B EMART  EERERRE  BELESRBUAREMEBEES R
%

a final cash dividend of RMBO0.03 per share (tax inclusive) for the year ended 31
December 2024
B E2024F 12 A31 B L FE KRR SR EFRARKE0.03T (FFL)
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“Foreign and Medical
Related Services”

(5 - BB

“GFA”

[EEmEA]

“Group”
[

“H Shares”

[HAR ]

“Hong Kong”
(&%

“HK$” or “HK dollars”
[&xl

“Independent Third
Party(ies)”

[(BIE=7]

“Lifestyle Services”

[RFETERH]

“Listing Date”

[Em A

“Listing Rules”
[EmARA

Definitions

BE

providing property management services to foreign-owned enterprises, foreign
embassies, international schools, hospitals and medical facilities (including security
services, cleaning services, facility management services and maintenance services)
FANE R - HNEIR(EEEE - BIR 2K - Bl MBRREREMEERRE &
RBZRRS  FERE - RIEEIERT RAEERES

gross floor area

EEmE

collectively, the Company and its subsidiaries from time to time
RRABRETEEHIE R T 25

the H shares of the Company with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each in the share
capital of the Company, which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
PR BT E AR BT R A R RIRA S &R EE A K #1.007T HIHAR

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
R EEBRFRITEH R

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BT BEEEEY

a person, persons, company or companies which is or are independent of, and
not connected with (within the meaning under the Listing Rules), any directors,
supervisors, chief executive or substantial shareholders of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any of their respective associate(s)
BURARRREFAMBEARAMNES EF FETBHAEBLETERRE
FRESEMNEMBEALRFSEVEBE(FER ETRADN —BHZH
At —HZEHEAA

lifestyle-related services, including, among others, Community Events Planning
Services, Management and Agency Services, utility maintenance services and other
lifestyle services

EFEERYE - 2 (AP e dREHRERE BB RRAEBRE 28
AR e A 7 AR S5 DA B B At SE 4 AR 0 PR 7S

the date of listing of the H Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, being
29 April 2022
HAR 7B A2 4R =i B R - BN20224F4 A29H

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B P LR Al

2024FEHE RECARTELRBEBROGBRIA
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Definitions

£

“Management and Agency
Services”

[EERAERE

“Model Code”
[Z%<rAl]

“Nomination Policy”

[REHEE]

“Non-competition Undertaking”

[ T3 F A&
“Mr. Lo”
[

“Mr. Lo And His Associates”

[BEEREBEA]

“Ms. Chiu”
Bk

providing () car parking spaces management services, including but not limited
to, entry or exit control, cleaning, surveillance and collection of parking fees; and
(i) car parking spaces and property sales services, including but not limited to,
providing marketing and sales services for car parking spaces and property located
at property projects sourced from Dima Group and Affiliated Companies (including
associates of Dima Group)

RENVEELEERE (BRETRNELERE - FR BERMREFEE)
RFEMLRMEHEERS (BRETRRALNREBETEERKE LR (&2
FEFRENBEA) WY EIEB NREA R ERMEHKIEE RE)

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
TR RIMT SRCIPE LT BITAE T ETESF X HFRETED

the director nomination policy of the Company

RRREBFRABABR

the non-competition undertaking signed by Dima, Dima Ruisheng and Tianjin
Chengfang on 20 February 2021
S BEEARKEEAN2021F2H20H EEN TR SRR E

Mr. Lo Siu Yu, a substantial shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the
Company
BETFRE  ARAEFERR(EER LKA

collectively refers to Chongging Doyen, Mr. Lo, Ms. Chiu and Chongging
Shuorun. As at the date of this annual report, the shares of Dima were owned
as to (i) approximately 35.55% by Chongging Doyen, which in turn is owned as
to approximately 77.78% by Mr. Lo and approximately 22.22% by Ms. Chiu, the
spouse of Mr. Lo; (i) approximately 3.01% by Chongging Shuorun, which in tun
is owned as to 98.96% by Chongaing Doyen and 1.04% by Ms. Chiu; and (i)
approximately 4.46% by Ms. Chiu

GIEEERR #HEE HZIREEBRB HEXAFHAH -BFRHOHE
()4)35.55%H EE RIR (BT E R AR BE L HRIHERHL77.78% K% 4
22.20%M R HE) HEA ; (KIS0 %BHEEEH (AEERRERBLLTHRHEAE
98.96% K 1.04% A4 ) BER  K(ii)#)4.46%H X T HEH

Ms. Chiu Kit Hung, the spouse of Mr. Lo
PR T AR
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“Net Proceeds”

[ PSSR 4

“Nomination Committee”

REZEEE]

“PRC”
[ B

“Preliminary Planning Services”

[ 7 5 5 21 AR 7% |

“Prospectus”

[ERER]

“Remuneration Committee”

[HHESS

“RMB”
[AR®]

“Reporting Period”
[ &5

“Sales Assistance Services”

[t 85 AR % |

“Shareholders”

[AR=R ]

“SFO”
[ % R AEFH

“Stock Exchange”
[ 86 32 A

Definitions

BE

the net proceeds from the global offering of the Company in connection with the
listing of the H Shares on the Stock Exchange and partial exercise of over-allotment
option as set out in the Prospectus, amounting to approximately HK$139.8 milion
in total, after deducting the underwriting fees and relevant expenses
RNREHEE R MEERE AR B SHRTER P L R &R 1T B RE A
Pt (ANHRRREAR AT al) M 17 2 3R 3 & B AT 1S SRR R & $£49139,800,00078
7T

the nomination committee of the Board

EEQRAEZES

the People’s Republic of China
hEE ARHKM

providing advisory services on the overall project design and planning and
coordination of pre-sale activities
TR ERSTE B R et MR B DA K& AUE ) 1558 75 T 6 R T AR 7S

the prospectus of the Company dated 19 April 2022
AT A R20226F4 198 KB IR B 12

the remuneration committee of the Board

EXgVMERES

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
FEIAEEBARE

the year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12A31H ILFE

assisting in property sales activities, which include visitor reception, cleaning, security
inspection, maintenance and other customer-related services

MBMEHE RS BESTES  BE  TRRE - S REME FERR
%

shareholders of the Company

NG E

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BEEPIESNE(EZ LB IED)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEBBER ARG
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Definitions

£

“substantial shareholder”
[FERR

“Supervisors”

[E=]

“Supervisory Board”

B34

“Sq.m.”

(7K

“Tianjin Chengfang”
[REER ]

“Tianjin Partnership”
[REER]

“0/0”

[%]]

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
AR AR TR e8RS

the supervisors of the Company

RAFES

the board of Supervisors

EFg

square metres

Tianjin Chengfang Corporate Management Consultant Company Limited*, a limited
liability company established in the PRC and a substantial shareholder of the
Company and a connected person of the Company for the purpose of the Listing
Rules

REBFEEERZAGRAF  —KRPEKINERAAE - st EmRA
MERRNAAINFEREREEALT

Tianjin Shengyihe Management Consulting Partnership Enterprise (Limited
Partnership)*, a limited partnership established in the PRC and a connected person
of the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules
RERGACRERFKAGBRER(ARAR)  —HARTBEKINERER
®FE - RETRAMEREARRNEEAL

per cent
Bkt
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